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IHEARTLAND EXPRESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS(in thousands, except per share amounts)(unaudited)ASSETSSeptember 30,2024December
31,2023CURRENT ASSETSCash and cash equivalents$30,739A $28,123A Trade receivables, net of $2.3 and $2.7 million allowance in 2024 and 2023, respectively100,017A 102,740A Prepaid
tires9,372A 10,650A Other current assets15,772A 17,602A Income tax receivable1,228A 10,157A Total current assets157,128A 169,272A PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENTA Land and land
improvements119,182A 118,682A Buildings151,679A 149,780A Furniture and fixtures6,824A 6,835A Shop and service equipment22,106A 20,822A Revenue

equipment995,743A 1,021,208A Construction in progress2,051A 2,582A Property and equipment, gross1,297,585A 1,319,909A Less accumulated depreciation536,948A 434,558A Property and
equipment, net760,637A 885,351A GOODWILL322,597A 322,597A OTHER INTANGIBLES, NET94,774A 98,537A OTHER ASSETS15,570A 14,953A DEFERRED INCOME TAXES,

NET1,158A 1,494A OPERATING LEASE RIGHT OF USE ASSETS9,589A 17,442A A $1,361,453A $1,509,646A LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITYCURRENT LIABILITIESA Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities$41,618A $37,777A CompensationA and benefits29,294A 28,492A Insurance accruals24,561A 21,507A Long-term debt and finance lease liabilities - current
portion8,734A 9,303A Operating lease liabilities - current portion6,790A 9,259A Other accruals23,728A 17,138A Total current liabilities134,725A 123,476A LONG-TERM LIABILITIESA Income
taxes payable6,119A 6,270A Long-term debt and finance lease liabilities less current portion198,053A 290,696A Operating lease liabilities less current portion2,799A 8,183A Deferred income
taxes, net163,769A 189,121A Accident and work comp accruals less current portion30,239A 26,640A Total long-term liabilities400,979A 520,910A COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(Note 14)STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITYA Preferred stock, par value $.01; authorized 5,000 shares; none issueda€”A a€”A Capital stock, common, $.01 par value; authorized 395,000 shares; issued
90,689 in 2024 and 2023; outstanding 78,495 and 79,039 in 2024 and 2023, respectively907A 907A Additional paid-in capita13,315A 4,527A Retained eamingsl,027,505A 1,060,094A Treasury
stock, at cost; 12,194 and 11,650 shares in 2024 and 2023, respectively(205,978)(200,268)825,749A 865,260A A $1,361,453A $1,509,646A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.3HEARTLAND EXPRESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)(in thousands, except per share
amounts)(unaudited)Three Months Ended September 30,Nine Months EndedA A September 30,20242023202420230PERATING

REVENUE$259,861A $295,026A $804,935A $932,111A OPERATING EXPENSESSalaries, wages, and benefits107,392A 118,923A 330,205A 362,566A Rent and purchased
transportation18,343A 26,674A 63,893A 88,285A Fuel43,793A 55,809A 138,125A 163,205A Operations and maintenance19,338A 16,596A 52,334A 47,669A Operating taxes and
licenses5,010A 5,400A 15,580A 16,400A Insurance and claims11,341A 9,330A 38,898A 30,766A Communications and utilities2,765A 2,496A 7,475A 8,051A Depreciation and
amortization44,955A 51,113A 137,596A 147,919A Other operating expenses14,539A 17,190A 43,596A 51,443A Gain on disposal of property and equipment(476)(1,065)(1,510)

(15,873)A 267,000A 302,466A 826,192A 900,431A Operating (loss) income(7,139)(7,440)(21,257)31,680A Interest income258A 276A 911A 1,352A Interest expense(4,243)(6,067)(14,119)
(18,254)(Loss) income before income taxes(11,124)(13,231)(34,465)14,778A Federal and state income taxes (benefit) (1,841)(2,528)(6,596)5,098A Net (loss)
income$(9,283)$(10,703)$(27,869)$9,680A Other comprehensive income, net of taxa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A Comprehensive (loss) income$(9,283)$(10,703)$(27,869)$9,680A Net (loss) income per
shareBasic$(0.12)$(0.14)$(0.35)$0.12A Diluted$(0.12)$(0.14)$(0.35)$0.12A Weighted average shares

outstandingBasic78,489A 79,021A 78,814A 79,003A Diluted78,500A 79,103A 78,866A 79,069A Dividends declared per share$0.02A $0.02A $0.06A $0.06A The accompanying notes are an
integral part of these consolidated financial statements.4HEARTLAND EXPRESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS4€™ EQUITY(in thousands,
except per share amounts)(unaudited)A A A A A A CapitalAdditionalA A A Stock,Paid-InRetainedTreasuryA A CommonCapitalEarningsStockTotalBalance, December 31,

2023$907A $4,527A $1,060,094A $(200 268)$865 260A Net lossa€”A a€”A (15, 108)a€"A 5, 108)D1v1dends on common stock,A $0.02 per sharea€ "A a€”A (1, 582)a€”A (1,582)Stock-based
compensation, net of taxa€”A (9)a€”A 229A 220A Balance, March 31, 2024$907A $4,518A $1,043,404A $(200,039)$848,790A Net lossa€”A a€”A (3,478)a€”A (3,478)Repurchases of common
stocka€”A a€”A a€”A (7,281)(7,281)Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per sharea€”A a€”A (1,569)a€”A (1,569)Stock-based compensation, net of taxa€”A (185)a€”A 489A 304A Balance, June
30, 2024$907A $4,333A $1,038,357A $(206,831)$836,766A Net lossa€”A a€”A (9,283)a€”A (9,283)Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per sharea€”A a€”A (1,569)a€”A (1,569)Stock-based
compensation, net of taxa€”A (1,018)a€”A 853A (165)Balance, September 30, 2024$907A $3,315A $1,027,505A $(205,978)$825,749A CapitalAdditionalA A Stock,Paid-

InRetamedTreasur:yA CommonCapitalEarningsStockTotalBalance, December 31, 2022$907A $4,165A $1,051,641A $(201,236)$855, 477A Net incomea€”A 4€”A 12,612A 4€”A 12,612A Dividends
on common stock,A $0.02 per sharea€” 'A a€”A (1, 581)a€”A (1, 581)Stock based compensation, net of taxa€”A 32A a€”A 79A 111A Balance, March 31,

2023$907A $4,197A $1,062,672A $(201,157)$866,619A Net incomea€”A a€”A 7,771A a€”A 7,771A Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per sharea€”A a€”A (1,580)a€”A (1,580)Stock-based
compensation, net of taxa€”A (299)a€”A 426A 127A Balance, June 30, 2023$907A $3,898A $1,068,863A $(200,731)$872,937A Net lossa€”A 4€”A (10,703)a€”A (10,703)Dividends on common
stock,A $0.02 per sharea€”A a€”A (1,581)a€”A (1,581)Stock-based compensation, net of taxa€”A 363A a€”A 114A 477A Balance, September 30,

2023$907A $4,261A $1,056,579A $(200,617)$861,130A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.5SHEARTLAND EXPRESS, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS(in thousands)(unaudited)Nine Months EndedA A September 30,A 202420230PERATING ACTIVITIESA A Net (loss)
income$(27,869)$9,680A Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:A A Depreciation and amortization137,596A 147,919A Deferred income
taxes(25,016)(11,903)Stock-based compensation expense742A 928A Debt-related amortization789A 806A Gain on disposal of property and equipment(1,510)(15,873)Changes in certain working
capital items:Trade receivables2,723A 25,874A Prepaid expenses and other current assets2,297A 4,604A Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and accrued expenses8,030A (25,176)Accrued
income taxes8,778A (12,408)Net cash provided by operating activities106,560A 124,451A INVESTING ACTIVITIESA A Proceeds from sale of property and

equipment27,698A 94,660A Purchases of property and equipment(26,229)(176,861)Change in other assets 30A 382A Net cash provided by (used in) investing

activities1,499A (81,819)FINANCING ACTIVITIESA A Payment of cash dividends(3,151)(3,161)Shares withheld for employee taxes related to stock-based compensation(383)(213)Repayments of
finance leases and debt(94,001)(69,887)Repurchases of common stock(7,281)a€”A Net cash used in financing activities(104,816)(73,261)Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash3,243A (30,629)CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASHA A Beginning of period41,188A 64,478A End of period$44,431A $33,849A SUPPLEMENTAL
DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIONA A Cash paid during the period for interest expense$14,296A $16,779A Cash paid during the period for income taxes, net of

refunds$10,030A $29,138A Noncash investing and financing activities:A A Purchased property and equipment in accounts payable$12, 086A $22,270A Sold revenue equipment and property in
other current assets$1,253A $2,089A Common stock dividends declared in accounts payable$1,569A $1,581A RECONCILIATION OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED
CASHCash and cash equivalents$30,739A $20,101A Restricted cash included in other current assets312A 299A Restricted cash included in other assets13,380A 13,449A Total cash, cash
equivalents and restricted cash$44,431A $33,849A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.6HEARTLAND EXPRESS, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIESNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS(unaudited)Note 1.A A Basis of Presentation and New Accounting PronouncementsHeartland Express, Inc. is a holding
company incorporated in Nevada, which directly or indirectly owns all of the stock of the following active legal entities: Heartland Express, Inc. of Iowa, Heartland Express Services, Inc.,
Heartland Express Maintenance Services, Inc. ("Heartland Express"), and Midwest Holding Group, LLC and Millis Transfer, LLC ("Millis Transfer"), and Smith Transport, LLC and Franklin
Logistics, LLC ("Smith Transport"), and CFI entities, Transportation Resources, Inc. and Contract Freighters, Inc. (collectively with certain Mexican entities, "CFI"). Effective December 31,
2023, Smith Trucking, Inc. was merged into Smith Transport, Inc. Further, effective December 31, 2023, Smith Transport, Inc. and Franklin Logistics, Inc. were converted to Smith Transport,
LLC and Franklin Logistics, LLC, respectively. On May 31, 2022, Heartland Express, Inc. of Iowa acquired Smith Transport, a truckload carrier headquartered in Roaring Spring, Pennsylvania.
On August 31, 2022, Heartland Express, Inc. of lowa acquired CFI's non-dedicated U.S. dry van and temperature-controlled truckload business located in Joplin, Missouri, and certain Mexican
entities (collectively "CFI Logistica") with operations located in Mexico. We, together with our subsidiaries, are a short, medium, and long-haul truckload carrier and transportation services



provider. We primarily provide nationwide asset-based dry van truckload service for major shippers across the United States, along with cross-border freight and other transportation services
offered through third party partnerships in Mexico.The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the parent company, Heartland Express, Inc., and its subsidiaries, all of which
are wholly owned. All material intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Regulation S-X.
Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes to the financial statements required by U.S. GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal,
recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023 included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the "SEC") on February 28, 2024. Interim results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year or any other interim periods. There were
no changes to the Company's significant accounting policies during the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024. In November 2023, the FASB issued Update 2023-07, "Segment
Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures". The amendments in the update improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced
disclosures about significant segment expenses. The amendments do not change how a public entity identifies its operating segments, aggregates those operating segments, or applies the
quantitative thresholds to determine its reportable segments. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this new standard although based on initial evaluation we do not believe there
will be a material impact from adoption.In December 2023, the FASB issued Update 2023-09, "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures". The amendments in the
update improve income tax disclosures primarily related to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information as well as the effectiveness of certain other income tax disclosures. The
new standard is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this new standard although based on initial
evaluation we do not believe there will be a material impact from adoption.Note 2.A A Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.A Actual results could differ from those estimates. There were no significant changes in estimates
and assumptions used by management related to our critical accounting policies during the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024.7Note 3. Segment InformationWe provide
truckload services across the United States (U.S.), Mexico, and parts of Canada. These truckload services are primarily asset-based transportation services in the dry van truckload market, and
we also offer truckload temperature-controlled transportation services and Mexico logistics services, which are not significant to our consolidated operations. Our Chief Operating Decision
Maker (4€0eCODMA€) oversees and manages all of our transportation services, on a combined basis, including previously acquired entities. As a result of the foregoing, we have determined that
we have one reportable segment, consistent with the authoritative accounting guidance on disclosures about segments of an enterprise and related information.Note 4. Revenue RecognitionThe
Company recognizes revenue over time as control of the promised services is transferred to our customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to be entitled to in exchange
for those services. The delivery of the shipment and completion of the performance obligation allows for the collection of payment generally within 30 days after the delivery date of the
shipment for the majority of our customers.The Company's operations are consistent with those in the trucking industry where freight is hauled twenty-four hours a day and seven days a week,
subject to hours of service rules. The Companya€™s average length of haul is approximately 400 loaded miles per trip and each individual shipment accepted by the Company is considered a
separate contract with the performance obligation being the delivery of the freight. Our average length of haul for each load of freight generally equals less than two days of continuous transit
time. The Company estimates revenue for multiple-stop loads based on miles run and estimates revenue for single stop loads based on transit time, as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefit provided. The Company hauls freight and earns revenue on a consistent basis throughout the periods presented. A corresponding contract asset existed for the estimated
revenue of these in-process loads for $1.9 million and $1.9 million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively. Recorded contract assets are included in the accounts
receivable line item of the balance sheet. Corresponding liabilities are recorded in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities and compensation and benefits line items for the estimated
expenses on these same in-process loads. The Company had no contract liabilities associated with our operations as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively.Total
revenues recorded were $259.9 million and $295.0 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Fuel surcharge revenues were $32.8 million and $42.9
million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Accessorial, brokerage and other revenues recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(loss) collectively represented $18.4 million and $22.4 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.Total revenues recorded were $804.9 million and $932.1
million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Fuel surcharge revenues were $105.9 million and $134.1 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively. Accessorial, brokerage and other revenues recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) collectively represented $58.6 million and
$71.7 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.Note 5. Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with
insignificant interest rate risk and original maturities of three months or less at acquisition. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, restricted and designated cash and investments totaled $13.7 million, of
which $0.3 million was included in other current assets and $13.4 million was included in other non-current assets in the consolidated balance sheet. Restricted and designated cash and
investments totaled $13.0 million at DecemberA 31, 2023, of which $0.3 million was included in other current assets and $12.7 million was included in other non-current assets in the
consolidated balance sheet.A The restricted funds represent deposits required by state agencies for self-insurance purposes and designated funds that are earmarked for a specific purpose and
not for general business use.Note 6. Prepaid Tires, Property, Equipment, and DepreciationProperty and equipment are reported at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations as incurred. New tires are capitalized separately from revenue equipment and are reported separately as a€cePrepaid tiresa€ in the consolidated balance
sheets and amortized over two years. Depreciation for financial statement purposes is computed by the straight-line method for all assets other than new tractors. We recognize depreciation
expense on new tractors (excludes assets acquired through an acquisition) using the 125% declining balance method. Revenue equipment acquired through acquisitions is generally revalued to
current market values as of the acquisition date. Assets obtained more than a year 8prior to the acquisition by the acquired company are depreciated on a straight-line basis aligned with the
remaining period of expected use, whereas those obtained less than a year prior are depreciated consistent with newly purchased assets. As acquired equipment is replaced, our fleet returns to
our base methods of declining balance depreciation for tractors and straight-line depreciation for trailers. New tractors are depreciated to salvage values of $15,000 while new trailers are
depreciated to salvage values of $4,000. For equipment acquired through acquisitions the salvage values on used equipment is determined based upon factors including the age of the
equipment, estimated market value, and expected period of usage. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, there were $1.3 million receivable related to equipment sales recorded in other current assets
compared to $2.5 million at DecemberA 31, 2023.Note 7. Other Intangibles, Net and GoodwillAll intangible assets determined to have finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives.
The useful life of an intangible asset is the period over which the asset is expected to contribute directly or indirectly to future cash flows. There was no change in the gross amount of
identifiable intangible assets during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024. The $94.8A million of other intangibles, net recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at SeptemberA 30,
2024 includes $31.6A million of indefinite lived trade name intangible assets, not subject to amortization, along with $63.2A million finite lived intangible assets, net. Amortization expense of
$1.3 million and $1.3 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, was included in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (loss). Amortization expense of $3.8 million and $3.9 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, was included in depreciation and
amortization in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss).Intangible assets subject to amortization consisted of the following at SeptemberA 30, 2024: Amortization period
(years)Gross AmountAccumulated AmortizationNet finite intangible assets(in thousands)Customer relationships15-20$75,836A $15,876A $59,960A Trade name0.5-

1012,900A 10,540A 2,360A Covenants not to compete1-105,839A 5,009A 830A $94,575A $31,425A $63,150A The carrying amount of goodwill was $322.6A million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and
DecemberA 31, 2023. Note 8. (Loss) Earnings per ShareBasic (loss) earnings per share is based upon the weighted average common shares outstanding during each year.A Diluted (loss)
earnings per share is based on the basic weighted (loss) earnings per share with additional weighted common shares for common stock equivalents. During the three and nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, we had outstanding restricted shares of common stock to certain of our employees and directors, under the Company's restricted stock award
plans. A reconciliation of the numerator (net (loss) income) and denominator (weighted average number of shares outstanding of basic and diluted) for the three and nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023 is as follows (in thousands, except per share data):Three months ended September 30, 2024Net Loss (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per
Share AmountBasic loss per share$(9,283)78,489A $(0.12)Effect of restricted stocka€”A 11A Diluted loss per share$(9,283)78,500A $(0.12)9Three months ended September 30, 2023Net Loss
(numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic loss per share$(10,703)79,021A $(0.14)Effect of restricted stocka€”A 82A Diluted loss per share$(10,703)79,103A $(0.14)Nine months
ended September 30, 2024Net Loss (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic loss per share$(27,869)78,814A $(0.35)Effect of restricted stocka€”A 52A Diluted loss per
share$(27,869)78,866A $(0.35)Nine months ended September 30, 2023Net Income (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic earnings per share$9,680A 79,003A $0.12A Effect
of restricted stocka€”A 66A Diluted earnings per share$9,680A 79,069A $0.12A Note 9. EquityWe have a stock repurchase program with 6.0 million shares remaining authorized for repurchase
as of SeptemberA 30, 2024. During the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no shares repurchased in the open market. There were 0.6 million shares repurchased in
the open market during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and there were no shares repurchased in the open market during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2023.
Repurchases are expected to continue from time to time, as determined by market conditions, cash flow requirements, securities law limitations, long-term debt balances, and other factors,
until the number of shares authorized have been repurchased, or until the authorization is terminated. The share repurchase authorization is discretionary and has no expiration date.During the
three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, our Board of Directors declaredA dividends totaling $1.6A million and $1.6 million, respectively. During the nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, our Board of Directors declaredA dividends totaling $4.7 million and $4.7 million, respectively. Future payment of cash dividends and the amount of such
dividends will depend upon our financial conditions, our results of operations, our cash requirements, our tax treatment, and certain corporate law requirements, as well as factors deemed
relevant by our Board of Directors.Note 10. Stock-Based Compensation In July 2011, a Special Meeting of Stockholders of Heartland Express, Inc. was held, at which meeting the approval of the
Heartland Express, Inc. 2011 Restricted Stock Award Plan (the "2011 Plan") was ratified. The 2011 Plan made available up to 0.9A million shares for the purpose of making restricted stock
grants to our eligible officers and employees. The 2011 Plan has no shares that remain available for the purpose of making restricted stock grants at SeptemberA 30, 2024. In May 2021, at the
2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Heartland Express, Inc. 2021 Restricted Stock Award Plan (the "2021 Plan") was approved. The 2021 Plan made available up to 0.6A million shares for
the purpose of making restricted stock grants to our eligible employees, directors and consultants. The 2021 Plan has 0.4A million shares that remain available for the purpose of making
restricted stock grants at SeptemberA 30, 2024.There were no shares that were granted during the period 2011 to 2021 that remain unvested at SeptemberA 30, 2024. Shares granted in 2022
through 2024 have various vesting terms that range from immediate to four years from the date of grant. Compensation expense associated with these awards is based on the market value of
our stock on the grant date. Compensation expense associated with restricted stock awards to employees is included in salaries, wages, and benefits, while expense 10associated with awards to
directors or consultants is included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss). There were no significant assumptions made in determining fair
value. Compensation expense associated with restricted stock awards was $0.1A million and $0.7A million respectively, for the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024.
Compensation expense associated with restricted stock awards was $0.5A million and $0.9A million respectively, for the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2023. Unrecognized
compensation expense was $0.1 million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 which will be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.8 years. The following tables summarize our restricted stock
award activity for the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023. Three Months Ended September 30, 2024Number of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in
thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of period62.5A $14.85A Granted26.3A 12.97A Vested(63.8)14.05A Forfeited(14.0)14.81A Outstanding (unvested) at
end of period11.0A $15.05A Three Months Ended September 30, 2023Number of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at
beginning of period95.0A $15.23A Granteda€”A 4€”A Vested(15.0)15.17A Forfeiteda€”A 4€”A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period80.0A $15.24A Nine Months Ended September 30,
2024Number of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period85.8A $14.84A Granted54.2A 12.39A Vested(115.0)13.67A Forfeited(14.0)14.81A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period11.0A $15.05A Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023Number
of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period40.1A $16.01A Granted93.3A 14.82A Vested(53.4)15.09A Forfeiteda€”A a€”A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period80.0A $15.24A 11Note 11.A A Long-Term DebtIn conjunction with
the acquisition of CFI on August 31, 2022, (the 4€ceCFI Closing Datea€), Heartland entered into a $550.0A million unsecured credit facility which included a $100.0A million revolving line of
credit (A€ceRevolving Facilitya€) and $450.0A million in term loans (4€ceTerm Facilitya€ and, together with the Revolving Facility, the &€ceCredit Facilitiesa€). The Credit Facilities includes a
consortium of lenders, including joint bookrunners JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (4€ceWells Fargoa€). The Credit Facilities replaced the previous
credit arrangements in place for the Company which consisted of a November 2013 Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo, along with an asset-based credit facility with Citizens Bank of
Pennsylvania that was assumed as part of the acquisition of Smith Transport on May 31, 2022.The full amount of the Term Facility was made in a single draw on August 31, 2022 and amounts
borrowed under the Term Facility that are repaid or prepaid may not be reborrowed. The Term Facility amortizes in quarterly installments which began in September 2023, at 5% per annum
through June 2025 and 10% per annum from September 2025 through June 2027, with the balance due on the date that is five years from the CFI Closing Date. Based on debt repayments made
through SeptemberA 30, 2024, required minimum payments have been covered until the term loan maturity on August 31, 2027.The Revolving Facility consists of a five-year revolving credit
facility with aggregate commitments in an amount equal to $100.0A million, of which up to $50.0A million is available for the issuance of letters of credit, and including a swingline facility in an
amount equal to $20.0A million. The Revolving Facility will mature and the commitments thereunder will terminate on the date that is five years after the CFI Closing Date. Amounts repaid
under the Revolving Facility may be reborrowed. The Credit Facilities include an uncommitted accordion feature pursuant to which the Company may request up to $275.0A million in
incremental revolving or term loans, subject to lender approvals.The indebtedness, obligations, and liabilities under the Credit Facilities are unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on
an unsecured basis by the Company, borrower, and certain other subsidiaries of the Company. The borrower may voluntarily prepay outstanding loans under the Credit Facilities in whole or in
part at any time without premium or penalty, subject to payment of customary breakage costs in the case of Secured Overnight Financing Rate (a€ceSOFRa€) rate loans.The Credit Facilities
contain usual and customary events of default and negative covenants for a facility of this nature including, among other things, restrictions on the Companya€™ s ability to incur certain
additional indebtedness or issue guarantees, to create liens on the Companya€™s assets, to make distributions on or redeem equity interests (subject to certain exceptions, including that (a) the
Company may pay regularly scheduled dividends on the Company&€™s common stock not to exceed $10.0A million during any fiscal year and (b) the Company may make any other distributions
so long as it maintains a net leverage ratio not greater than 2.50 to 1.00), to make investments and to engage in mergers, consolidations, or acquisitions. The Credit Facilities contain customary
financial covenants, including (i) a maximum net leverage ratio of 2.75 to 1.00, measured quarterly on a trailing twelve-month basis, and (ii) a minimum interest coverage ratio of 3.00 to 1.00,
measured quarterly on a trailing twelve-month basis. We were in compliance with the respective financial covenants at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and have been in compliance since the inception of
the Credit Facilities.Outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facilities will accrue interest, at the option of the borrower, at a per annum rate of (i) for an 4€eABR Loan4€, the alternate base



rate (defined as the interest rate per annum equal to the highest of (a) the variable rate of interest announced by the administrative agent as its a€ceprime ratea€, (b) 0.50% above the Federal
Funds Rate, (c) the Term SOFR for an interest period of one-month plus 1.1%, or (d) 1.00%) plus the applicable margin or (ii) for a 4eSOFR Loana€, the Term SOFR Rate for an interest period
of one, three or six-months as selected by Company plus the applicable margin. The applicable margin for ABR Loans ranges from 0.250% to 0.875% and the applicable margin for SOFR Loans
ranges from 1.250% to 1.875%, depending on the Companya€™s net leverage ratio.We had $188.0A million outstanding on the Term Facility and nothing outstanding under the Revolving
Facility at SeptemberA 30, 2024. Outstanding letters of credit associated with the Revolving Facility at SeptemberA 30, 2024 were $11.7 million. As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, the Revolving
Facility available for future borrowing was $88.3A million. As of SeptemberA 30, 2024 the weighted average interest rate on outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facilities was 6.8%.
Unamortized loan origination fees of $0.4A million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 are included in long-term debt and finance lease liabilities.The May 31, 2022 acquisition of Smith Transport included
the assumption of $46.8A million of debt and financing lease obligations associated with the fleet of revenue equipment of which $19.2 million was outstanding at SeptemberA 30, 2024, (the
"Smith Debt"). The Smith Debt has $6.3A million of outstanding principal and is made up of installment notes with a weighted 12average interest rate of 4.4% at SeptemberA 30, 2024, due in
monthly installments with final maturities at various dates ranging from February 2027 to January 2029, secured by related revenue equipment. The remaining Smith Debt of $12.9A million are
finance lease obligations with a weighted average interest rate of 4.0% at SeptemberA 30, 2024, due in monthly installments with final maturities at various dates ranging from October 2024 to
April 2026 with the weighted average remaining lease term of 1.2 years.Note 12.A A Lease ObligationsDuring 2023, we sold multiple properties for a combined $25.6A million gain. In separate
transactions related to the respective sales, we entered into operating lease agreements, each with a base term of two years. The right-of-use assets associated with terminal leases was

$5.7A million as of SeptemberA 30, 2024.Smith Transport has revenue equipment operating lease right-of-use assets from leases entered into before the May 31, 2022 acquisition. These right-
of-use equipment operating lease assets have a total balance of $3.9A million as of SeptemberA 30, 2024. The equipment and property operating leases have a weighted average interest rate of
5.4% at SeptemberA 30, 2024, due in monthly installments with final maturities at various dates ranging from October 2024 to April 2027 with the weighted average remaining lease term of 1.5
years. The Company has related party operating leases with the founder of Smith Transport, where the Company is both a lessor and lessee of certain real estate properties. These leases
represent an insignificant portion of the right-of-use lease assets discussed above. See Note 11. Long-Term Debt for additional details on the finance leases.Our future minimum lease payments
as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, are summarized as follows by lease category:(in thousands)OperatingFinance2024

(remaining)$1,846A $1,977A 20256,391A 7,557A 20261,497A 3,840A 2027320A a€”A 20284€”A 4€”A Thereaftera€”A a€”A Total minimum lease payments$10,054A $13,374A Less: future
payment amount for interest465A 506A Present value of minimum lease payments$9,589A $12,868A Less: current portion6,790A 6,924A Lease obligations, long-term$2,799A $5,944A Note
13.A A Income TaxesWe use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes.A Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis.A Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Such amounts are adjusted, as appropriate, to
reflect changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when temporary differences reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred taxes is recognized in the period that the change is
enacted. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the Company's deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. We had no recorded valuation allowance at
SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023. Our effective tax rate was 16.5% and 19.1% for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease in the
effective tax rate is the result of an increase in unfavorable permanent differences offsetting the tax benefit generated on the net loss for the respective quarters. Our effective tax rate was
19.1% and 34.5% for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate is primarily the result of permanent differences and items not
correlated to income reducing the rate for 2024 calculated on a loss before tax.We recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being
sustained.A Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the
period in which the change in judgment occurs.A We record interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.13At SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31,
2023, we had a total of $5.2 million and $5.5 million in gross unrecognized tax benefits, respectively included in long-term income taxes payable in the consolidated balance sheet.A Of this
amount, $4.1 million and $4.4 million represents the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would impact our effective tax rate as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31,
2023.A The net change in unrecognized tax benefits was no change and an increase of $0.1 million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, respectively.
The net change in unrecognized tax benefits was a decrease of $0.3 million and $0.1 million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, respectively. The
total net amount of accrued interest and penalties for such unrecognized tax benefits was $0.9 million and $0.7A million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively and is
included in long-term income taxes payable in the consolidated balance sheets.A These unrecognized tax benefits relate to state income tax filing positions. Income tax expense is increased each
period for the accrual of interest on outstanding positions and penalties when the uncertain tax position is initially recorded. Income tax expense is reduced in periods by the amount of accrued
interest and penalties associated with reversed uncertain tax positions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations, when applicable or when a position is settled. Net interest and penalties
included in income tax expense was nominal for both the three and nine month period ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, respectively. A reconciliation of the beginning and
ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:2024A (in thousands)Balance at December 31, 2023$5,522A Additions based on tax positions related to current year37A Reductions
due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations(362)Balance at September 30, 2024$5,197A A number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position is audited and ultimately settled. It is
difficult to predict the ultimate outcome or the timing of resolution for uncertain tax positions. It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could significantly increase
or decrease within the next twelve months. These changes could result from the expiration of the statute of limitations, examinations, or other unforeseen circumstances. We do not have any
outstanding litigation related to income tax matters.A At this time, managementa€™s best estimate of the reasonably possible change in the amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits is
approximately no change to an increase of $1.0 million during the next twelve months, due to the combination of expiration of certain statute of limitations and estimated additions.A The federal
statute of limitations remains open for the years 2021 and forward. Tax years 2014 and forward are subject to audit by state tax authorities depending on the tax code and administrative
practice of each state.Note 14.A A Commitments and ContingenciesWe are a party to ordinary, routine litigation and administrative proceedings incidental to our business. In the opinion of
management, our potential exposure under pending legal proceedings is adequately provided for in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.A A The total estimated purchase
cogngni}n}eptg fpr tractors (net of tractor sale commitments) and trailer equipment as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 was $58.6 million. These commitments extend into 2025.14ITEM

considered forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
such statements are subject to the safe harbor created by such sections and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended. All statements, other than statements of historical
fact, are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements, including without limitation: any projections of earnings (losses), revenues, or other financial items; any statement of
plans, strategies, and objectives of management for future operations; any statements concerning proposed new services or developments; any statements regarding future economic conditions
or performance; and any statements of belief and any statement of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Such statements may be identified by their use of terms or phrases such as
a€ceseeks,a€ d€mwexpects,a€ a€mestimates,a€ d€ceanticipates,a€ "ensure," a€ceprojects,a€ a€mbelieves,a€ d€ehopes,a€ d€ceplans,a€ a€megoals,a€ a€mintends,a€ 4€cemay,a€ 4€cemight,a€
a€celikely,a€ a€cewill,a€ a€ceshould,a€ a€cewould,a€ a€cecould,a€ a€cepotential,a€ a€cepredict,a€ a€cecontinue,a€ a€oestrategy,a€ a€ocefuture,a€ a€oeoutlook,a€ and similar terms and phrases.
Forward-looking statements are based on currently available operating, financial, and competitive information. In this Form 10-Q, statements relating to general trucking industry trends,
including future freight demand and capacity, freight rates, operating ratio goals, anticipated revenue equipment sales and purchases, including revenue equipment gains, the used equipment
market, and the availability of revenue equipment, future customer relationships, future growth and acquisitions, including the anticipated impact of our acquisitions of Smith Transport and
CFI, our ability to attract and retain drivers, future driver compensation, including possible driver compensation increases, future insurance and claims expense, including the impact of our
insurance renewal, the impact of changes in interest rates and tire prices, future liquidity, expected fuel costs, including strategies for managing fuel costs, the potential impact of pending
litigation, our dividend policy, future capital spending, future depreciation expense, our future repurchases of our shares, future cost reduction and implementation of freight optimization
strategies, including at Millis Transfer, CFI, and Smith Transport, our ability to react to and capitalize on changing market conditions, and the expected impact of operational improvements and
strategic changes, among others, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which cannot be predicted or quantified,
which could cause future events and actual results to differ materially from those set forth in, contemplated by, or underlying the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or
contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in the sections entitled "Item 1A. Risk Factors," set forth in the Company's 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 28, 2024 and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 10, 2024. Readers should review and consider such factors, along with various disclosures in our press releases, stockholder reports, and other filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.All such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any
change in the Company's expectations with regard thereto or any change in the events, conditions, or circumstances on which any such statement is based.References in this Quarterly Report
to a€oewe,a€ a€ceus,a€ a€ceour,a€ a€ceHeartland,a€ or the &€eCompanya€ or similar terms refer to Heartland Express, Inc. and its subsidiaries.OverviewPrior to our acquisitions in 2022 we,
together with our subsidiaries, historically were a short-to-medium haul truckload carrier where approximately 99.9% of our operating revenue was derived from shipments within the United
States with the remainder being Canada and no operations in Mexico. With the acquisition of CFI on August 31, 2022, we significantly expanded our scale and our transportation services. We
continue to provide nationwide asset-based dry van truckload service for major shippers from across the U.S. and now including cross border freight to and from Mexico and our consolidated
average length of haul is approximately 400 loaded miles. We continue to focus on providing high quality service to targeted customers with a high density of freight in our regional operating
areas. We also offer truckload temperature-controlled transportation services and Mexico logistics services, which are not significant to our consolidated operations. Through the acquisition of
CFI, we now provide transportation logistics services across Mexico for our customers and provide cross-border freight services for customer loads moving from the United States into Mexico
and loads originating from Mexico into the United States. We utilize third party service providers for all miles run in Mexico and to move freight across the US-Mexico border while leveraging
terminal locations in the US and Mexico near the border to facilitate these moves. We generally earn revenue based on the number of miles per load delivered and the revenue per mile or per
load paid. We operate our consolidated operations under the brand names of Heartland Express, Millis Transfer, Smith Transport, and CFI. We manage our business based on overall corporate
operating goals and objectives that are the same for all of our brands. Our Chief Operating Decision Maker (4€ceCODMA&€), our CEO, evaluates the operational efficiencies of our transportation
services, operating performance and asset allocation on a 15combined basis based on consolidated operating goals and objectives. We believe the keys to success are maintaining high levels of
customer service and safety, which are predicated on the availability of experienced drivers and late-model equipment. We believe that our service standards, safety record, and equipment
accessibility have made us a core carrier to many of our major customers, as well as allowed us to build solid, long-term relationships with customers and brand ourselves as an industry leader
for on-time service.We operate in a cyclical industry. Freight demand began to soften in the back half of 2022 and continued to degrade throughout all of 2023. Truck capacity has continued to
exceed freight demand to date in 2024. While in October 2024 we began to see encouraging signs pointing to the early stages of potential recovery in freight demand, we do not expect
impactful improvement until we are into 2025. We expect the strategic changes that we have implemented during 2023 and into 2024 will improve our operational readiness ahead of future
expected freight demand growth, which could happen in 2025. However, supply chain issues for tractors, trailers and related parts, general consumer product output and inventory volatility,
consumer demand, the political landscape, foreign wars, and disruption in oil and diesel markets all could create additional volatility regarding freight demand.We continue to focus on
providing quality service to targeted customers with a high density of freight in our regional operating areas. Organic growth has become increasingly difficult for traditional over-the-road
truckload carriers given a shortage of qualified drivers in the industry and availability of revenue equipment assets. In 2022 we completed two strategic acquisitions to combat these industry
challenges. In addition, we continue to evaluate and explore different driving options and offerings for our existing and potential new drivers across our unique mix of driver offerings at
Heartland Express, Millis Transfer, Smith Transport, and CFI.In addition to past organic growth through the development of our regional operating areas, we have completed ten acquisitions
since 1986 with the most recent and our fifth acquisition since 2013, CFI, occurring on August 31, 2022 following the acquisition of Smith Transport on May 31, 2022. These ten acquisitions
have enabled us to solidify our position within existing regions, expand into new operating regions, expand service offerings to address longer length of haul needs from customers, pursue new
customer relationships in new markets, as well as expand business relationships with current customers in new markets. We are highly selective about acquisitions, with our main criteria being
(i) safe operations, (ii) high quality professional truck drivers, (iii) fleet profile that is compatible with our philosophy or can be replaced economically, and (iv) freight profile that will allow a
path to a low-80s operating ratio upon full integration, application of our cost structure, and freight optimization, including exiting certain business that fails to meet our operating profile. We
have historically been a debt free organization, although with the acquisition of CFI we now have a significant amount of debt. We have also significantly lowered our debt balance from 2022 to
date in 2024. We expect to continue to evaluate acquisition candidates presented to us, however, we do not expect to make any significant acquisitions while we are paying down debt. We
believe future growth depends upon several factors including the level of economic growth and the related customer demand, the available capacity in the trucking industry, our ability to
identify and consummate future acquisitions, our ability to integrate operations of acquired companies to realize efficiencies, and our ability to attract and retain experienced drivers that meet
our hiring standards.The trucking industry has been faced with a qualified driver shortage. During the COVID-19 pandemic, increased freight demand intensified an already challenging
qualified driver market. Competition for qualified drivers continued to be challenging into 2024 and is expected to be a challenge going forward due to the decreasing numbers of qualified
drivers in our industry. However, driver availability challenges were reduced in 2023 and into 2024, as a result of the declining freight and economic environments and we believe certain
drivers have moved from smaller less financially stable carriers to more financially stable carriers and from independent contractors to company drivers. Although there has been some
increased movement of drivers between companies in our industry, the issue of a decreasing amount of qualified CDL drivers in our industry continues. We continually explore new strategies to
attract and retain qualified drivers with changes in market conditions and demands. We hire the majority of our drivers with at least six months of over-the-road experience and safe driving
records. As discussed below, the Company's driver training program provides an additional source of future potential professional drivers. In order to attract and retain experienced drivers who
understand the importance of customer service, we have sought to solidify our position as an industry leader in driver compensation in our operating markets and for the services we provide.
We have continued to get more creative in providing better pay, benefits, equipment, and facilities for our drivers. Our comprehensive driver compensation and benefits program rewards
drivers for years of service and safe operating mileage benchmarks, which are critical to our operational and financial performance. Certain driver pay packages include minimum pay
protection provisions, future pay increases based on years of continued service with us, increased rates for accident-free miles of operation, detention pay, and other pay programs to assist
drivers with unproductive time associated with circumstances outside of their control, such as inclement weather, equipment breakdowns, and customer issues. As a result of the freight
environment during the second half of 2023 and to date in 2024, we have paid more through these programs, resulting in an increase of driver pay per mile and as a percentage of revenue. This
has allowed us to maintain driver turnover rates lower than the industry average as a result. We believe that our driver compensation and benefits package is consistently among the best in



16the industry. We are committed to investing in our drivers and compensating them for safety as both are key to our operational and financial performance. Currently over 10% of our driver
employees, individually, have achieved 1.0 million safe miles.In response to the overall driver shortage in our industry, the Company continues to evaluate and pursue the expansion of driver
training schools. Millis Transfer has operated a driver training school program, Millis Training Institute, since 1989. Millis Training Institute is a driver training program dedicated to
identifying, training, and developing capable individuals into obtaining their commercial driving license and becoming professional truck drivers. This driver training program currently provides
a source of qualified professional drivers for our Company. The driver training program offers an additional opportunity to hire professional drivers other than the traditional approach of hiring
only experienced over-the-road drivers. During 2022, we rolled out the first Heartland Training Institute location in Phoenix, Arizona, modeled after the successful program in place at Millis
Transfer. We will continue to evaluate this training program for future expansion.Managing fuel cost continues to be one of management's top priorities given the volatility in the price of diesel
fuel. The Department of Energy ("DOE") average diesel fuel prices per gallon for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023 were $3.69 and $4.24 (a 13.0% decrease), respectively.
Average DOE prices were $4.26, $3.96 and $3.86 for the three months ended December 31, 2023, March 31, 2024, and June 30, 2024 respectively. While the third quarter 2024 average DOE
price was the lowest it has been since 2021, we cannot predict that it will remain lower for the remainder of 2024. There are many factors that could impact diesel fuel prices including political,
economic and geographic events, cyber attacks, global conflicts, weather events, and other natural disasters. We cannot predict what fuel prices will be for the remainder of 2024, but year-to-
date fuel expense is the second highest expense behind salaries, wages, and benefits. We are not able to pass through all fuel price increases through fuel surcharge agreements with customers
due to tractor idling time, along with empty and out-of-route miles. Therefore, our operating income is negatively impacted with increased net fuel costs (fuel expense less fuel surcharge
revenue) in a rising fuel environment and is positively impacted in a declining fuel environment. Specifically, to date during 2024 fuel prices have been lower at the same time we were incurring
higher empty mile moves with our drivers as a result of slower freight demand. During the same period of 2023, fuel prices were declining and empty mile moves were not as high compared to
2024. Therefore, our net fuel cost per mile (gross fuel expense net of fuel surcharge revenues) was significantly higher in the nine months ended September 30, 2024 compared to the nine
months ended September 30, 2023 even though the gross price was higher in 2023 as compared to 2024. We expect to continue to manage and implement fuel initiative strategies that we
believe will effectively manage fuel costs.A These initiatives include strategic fueling of our trucks, whether it be terminal fuel or over-the-road fuel, bulk fuel purchases, controlling out-of-route
miles, controlling empty miles, utilizing idle management programming and battery power and diesel power units to minimize idling, educating drivers to save energy, trailer skirting and rear
fairings, and increasing fuel economy through the purchase of newer, more fuel-efficient tractors. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, the Companya€ ™ s tractor fleet had an average age of 2.7 years and
the Company's trailer fleet had an average age of 7.2 years compared to SeptemberA 30, 2023 when the Companya€™s tractor fleet had an average age of 1.9 years and the Company's trailer
fleet had an average age of 6.2 years.We ended the first nine months of 2024 with operating revenues of $804.9A million, including fuel surcharges, net loss of $27.9 million, and basic net loss
per share of $0.35 on basic weighted average outstanding shares of 78.8A million compared to operating revenues of $932.1A million, including fuel surcharges, net income of $9.7A million,
and basic net income per share of $0.12 on basic weighted average shares of 79.0A million in the first nine months of 2023. We posted a 102.6% operating ratio (operating expenses as a
percentage of operating revenues) for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to 96.6% for the same period of 2023. We posted a 102.5% non-GAAP adjusted operating ratio(1)
for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to 95.5% for the same period of 2023. We had total assets of $1.4 billion at SeptemberA 30, 2024. We had a loss on assets of (1.6)%
and a loss on equity of (2.7)% over the immediate past four quarters ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, compared to return on assets of 1.6% and return on equity of 2.9% for the immediate past four
quarters ended SeptemberA 30, 2023.0ur cash flow from operating activities for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 of $106.6 million was 13.2% of operating revenues, compared to
$124.5 million and 13.4% of operating revenues in the same period of 2023.A During 2024, we had net cash provided by investing activities of $1.5 million resulting from net property and
equipment transactions. Net cash provided by property and equipment was primarily the result of timing and an overall low volume of normal tractor and trailer fleet replacement activity. We
had net cash used in financing activities of $104.8A million resulting primarily from debt repayments associated with debt taken on with our 2022 acquisitions along with repurchases of
common stock and dividend payments. Our cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash increased $3.2A million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024.A We ended the third quarter
of 2024 with cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash of $44.4 million. Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash was $30.7 million at SeptemberA 30, 2024. 17(1)GAAP to Non-
GAAP Reconciliation Schedule:Operating revenue excluding fuel surcharge revenue, adjusted operating income, and adjusted operating ratio reconciliation (a)Three Months Ended September
30,Nine Months Ended September 30,2024202320242023(Unaudited, in thousands)(Unaudited, in thousands)Operating revenue$259,861A $295,026A $804,935A $932,111A Less: Fuel
surcharge revenue32,820A 42,928A 105,859A 134,077A Operating revenue, excluding fuel surcharge revenue227,041A 252,098A 699,076A 798,034A Operating

expenses267,000A 302,466A 826,192A 900,431A Less: Fuel surcharge revenue32,820A 42,928A 105,859A 134,077A Less: Amortization of intangibles1,254A 1,301A 3,763A 3,902A Adjusted
operating expenses232,926A 258,237A 716,570A 762,452A Operating (loss) income(7,139)(7,440)(21,257)31,680A Adjusted operating (loss)

income$(5,885)$(6,139)$(17,494)$35,582A Operating ratio102.7A %102.5A %102.6A %96.6A %Adjusted operating ratiol02.6A %102.4A %102.5A %95.5A %(a) Operating revenue excluding
fuel surcharge revenue is based upon operating revenue minus fuel surcharge revenue. Adjusted operating income is based upon operating revenue excluding fuel surcharge revenue, less
operating expenses, net of fuel surcharge revenue, and non-cash amortization expense related to intangible assets. Adjusted operating ratio is based upon operating expenses, net of fuel
surcharge revenue, and amortization of intangibles, as a percentage of operating revenue excluding fuel surcharge revenue. We believe that operating revenue excluding fuel surcharge
revenue, adjusted operating income, and adjusted operating ratio are more representative of our underlying operations by excluding the volatility of fuel prices, which we cannot control.
Operating revenue excluding fuel surcharge revenue, adjusted operating income, and adjusted operating ratio are not substitutes for operating revenue, operating income, or operating ratio
measured in accordance with GAAP. There are limitations to using non-GAAP financial measures. Although we believe that operating revenue excluding fuel surcharge revenue, adjusted
operating income, and adjusted operating ratio improve comparability in analyzing our period-to-period performance, they could limit comparability to other companies in our industry if those
companies define such measures differently. Because of these limitations, operating revenue excluding fuel surcharge revenue, adjusted operating income, and adjusted operating ratio should
not be considered measures of income generated by our business or discretionary cash available to us to invest in the growth of our business. Management compensates for these limitations by
primarily relying on GAAP results and using non-GAAP financial measures on a supplemental basis.18Results of OperationsThe following table sets forth the percentage relationships of expense
items to total operating revenue for the periods indicated:A Three Months Ended September 30,Nine Months Ended September 30,A 20242023202420230perating

revenuel00.0A %100.0A %100.0A %100.0A %Operating expenses:Salaries, wages, and benefits41.3A %40.3A %41.0A %38.9A %Rent and purchased

transportation7.1A %9.1A %8.0A %9.5A %Fuel16.8A %18.9A %17.2A %17.5A %Operations and maintenance7.4A %5.6A %6.5A %5.1A %Operating taxes and

licenses1.9A %1.8A %1.9A %1.7A %Insurance and claims4.4A %3.2A %4.8A %3.3A %Communications and utilities1.1A %0.9A %0.9A %0.9A %Depreciation and

amortization17.3A %17.3A %17.1A %15.9A %Other operating expenses5.6A %5.8A %5.4A %5.5A %Gain on disposal of property and equipment(0.2)%(0.4)%(0.2)%

(1.7)%A 102.7A %102.5A %102.6A %96.6A %Operatlng (loss) income(2.7)%(2.5)%(2.6)%3.4A %Interest income0.1A %0.1A %0.1A %0.2A %Interest expense(1.7)%(2.1)%(1.8)%(2.0)%(Loss)
income before income taxes(4.3)%(4. 5)%(4.3)%1. 6A %Income taxes(0.7)%(0.9)%(0.8)%0.6A %Net (loss) income(3.6)%(3.6)%(3.5)%1.0A %Three Months Ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 Compared
With the Three Months Ended SeptemberA 30, 2023 Our quarterly operating ratio was 102.7% and 102.6% non-GAAP adjusted operating ratio as compared to the prior year 102.5% and
102.4%. See the 4€eGAAP to Non-GAAP Reconciliation Schedulea€ above for a reconciliation of our non-GAAP adjusted operating ratio. Our net loss was $9.3 million for the three months
ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to net loss of $10.7 million during the period ended SeptemberA 30, 2023. The operating ratio and net losses are the result of a combination of an
extended and significant period of weak freight demand, driven by excess capacity in the industry, and ongoing operating cost inflation. Further, we have implemented strategic changes which
targeted unprofitable customers and lanes of freight that were not acceptable for the long term profitability of our organization. These decisions, while difficult, were made to set a course to
ensure that we are prepared to capitalize on stronger freight demand with more efficient operations in the future. Consistent with past acquisitions, we continue to implement cost reduction
and freight optimization strategies at Millis Transfer, Smith Transport, and CFI, focused on improving the consolidated operating ratio.Operating revenue decreased $35.2 million (11.9%), to
$259.9 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $295.0 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2023.A The decrease in revenue was the result of a weak
freight environment leading to a decline in total miles resulting in the decrease in trucking and other revenues of $25.1 million (9.9%) along with a decrease to fuel surcharge revenue of $10.1
million (23.5%) from $42.9 million in 2023 to $32.8 million in 2024. Operating revenues (the total of trucking and fuel surcharge revenue) are primarily earned based on loaded miles driven in
providing truckload services. The number of loaded miles is affected by general freight supply and demand trends and the number of revenue earning equipment vehicles (tractors). The number
of tractors is directly affected by the number of available drivers providing capacity to us. Due to continued over capacity in the market compared to freight demand, our truck assets continue
to be under utilized. Our operating revenues are reviewed regularly by our CODM on a combined basis across the U.S. due to the similar nature of our services offerings and related similar base
pricing structure.Fuel surcharge revenues represent fuel costs passed on to customers based on customer specific fuel surcharge recovery rates and billed loaded miles. Fuel surcharge
revenues decreased due to lower average DOE diesel fuel prices (13.0%), as reported by the DOE, along with a decrease in loaded miles during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024
compared to SeptemberA 30, 2023.19Salaries, wages, and benefits decreased $11.5 million (9.7%), to $107.4 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $118.9 million in the
2023 period.A Salaries, wages, and benefits decreased primarily due to the reduction of driver payroll as a result of lower company miles, along with a reduction of office and shop employees.
Offsetting this decrease was an increase in driver pay for non-productive time associated with layovers and other factors associated with a slower freight environment. As a result, salaries,
wages, and benefits as a percentage of gross revenues is higher in 2024 compared to 2023. We have continued to get more creative in providing better pay, driving opportunities, benefits,
equipment, and facilities for our drivers. We expect the qualified driver shortage within the trucking industry to continue to be a challenge in the foreseeable future. However, driver availability
improved in 2023 and to date in 2024, as a result of the changing freight and economic environments and we believe certain drivers have moved from smaller less financially stable carriers to
more financially stable carriers.Rent and purchased transportation decreased $8.4 million, to $18.3 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $26.7 million for the same
period of 2023. The decrease resulted from reduced purchased transportation and lower contractor miles associated with the CFI business integration, along with a reduction of leased
equipment.Fuel decreased $12.0 million (21.5%), to $43.8 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $55.8 million for the same period of 2023. The decrease was primarily
due to lower average diesel price per gallon (13.0%) as reported by the DOE along with less miles driven. We expect to see fuel price volatility through the remainder of 2024.0Operations and
maintenance expense increased $2.7 million (16.5%), to $19.3 million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $16.6 million in the same period of 2023. The net increase is
mainly attributable to higher equipment maintenance costs. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, the Companya€™s tractor fleet had an average age of 2.7 years and the Company's trailer fleet had an
average age of 7.2 years compared to SeptemberA 30, 2023 when the Companya€™s tractor fleet had an average age of 1.9 years and the Company's trailer fleet had an average age of 6.2
years. Based upon current agreements for new revenue equipment we anticipate that the average age of our fleet of tractors will decrease while the average age of our fleet of trailers will
increase by December 31, 2024. We do not believe these changes in fleet age will significantly impact operations and maintenance expense.Operating taxes and licenses decreased $0.4A million
(7.2%), to $5.0A million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $5.4A million in the same period of 2023. The decrease resulted from a reduction of operating units as a
result of the soft freight environment. Insurance and claims expense was $11.3 million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to $9.3 million in 2023. The increase is
due to unfavorable claim severity and frequency. In April 2023, we renewed our primary auto liability insurance with a three year program. Under the April 2023 renewal, our auto liability
retention limit across all operating entities was increased to $3.0 million for any individual claim, subject to a $3.5 million corridor for any one accident or combination of accidents that exceed
$3.0 million, based on the insured party, accident date, and circumstances of the loss event. In April 2024, an additional corridor was added, where we retain liability of $5.0 million for any one
accident or combination of accidents that exceed $10.0 million. Liabilities in excess of the $3.0 million deductible, the $3.5 million corridor, and the $5.0 million corridor are covered by
insurance up to $80.0 million. We retain any liability in excess of $80.0 million. Furthermore, under the April 2023 renewal, our premiums are subject to upward or downward adjustments
based on claims experience in the $3.0 million to $10.0 million policy during the three year program. The elevated retention limit and the premium adjustment feature could lead to increased
volatility in our insurance and claims expense, depending on the frequency and magnitude of claims. We believe these insurance program features better meet the needs of our consolidated risk
profile.Depreciation and amortization decreased $6.1 million (12.0%), to $45.0 million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $51.1 million in the same period of 2023 as a
result of ongoing fleet replacement strategies. We expect depreciation expense in 2024 to be approximately $180 million to $185 million.Other operating expenses decreased $2.7A million, to
$14.5A million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $17.2A million in the same period of 2023. The decrease resulted from a reduction of costs associated directly with
freight, and a decrease in freight demand, as well as general corporate expense initiatives. Gains on the disposal of property and equipment decreased $0. 6A million, to a gain on disposal of
$0.5A million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to an $1.1A million gain on disposal in the same period of 2023. The decrease is primarily due to a significant
decrease of equipment sales volume. During the calendar year of 2024, we currently expect $5 to $10 million of gains on disposal of property and equipment as we expect increased revenue
equipment trade activity during the fourth quarter of 2024.20Interest expense decreased $1.9A million, to $4.2A million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $6.1A million
in the same period of 2023. The decrease was mainly due to debt repayments and a corresponding decrease to average outstanding debt balances. The interest expense is made up of

$3.9A million from the Credit Facilities coinciding with the acquisition of CFI while the remaining $0.3A million is the result of debt and financing leases assumed through the Smith Transport
acquisition. We expect further reductions to interest expense as we continue to pay down the debt. Based upon planned capital needs for revenue equipment during the fourth quarter of 2024,
debt payments in the fourth quarter are not expected to be significant.Our effective tax rate was 16.5% and 19.1% for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The
decrease in the effective tax rate is the result of an increase in unfavorable permanent differences offsetting the tax benefit generated on the net loss for the respective quarters.Nine Months
Ended September 30, 2024 Compared With the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023 Our operating ratio was 102.6% and 102.5% non-GAAP adjusted operating ratio as compared to the
prior year 96.6% and 95.5%. See the &€ceGAAP to Non-GAAP Reconciliation Schedulea€ above for a reconciliation of our non-GAAP adjusted operating ratio. Our net loss was $27.9 million for
the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to net income of $9.7 million during the period ended SeptemberA 30, 2023. The operating ratio and net loss are the result of a
combination of an extended and significant period of weak freight demand, driven by excess capacity in the industry, unfavorable weather early in the year, and ongoing operating cost inflation.
Further, we have implemented strategic changes which targeted unprofitable customers and lanes of freight that were not acceptable for the long term profitability of our organization. These
decisions, while difficult, were made to set a course to ensure that we are prepared to capitalize on stronger freight demand with more efficient operations in the future. Consistent with past
acquisitions, we continue to implement cost reduction and freight optimization strategies at Millis Transfer, Smith Transport, and CFI, focused on improving the consolidated operating
ratio.Operating revenue decreased $127.2 million (13.6%), to $804.9 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $932.1 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30,
2023.A The decrease in revenue was the result of a weak freight environment leading to a decline in total miles resulting in the decrease in trucking and other revenues of $99.0 million (12.4%)
along with a decrease to fuel surcharge revenue of $28.2 million (21.0%) from $134.1 million in 2023 to $105.9 million in 2024. Operating revenues (the total of trucking and fuel surcharge
revenue) are primarily earned based on loaded miles driven in providing truckload services. The number of loaded miles is affected by general freight supply and demand trends and the number
of revenue earning equipment vehicles (tractors). The number of tractors is directly affected by the number of available drivers providing capacity to us. Our operating revenues are reviewed
regularly by our CODM on a combined basis across the U.S. due to the similar nature of our services offerings and related similar base pricing structure.Fuel surcharge revenues represent fuel



costs passed on to customers based on customer specific fuel surcharge recovery rates and billed loaded miles. Fuel surcharge revenues decreased due to lower average DOE diesel fuel prices
(8.6%), as reported by the DOE, along with a decrease in loaded miles during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to SeptemberA 30, 2023.Salaries, wages, and benefits
decreased $32.4 million (8.9%), to $330.2 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $362.6 million in the 2023 period.A Salaries, wages, and benefits decreased primarily
due to the reduction of driver payroll as a result of lower company miles, along with a reduction of office and shop employees. Offsetting this decrease was an increase in driver pay for non-
productive time associated with weather shut downs, layovers, and other factors associated with a slower freight environment. As a result, salaries, wages, and benefits as a percentage of gross
revenues was higher in 2024 compared to 2023. We have continued to get more creative in providing better pay, driving opportunities, benefits, equipment, and facilities for our drivers. We
expect the qualified driver shortage within the trucking industry to continue to be a challenge in the foreseeable future. However, driver availability improved in 2023 and to date in 2024, as a
result of the changing freight and economic environments and we believe certain drivers have moved from smaller less financially stable carriers to more financially stable carriers.Rent and
purchased transportation decreased $24.4 million, to $63.9 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $88.3 million for the same period of 2023. The decrease resulted from
reduced purchased transportation and lower contractor miles associated with the CFI business integration, along with a reduction of leased equipment. This decrease was partially offset by an
increase in property leases due to terminals sold in late 2023 that are now under short term leases.Fuel decreased $25.1 million (15.4%), to $138.1 million for the nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $163.2 million for the same period of 2023. The decrease was primarily due to lower average diesel price per gallon (8.6%) as reported by the DOE along with less
miles driven. We expect to see fuel price volatility through the remainder of 2024.210perations and maintenance expense increased $4.6 million (9.8%), to $52.3 million during the nine months
ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $47.7 million in the same period of 2023. The net increase is mainly attributable to higher equipment maintenance costs. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, the
Companya€™s tractor fleet had an average age of 2.7 years and the Company's trailer fleet had an average age of 7.2 years compared to SeptemberA 30, 2023 when the Companya€ ™s tractor
fleet had an average age of 1.9 years and the Company's trailer fleet had an average age of 6.2 years. Based upon current agreements for new revenue equipment we anticipate that the average
age of our fleet of tractors will decrease while the average age of our fleet of trailers will increase by December 31, 2024. We do not believe these changes in fleet age will significantly impact
operations and maintenance expense.Operating taxes and licenses decreased $0.8A million (5.0%), to $15.6A million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $16.4A million in
the same period of 2023. The decrease resulted from a reduction of operating units as a result of the soft freight environment. Insurance and claims expense was $38.9 million during the nine
months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to $30.8 million in 2023. The increase is due to unfavorable claim severity and frequency. The elevated retention limit and the premium
adjustment feature under our primary auto liability insurance program described above could lead to increased volatility in our insurance and claims expense, depending on the frequency and
magnitude of claims.Depreciation and amortization decreased $10.3 million (7.0%), to $137.6 million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $147.9 million in the same period
of 2023 as a result of ongoing fleet replacement strategies. We expect depreciation expense in 2024 to be approximately $180 million to $185 million.Other operating expenses decreased

$7.8A million, to $43.6A million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $51.4A million in the same period of 2023. The decrease resulted from a reduction of costs associated
directly with freight, and a decrease in freight demand, as well as general corporate expense initiatives.Gains on the disposal of property and equipment decreased $14.4A million, to a gain on
disposal of $1.5A million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to a $15.9A million gain on disposal in the same period of 2023. The decrease was primarily due to a
significant decrease of equipment sales volume. During the calendar year of 2024, we currently expect $5 to $10 million of gains on disposal of property and equipment.Interest expense
decreased $4.2A million, to $14.1A million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 from $18.3A million in the same period of 2023. The decrease was mainly due to debt
repayments and a corresponding decrease to average outstanding debt balances. The interest expense is made up of $13.2A million from the Credit Facilities coinciding with the acquisition of
CFI while the remaining $0.9A million is the result of debt and financing leases assumed through the Smith Transport acquisition. We expect further reductions to interest expense as we pay
down the debt.Our effective tax rate was 19.1% and 34.5% for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate is primarily the result of
permanent differences and items not correlated to income reducing the rate for 2024 calculated on a loss before tax.Liquidity and Capital ResourcesThe growth of our business requires
significant investments in new revenue equipment.A Historically, except for acquisitions, we have been debt-free, funding revenue equipment purchases with our primary sources of liquidity,
cash flow provided by operating activities and proceeds from sales of used equipment. In conjunction with the acquisition of CFI on August 31, 2022, (the 4€0eCFI Closing Datea€), Heartland
entered into a $550.0A million unsecured credit facility which included a $100. 0A million revolving line of credit (4€ceRevolving Facilitya€) and $450. 0A million in term loans (4€ceTerm
Facilitya€ and, together with the Revolving Facility, the &€ceCredit Facilities&€). The Credit Facilities includes a consortium of lenders, including joint bookrunners JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (a€ceWells Fargoa€). The Credit Facilities replaced the previous credit arrangements in place for the Company which consisted of a November 2013
Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo, along with an asset-based credit facility with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania that was assumed as part of the acquisition of Smith Transport on May 31,
2022.The full amount of the Term Facility was made in a single draw on August 31, 2022 and amounts borrowed under the Term Facility that are repaid or prepaid may not be reborrowed. The
Term Facility amortizes in quarterly installments which began in September 2023, at 5% per annum through June 2025 and 10% per annum from September 2025 through June 2027, with the
22balance due on the date that is five years from the CFI Closing Date. Based on debt repayments made through SeptemberA 30, 2024, required minimum payments have been covered until the
term loan maturity on August 31, 2027.The Revolving Facility consists of a five-year revolving credit facility with aggregate commitments in an amount equal to $100.0A million, of which up to
$50.0A million is available for the issuance of letters of credit, and including a swingline facility in an amount equal to $20.0A million. The Revolving Facility will mature and the commitments
thereunder will terminate on the date that is five years after the CFI Closing Date. Amounts repaid under the Revolving Facility may be reborrowed. The Credit Facilities include an
uncommitted accordion feature pursuant to which the Company may request up to $275.0A million in incremental revolving or term loans, subject to lender approvals.The indebtedness,
obligations, and liabilities under the Credit Facilities are unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on an unsecured basis by the Company, borrower, and certain other subsidiaries of
the Company. The borrower may voluntarily prepay outstanding loans under the Credit Facilities in whole or in part at any time without premium or penalty, subject to payment of customary
breakage costs in the case of Secured Overnight Financing Rate (4€eSOFRA€) rate loans.The Credit Facilities contain usual and customary events of default and negative covenants for a
facility of this nature including, among other things, restrictions on the Companya€™s ability to incur certain additional indebtedness or issue guarantees, to create liens on the Companya€™s
assets, to make distributions on or redeem equity interests (subject to certain exceptions, including that (a) the Company may pay regularly scheduled dividends on the Companya€™s common
stock not to exceed $10.0A million during any fiscal year and (b) the Company may make any other distributions so long as it maintains a net leverage ratio not greater than 2.50 to 1.00), to
make investments and to engage in mergers, consolidations, or acquisitions. The Credit Facilities contain customary financial covenants, including (i) a maximum net leverage ratio of 2.75 to
1.00, measured quarterly on a trailing twelve-month basis, and (ii) a minimum interest coverage ratio of 3.00 to 1.00, measured quarterly on a trailing twelve-month basis. We were in
compliance with the respective financial covenants at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and have been in compliance since the inception of the Credit Facilities.Outstanding borrowings under the Credit
Facilities will accrue interest, at the option of the borrower, at a per annum rate of (i) for an 4€ceABR Loana€, the alternate base rate (defined as the interest rate per annum equal to the
highest of (a) the variable rate of interest announced by the administrative agent as its &€ceprime ratea€, (b) 0.50% above the Federal Funds Rate, (c) the Term SOFR for an interest period of
one-month plus 1.1%, or (d) 1.00%) plus the applicable margin or (ii) for a 4€eSOFR Loana€, the Term SOFR Rate for an interest period of one, three or six-months as selected by Company plus
the applicable margin. The applicable margin for ABR Loans ranges from 0.250% to 0.875% and the applicable margin for SOFR Loans ranges from 1.250% to 1.875%, depending on the
Company4a€™s net leverage ratio.We had $188.0A million outstanding on the Term Facility and nothing outstanding under the Revolving Facility at SeptemberA 30, 2024. Outstanding letters of
credit associated with the Revolving Facility at SeptemberA 30, 2024 were $11.7 million. As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, the Revolving Facility available for future borrowing was $88.3A million.
As of SeptemberA 30, 2024 the weighted average interest rate on outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facilities was 6.8%. Unamortized loan origination fees of $0.4A million at
SeptemberA 30, 2024 are included in long-term debt and finance lease liabilities.The May 31, 2022 acquisition of Smith Transport included the assumption of $46.8A million of debt and
financing lease obligations associated with the fleet of revenue equipment of which $19.2 million was outstanding at SeptemberA 30, 2024, (the "Smith Debt"). The Smith Debt has $6.3A million
of outstanding principal and is made up of installment notes with a weighted average interest rate of 4.4% at SeptemberA 30, 2024, due in monthly installments with final maturities at various
dates ranging from February 2027 to January 2029, secured by related revenue equipment. The remaining Smith Debt of $12.9A million are finance lease obligations with a weighted average
interest rate of 4.0% at SeptemberA 30, 2024, due in monthly installments with final maturities at various dates ranging from October 2024 to April 2026 with the weighted average remaining
lease term of 1.2 years.At SeptemberA 30, 2024, we had $30.7 million in cash and cash equivalents, $193.9A million in net outstanding debt, $12.9A million in finance lease liabilities, $9.6
million in operating lease obligations, and $88.3A million available borrowing capacity on the Revolving Facility.We have and will continue to pay down the debt we incurred and assumed to
complete our most recent acquisitions, while maintaining our regular quarterly dividends and funding our ongoing capital expenditure needs. Although this has been the priority year to date we
currently expect more capital to be shifted to net capital expenditure needs during the fourth quarter of 2024 and into early 2025. While we are paying down the debt, we do not expect to
declare special dividends or make significant acquisitions. We expect to evaluate the potential of share repurchases in addition to paying down the debt. The specific timing and amount of
future repurchases will be determined by market conditions, cash flow requirements, securities law limitations, 23and other factors. We continue to remain flexible to ensure the best
deployment of our capital given market conditions and the needs of the Company. The total estimated purchase commitments for tractors (net of tractor sale commitments) and trailer
equipment as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 was $58.6 million. These commitments extend into 2025. We anticipate continued disposition of older tractors and trailers in the Smith Transport and CFI
fleets throughout 2024 and beyond. During the calendar year of 2024, we currently expect net capital expenditures of approximately $35 to $40 million and $5 to $10 million of gains on disposal
of property and equipment. The majority of 2024 net capital expenditures is expected to happen during the fourth quarter of 2024. Cash flow provided by operating activities during the nine
months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 was $106.6 million as compared to $124.5 million during the same period of 2023.A This decrease was due to a $46.8A million reduction in net income net
of non-working capital items and partially offset by an increase of $28.9A million more cash provided by working capital items. Cash flows provided by operating activities was 13.2% of
operating revenues for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared with 13.4% for the same period of 2023.Cash provided by investing activities was $1.5 million during the nine
months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to cash used in investing activities of $81.8 million during the comparative 2023 period. The change is primarily due to the $83.7 million decrease
in net property and equipment cash used.Cash used in financing activities increased $31.6 million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 compared to the same period of 2023 due
mainly to $7.3A million more cash used for repurchases of common stock and an increase of $24.1A million of repayments of finance leases and debt during the nine months ended

SeptemberA 30, 2024. During the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 we repurchased 0.6 million shares compared to no shares repurchased during the same period of 2023. We have a
stock repurchase program with 6.0A million shares remaining authorized for repurchase under the program as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 and the program has no expiration date. There were 0.6
million shares repurchased in the open market during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and there were no shares repurchased in the open market during the nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2023. We expect to evaluate the potential of share repurchases in addition to paying down the debt. The specific timing and amount of future repurchases will be determined by
market conditions, cash flow requirements, securities law limitations, and other factors. We continue to remain flexible to ensure the best deployment of our capital given market conditions and
the needs of the Company.We had net payments of $10.0 million and $29.1 million for income taxes, net of refunds, for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023. The reduction in
taxes paid during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 is due to prior year over payment credit forward and reduced taxable income in 2024.Management believes we have adequate
liquidity to meet our current and projected needs in the foreseeable future.A Management believes we will continue to have significant capital requirements over the long-term, which we expect
to fund with current available cash, cash flows provided by operating activities, proceeds from the sale of used equipment and to a lesser extent, available capacity on the Credit
Facilities.24ITEM 3.A A A A A A A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKGeneralWe are exposed to market risk changes in interest rates during periods
when we have outstanding borrowings and from changes in commodity prices, primarily fuel and rubber. We do not currently use derivative financial instruments for risk management purposes,
although we have used instruments in the past for fuel price risk management, and do not use them for either speculation or trading. Because substantially all of our operations are confined to
the United States, we are not directly subject to a material foreign currency risk.Interest Rate RiskWe had $193.9 million net debt outstanding and $12.9A million in finance lease liabilities at
SeptemberA 30, 2024. Of the total $206.8A million net debt and finance lease liabilities outstanding, $188.0 million is subject to variable interest rates and the remainder is at fixed annual
interest rates. Interest rates associated with borrowings under the Credit Facilities are based on the SOFR rate plus a spread based on the Companya€ ™s net leverage ratio. Increases in
interest rates would currently impact our interest expense given our outstanding borrowings subject to variable interest rates. An increase of 1.0% in the SOFR rate would drive a decrease to
our income before income taxes by approximately $1.9 million annually based on the current amount of debt outstanding that is subject to variable interest rates.Commodity Price RiskWe are
subject to commodity price risk primarily with respect to purchases of fuel and rubber. We have fuel surcharge agreements with most customers that enable us to pass through most long-term
price increases therefore limiting our exposure to commodity price risk. Fuel surcharges that can be collected do not always fully offset an increase in the cost of fuel as we are not able to pass
through fuel costs associated with out-of-route miles, empty miles, and tractor idle time. Based on our actual fuel purchases for 2023, assuming miles driven, fuel surcharges as a percentage of
revenue, percentage of unproductive miles, and miles per gallon remained consistent with 2023 amounts, a $1.00 increase in the average price of fuel per gallon, year over year, would decrease
our income before income taxes by approximately $12.3 million in 2024. We use a significant amount of tires to maintain our revenue equipment. We are not able to pass through 100% of price
increases from tire suppliers due to the severity and timing of increases and current rate environment. Historically, we have sought to minimize tire price increases through bulk tire purchases
from our suppliers. Based on our expected tire purchases for 2024, a 10% increase in the price of tires would increase our tire purchase expense by $2.2 million, resulting in a corresponding
decrease in income before income taxes.25ITEM 4.A A A A A A A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURESEvaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceduresa€“ We have established disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) to ensure that material information relating to us, including our consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to the officers who certify our financial reports and to other members of senior management and the Board of Directors.As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an
evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Accounting and Financial Officer), of the effectiveness of the design and operations of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of SeptemberA 30, 2024.0ur management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures, or our internal controls, will prevent all errors or intentional fraud. An internal control system, no matter how well-
conceived and operated, can only provide reasonable, not total, assurance that the objectives of such internal controls are met.Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting &€“ There
have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended SeptemberA 30, 2024, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.26 PART IIITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGSWe are a party to ordinary, routine litigation and administrative proceedings incidental
to our business. These proceedings primarily involve claims for personal injury, property damage, cargo, and workersa€™ compensation incurred in connection with the transportation of
freight. We maintain insurance to cover liabilities arising from the transportation of freight for amounts in excess of certain self-insured retentions.ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORSWhile we attempt to
identify, manage, and mitigate risks and uncertainties associated with our business, some level of risk and uncertainty will always be present. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2023 and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024, in the sections entitled "Item 1A. Risk Factors," describe some of the risks and



uncertainties associated with our business. ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDSNone.ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR
SECURITIESNone.ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURESNot applicable.ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATIONDuring the third quarter of 2024 no director or officer adopted or terminated a Rule
10b5-1 trading arrangement or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement.27ITEM 6. EXHIBITS(a) Exhibits3.1Articles of Incorporation, as amended. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2017, dated November 9, 2017.3.2Amended and Restated Bylaws. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company's Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2017, dated November 9, 2017.31.1*Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act, as amended.31.2*Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended.32.1**Certification of
Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.32.2**Certification of the Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.101.INSXBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the interactive Data File
because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.101.SCHXBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document101.CALXBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Document101.DEFXBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document101.LABXBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document101.PREXBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
Linkbase Document104Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)A * Filed herewith.** Furnished herewith.28 SIGNATURESPursuant to the
requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused the report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.A HEARTLAND EXPRESS,

INC.A A Date:November 8, 2024By: /s/ Christopher A. StrainA Christopher A. StrainA Vice President of FinanceA and Chief Financial OfficerA (Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)29 EX-
31.1 2 exhibit3112024q3.htm EX-31.1 DocumentExhibit No. 31.1CertificationI, Michael J. Gerdin, certify that:1.I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Heartland Express Inc.
(the &€ceRegistranta€);2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial
statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;4.The Registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and we
have:a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being
prepared;b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report based on such evaluation; andd)Disclosed in this quarterly report any change in the Registranta€™s internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during the Registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The Registranta€™s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registranta€™s independent registered public accounting firm and the audit committee of Registranta€™ s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registranta€™ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; andb)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting. Date:November 8, 2024By:/s/ Michael J. GerdinMichael ]J.
GerdinChairman, President and Chief Executive Officer(Principal Executive Officer) EX-31.2 3 exhibit3122024g3.htm EX-31.2 DocumentExhibit No. 31.2CertificationI, Christopher A. Strain,
certify that:1.I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Heartland Express Inc. (the 4&€eRegistranta€);2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement
of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this quarterly report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;4.The Registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are
responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and we have:a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registranta€™ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report based on such evaluation; andd)Disclosed in this quarterly report
any change in the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The Registranta€™s other certifying
officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registranta€™s independent registered public accounting firm and the audit
committee of Registranta€™ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; andb)Any fraud,
whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registranta€™s internal control over financial reporting.Date:November 8, 2024By:/s/
Christopher A. StrainChristopher A. StrainVice President-FinanceTreasurer and Chief Financial Officer(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer) EX-32.1 4 exhibit3212024¢3.htm EX-32.1
DocumentExhibit No. 32.1CERTIFICATION OFPRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICERPURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002In connection with the Quarterly Report of Heartland Express, Inc. (the "Company"), on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2024 (the "Report"), filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, I, Michael J. Gerdin, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:1.The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, and2.The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.Date:November 8, 2024By:/s/
Michael J. GerdinMichael J. GerdinChairman, President and Chief Executive Officer EX-32.2 5 exhibit3222024g3.htm EX-32.2 DocumentExhibit No. 32.2CERTIFICATION OFPRINCIPAL
FINANCIAL OFFICERPURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TOSECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002In connection with the Quarterly Report of
Heartland Express, Inc. (the "Company"), on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2024 (the "Report"), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, I, Christopher A. Strain,
Vice President-Finance, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to the best of my knowledge:1.The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and2.The information contained in
the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.Date:November 8, 2024By:/s/ Christopher A. StrainChristopher A. StrainVice
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Term Line of Credit [Abstract] Diluted Diluted EPS, Per Share Amount Earnings Per Share, Diluted PEO Total Compensation Amount PEO Total Compensation Amount Property, Plant and
Equipment [Table] Property, Plant and Equipment [Table] Treasury stock, at cost; 12,194 and 11,650 shares in 2024 and 2023, respectively Treasury Stock, Value Trade receivables, net of $2.3
and $2.7 million allowance in 2024 and 2023, respectively Accounts Receivable, after Allowance for Credit Loss, Current Trading Arrangements, by Individual Trading Arrangements, by
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[Domain] Cash and Cash Equivalents [Domain] STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY Equity, Attributable to Parent [Abstract] Trade receivables Increase (Decrease) in Receivables Schedule of Earnings
Per Share, Basic and Diluted [Table Text Block] Schedule of Earnings Per Share, Basic and Diluted [Table Text Block] Executive Category: Executive Category [Axis] Indefinite-Lived Trade
Names Indefinite-Lived Trade Names Contract with Customer, Sales Channel [Axis] Contract with Customer, Sales Channel [Axis] Disclosure of restricted stock award activity Disclosure of



Share-Based Compensation Arrangements by Share-Based Payment Award [Table Text Block] Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments
Other than Options, Nonvested [Roll Forward] Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Nonvested, Number of Shares
[Roll Forward] Use of Estimates Significant Accounting Policies [Text Block] Name Measure Name Line of Credit Facility, Current Borrowing Capacity Line of Credit Facility, Current Borrowing
Capacity Name Forgone Recovery, Individual Name Goodwill Goodwill Equity Components [Axis] Equity Components [Axis] Swingline Facility Swingline Facility Swingline Facility Additional
402(v) Disclosure Additional 402(v) Disclosure [Text Block] Buildings Buildings and Improvements, Gross Underlying Securities Award Underlying Securities Amount Entity Small Business
Entity Small Business Local Phone Number Local Phone Number Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation Disclosure [Line Items] 2028 Finance Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Five
Dividends declared per share Dividends declared per share Common Stock, Dividends, Per Share, Declared Other comprehensive income, net of tax OCI, Debt Securities, Available-for-Sale,
Unrealized Holding Gain (Loss), before Adjustment, after Tax Operating lease liabilities less current portion Operating Lease, Liability, Noncurrent Forgone Recovery due to Violation of Home
Country Law, Amount Forgone Recovery due to Violation of Home Country Law, Amount Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible [Line Items] Significant
Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible [Line Items] Restricted cash included in other assets Restricted Cash and Investments, Noncurrent Depreciation and amortization
depreciation and amortization excluding depreciation on communication equipment depreciation and amortization excluding depreciation on communication equipment Lessee, Operating
Lease, Liability, Maturity Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Maturity [Table Text Block] Trailers [Member] 3715 Truck Trailers [Member] Cash and Cash Equivalents, Policy [Policy
Text Block] Cash and Cash Equivalents, Policy [Policy Text Block] Valuation Allowance [Abstract] Valuation Allowance [Abstract] Operating Revenue Revenues Finance Lease Obligations
Finance Lease Obligations Finance Lease Obligations Product and Service [Domain] Product and Service [Domain] Other Performance Measure, Amount Other Performance Measure, Amount
Aggregate Available Trading Arrangement, Securities Aggregate Available Amount RECONCILIATION OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH Restricted Cash and Cash
Equivalents [Abstract] INVESTING ACTIVITIES Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities [Abstract] Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Not Adopted Insider Trading Policies and
Procedures Not Adopted [Text Block] Business combination, assumption of debt and financing leases Business Combination Long-term Debt Business Combination Long-term Debt Sold revenue
equipment and property in other current assets Sold revenue equipment in other current assets Sold revenue equipment in other current assets Stockholders' Equity Stockholders' Equityl
Stockholders' Equity Award Type Award Type [Axis] Document Quarterly Report Document Quarterly Report Income tax receivable Income Taxes Receivable, Current Reconciliation of
Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Excluding Amounts Pertaining to Examined Tax Returns [Roll Forward] Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Excluding Amounts Pertaining to Examined Tax
Returns [Roll Forward] Interest Expense Interest Expense Purchased property and equipment in accounts payable Capital Expenditures Incurred but Not yet Paid Dividends on common
stock,A $0.02 per share Dividends, Common Stock Intangible Assets Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets Acquired Property and equipment, gross Property, Plant and Equipment, Gross Debt
Instrument, Covenant, Distributions Max Leverage Ratio Debt Instrument, Covenant, Distributions Max Leverage Ratio Debt Instrument, Covenant, Distributions Max Leverage Ratio Trading
Arrangement: Trading Arrangement [Axis] Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Undiscounted Excess Amount Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Undiscounted Excess Amount Use of Estimates,
Policy [Policy Text Block] Use of Estimates, Policy [Policy Text Block] PEO Actually Paid Compensation Amount PEO Actually Paid Compensation Amount Timing of Transfer of Good or Service
[Axis] Timing of Transfer of Good or Service [Axis] Entity File Number Entity File Number Thereafter Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, after Year Five Operating lease liabilities -
current portion Operating Lease, Liability, Current Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Amortization Expense Amortization of Intangible Assets Entity Shell Company Entity Shell Company 2026
Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Three Business Acquisition, Acquiree [Domain] Business Acquisition, Acquiree [Domain] Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Net Finite-Lived
Intangible Assets, Net Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items] Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items] New Accounting Pronouncements, Policy [Policy Text Block] New Accounting
Pronouncements, Policy [Policy Text Block] Restatement Determination Date Restatement Determination Date Accrued income taxes Increase (Decrease) in Income Taxes Payable Additions
based on tax positions related to current year Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Increase Resulting from Current Period Tax Positions Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement
Adopted [Flag] Beginning of period End of period Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents Finite-Lived
Intangible Assets, Accumulated Amortization Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Accumulated Amortization 2025 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Two Interest income Investment
Income, Interest Document [Domain] Document [Domain] Stock Price or TSR Estimation Method Stock Price or TSR Estimation Method [Text Block] Common Stock, Shares, Issued Common
Stock, Shares, Issued Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Vested in Period Share-Based Compensation
Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Vested in Period Security Exchange Name Security Exchange Name Outstanding Debt on Term Facility
Outstanding Debt on Term Facility Outstanding Debt on Term Facility Employee Stock Option Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Option [Member] Share-based Payment Arrangement,
Nonvested Award, Cost Not yet Recognized, Period for Recognition Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Nonvested Award, Cost Not yet Recognized, Period for Recognition Property, Plant, and
Equipment, Salvage Value Property, Plant, and Equipment, Salvage Value Total operating expenses Costs and Expenses Maximum [Member] Maximum [Member] Comprehensive (loss) income
Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax, Attributable to Parent Employee Service Share-based Compensation, Nonvested Awards, Total Compensation Cost Not yet Recognized Share-Based
Payment Arrangement, Nonvested Award, Cost Not yet Recognized, Amount Document Type Document Type Contract with Customer, Duration [Axis] Contract with Customer, Duration [Axis]
Tabular List, Table Tabular List [Table Text Block] Entity Address, Address Line One Entity Address, Address Line One Repurchases of common stock Treasury Stock, Value, Acquired, Cost
Method 2026 Finance Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Three Stock Based Compensation Share-Based Payment Arrangement [Text Block] Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents, Period Increase (Decrease), Excluding Exchange Rate Effect 2024 (remaining) Finance Lease,
Liability, to be Paid, Year One Business Acquisition [Axis] Business Acquisition [Axis] Accounts Receivable, Allowance for Credit Loss, Current Accounts Receivable, Allowance for Credit Loss,
Current Right of Use Operating Lease Assets Acquired Right of Use Operating Lease Assets Right of Use Operating Lease Assets Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Income Tax Penalties and Interest
Accrued Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Income Tax Penalties and Interest Accrued Schedule of Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Table Text Block] Schedule of Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Table
Text Block] Variable Rate [Axis] Variable Rate [Axis] Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and accrued expenses Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities Income
Statement [Abstract] Income Statement [Abstract] Financial Statement Location [Axis] Financial Statement Location [Axis] Financial Statement Location [Axis] Accessorial and other revenues
Revenue from Contract with Customer, Including Assessed Tax Contract with Customer, Basis of Pricing [Axis] Contract with Customer, Basis of Pricing [Axis] Title of 12(b) Security Title of
12(b) Security Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Adopted Insider Trading Policies and Procedures Adopted [Flag] Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Not Yet Determined Aggregate
Erroneous Compensation Not Yet Determined [Text Block] Unvested at beginning of year, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value (in dollars) Outstanding (unvested) at end of year, Weighted
Average Grant Date Fair Value (in dollars) Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Nonvested, Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Value Stock-based compensation, net of tax Shares Issued, Value, Share-Based Payment Arrangement, after Forfeiture Other current assets Other Assets, Current Income Tax
Disclosure [Abstract] Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract] Forgone Recovery due to Expense of Enforcement, Amount Forgone Recovery due to Expense of Enforcement, Amount Operating Leases
[Abstract] Operating Leases [Abstract] Operating Leases Share-based Payment Arrangement [Abstract] Share-Based Payment Arrangement [Abstract] Entity Tax Identification Number Entity
Tax Identification Number Communications and utilities Direct Communications and Utilities Costs Accordion Feature [Axis] Accordion Feature [Axis] Accordion Feature Statistical
Measurement [Axis] Statistical Measurement [Axis] Entity Interactive Data Current Entity Interactive Data Current Disaggregation of Revenue [Table] Disaggregation of Revenue [Table] Long-
Term Debt Long-Term Debt [Text Block] Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible, Amount of Unrecorded Benefit Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax
Benefits is Reasonably Possible, Amount of Unrecorded Benefit Total Shareholder Return Amount Total Shareholder Return Amount CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH
Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash, and Restricted Cash Equivalents [Abstract] Repurchases of common stock Payments for Repurchase of Common Stock Entity Common Stock, Shares
Outstanding Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding Adjustment To PEO Compensation, Footnote Adjustment To PEO Compensation, Footnote [Text Block] Noncash investing and financing
activities: Cash Flow, Noncash Investing and Financing Activities Disclosure [Abstract] Segments [Domain] Segments [Domain] Rent and purchased transportation Rent and purchased
transportation Payment of rentals incurred in the period on property and equipment including payments made to independent contractors for providing and operating revenue equipment owned
and maintained by independent contractors. Consolidation Items [Domain] Consolidation Items [Domain] Retained earnings Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit) Measure: Measure [Axis]
Commitments and Contingencies Disclosure [Abstract] Commitments and Contingencies Disclosure [Abstract] Name Outstanding Recovery, Individual Name Entity Incorporation, State or
Country Code Entity Incorporation, State or Country Code CURRENT ASSETS Assets, Current [Abstract] Leases [Abstract] Leases [Abstract] Entity Address, State or Province Entity Address,
State or Province Compensation Actually Paid vs. Total Shareholder Return Compensation Actually Paid vs. Total Shareholder Return [Text Block] Finance Lease, Liability, Payment, Due
Finance Lease, Liability, to be Paid OPERATING ACTIVITIES Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities [Abstract] Common Stock, Shares, Outstanding Common Stock, Shares,
Outstanding Insurance accruals Self Insurance Reserve, Current PEO PEO [Member] Other operating expenses Other Cost and Expense, Operating Net Income (Loss) Net Income Loss EPS Net
Income Loss EPS Common Stock, Par or Stated Value Per Share Common Stock, Par or Stated Value Per Share Operating taxes and licenses Cost, Direct Tax and License Class of Stock
[Domain] Class of Stock [Domain] Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities Customer [Domain] Customer [Domain] Outstanding
Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Outstanding Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Effective Income Tax Rate, Percent Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliation, Percent
Operating Lease, Liability Operating Lease, Liability Restricted Stock Shares Authorized Restricted Stock Shares Authorized Restricted Stock Shares Authorized Fuel surcharge revenue Fuel
surcharge revenue Fuel surcharge revenue Total Shareholder Return Vs Peer Group Total Shareholder Return Vs Peer Group [Text Block] Prepaid expenses and other current assets Increase
(Decrease) in Prepaid Expense and Other Assets Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Aggregate Erroneous Compensation Amount Property, Equipment, and Depreciation Property,
Plant and Equipment Disclosure [Text Block] All Executive Categories All Executive Categories [Member] Weighted Average Interest Rate, Credit Facility Weighted Average Interest Rate,
Credit Facility Weighted Average Interest Rate, Credit Facility LONG-TERM LIABILITIES Liabilities, Noncurrent [Abstract] Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents [Axis] Restricted Cash and
Cash Equivalents [Axis] Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Adopted [Flag] Property, Plant and Equipment, Type [Domain] Long-Lived Tangible Asset
[Domain] Number of Segments Number of Reportable Segments Net (loss) income per share Earnings Per Share [Abstract] Capital stock, common, $.01 par value; authorized 395,000 shares;
issued 90,689 in 2024 and 2023; outstanding 78,495 and 79,039 in 2024 and 2023, respectively Common Stock, Value, Issued Unrecorded Unconditional Purchase Obligation Unrecorded
Unconditional Purchase Obligation Trade Names [Member] Trade Names [Member] Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures, Table Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures [Table Text
Block] Other accruals Other Accrued Liabilities Segment Reporting, Policy [Policy Text Block] Segment Reporting, Policy [Policy Text Block] Total current assets Assets, Current Other
Intangible Assets, Net Other Intangible Assets, Net Repayments of finance leases and debt Finance Lease, Principal Payments Revenue from Contract with Customer [Abstract] Revenue from
Contract with Customer [Abstract] All Individuals All Individuals [Member] SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION Supplemental Cash Flow Information [Abstract]
Entity Filer Category Entity Filer Category Debt Acquired Debt Debt Non-PEO NEO Average Total Compensation Amount Non-PEO NEO Average Total Compensation Amount Statement [Table]
Statement [Table] Subsegments [Domain] Subsegments [Domain] Current Fiscal Year End Date Current Fiscal Year End Date Earnings Per Share, Policy [Policy Text Block] Earnings Per Share,
Policy [Policy Text Block] Intangible Assets and Goodwill Goodwill and Intangible Assets Disclosure [Text Block] Term Facility Term Facility Term Facility Balance beginning of period Balance
end of period Unrecognized Tax Benefits PEO Name PEO Name Preferred Stock, Shares Authorized Preferred Stock, Shares Authorized Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-
based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Grants in Period, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment
Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Grants in Period, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value Share Repurchases [Abstract] Share Repurchases [Abstract] Note 10.A A Share
Repurchases [Abstract] Consolidated Balance Sheets Parentheticals [Abstract] Consolidated Balance Sheets Parentheticals [Abstract] Consolidated Balance Sheets Parentheticals [Abstract]
2027 Finance Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Four Income Tax Uncertainties [Abstract] Income Tax Uncertainties [Abstract] Net cash provided by operating activities Net Cash Provided by
(Used in) Operating Activities Class of Stock [Axis] Class of Stock [Axis] Erroneously Awarded Compensation Recovery Erroneously Awarded Compensation Recovery [Table] Weighted average
shares outstanding Weighted average shares outstanding [Abstract] Weighted average shares outstanding [Abstract] Depreciation and amortization Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, Current Award Timing, How MNPI Considered Award Timing, How MNPI Considered [Text Block] Statement
of Financial Position [Abstract] Statement of Financial Position [Abstract] Balance Balance Equity, Attributable to Parent Consolidation Items [Axis] Consolidation Items [Axis] Unrecognized Tax
Benefits that Would Impact Effective Tax Rate Unrecognized Tax Benefits that Would Impact Effective Tax Rate Schedule of Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Table] Schedule of Finite-Lived
Intangible Assets [Table] DEI [Abstract] DEI [Abstract] DEI [Abstract] Valuation Allowance, Amount Deferred Tax Assets, Valuation Allowance Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents Restricted
Cash and Cash Equivalents Subsegments [Axis] Subsegments [Axis] Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Major Class Name [Domain] Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Major Class Name [Domain]
Subsegments Consolidation Items [Axis] Subsegments Consolidation Items [Axis] (Loss) income before income taxes Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes,
Noncontrolling Interest Amortization Period of Tires Amortization Period of Tires Amortization Period of Tires Property, Plant and Equipment, Type [Axis] Long-Lived Tangible Asset [Axis]
Available amount for issuance of letters of credit Available Issuance of Line of Credit Available Issuance of Line of Credit Preferred Stock, Shares Issued Preferred Stock, Shares Issued Basis of
Presentation and Accounting Pronouncements [Abstract] Basis of Presentation and Accounting Pronouncements [Abstract] Basis of Presentation and Accounting Pronouncements [Abstract]
Entity Emerging Growth Company Entity Emerging Growth Company OTHER INTANGIBLES, NET Intangible Assets, Net (Excluding Goodwill) Named Executive Officers, Footnote Named
Executive Officers, Footnote [Text Block] Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Period Increase (Decrease) Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Period Increase (Decrease) Document Fiscal Period Focus
Document Fiscal Period Focus 2024 (remaining) Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year One Amortization period (years) Finite-Lived Intangible Asset, Useful Life Pay vs
Performance Disclosure, Table Pay vs Performance [Table Text Block] 2027 Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid, Year Four Net (loss) income Net income2 Net income Title Trading
Arrangement, Individual Title Stock-based Compensation Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Noncash Expense Capital Stock, Common Common Stock [Member] Income taxes payable
Accrued Income Taxes, Noncurrent Individual: Individual [Axis] Entity Address, Postal Zip Code Entity Address, Postal Zip Code City Area Code City Area Code Product and Service [Axis]
Product and Service [Axis] Earnings Per Share Earnings Per Share [Text Block] Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Reduction Resulting from
Lapse of Applicable Statute of Limitations Document Fiscal Year Focus Document Fiscal Year Focus Debt Acquired, Weighted Average Interest Rate Debt, Weighted Average Interest Rate
Geographical [Domain] Geographical [Domain] fuel surcharge [Member] fuel surcharge [Member] Fuel Surcharge [Member] Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Income Tax Penalties and Interest
Expense Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Income Tax Penalties and Interest Expense Minimum [Member] Minimum [Member] Property and equipment, net Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Exercise Price Award Exercise Price Finite-Lived Intangible Assets by Major Class [Axis] Finite-Lived Intangible Assets by Major Class [Axis] Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is
Reasonably Possible [Table] Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible [Table] Statement of Cash Flows [Abstract] Statement of Cash Flows [Abstract] Dividends,
Common Stock, Cash Dividends, Common Stock, Cash ASSETS Assets [Abstract] Award Timing MNPI Disclosure Award Timing MNPI Disclosure [Text Block] Earnings Per Share, Basic, by
Common Class, Including Two Class Method [Line Items] Earnings Per Share, Basic, by Common Class, Including Two Class Method [Line Items] Goodwill and Intangible Assets Disclosure
[Abstract] Goodwill and Intangible Assets Disclosure [Abstract] Contract with Customer, Basis of Pricing [Domain] Contract with Customer, Basis of Pricing [Domain] Shares withheld for
employee taxes related to stock-based compensation Payment, Tax Withholding, Share-Based Payment Arrangement Finance Leases [Abstract] Finance Leases [Abstract] Finance Leases



Subsegments Consolidation Items [Domain] Subsegments Consolidation Items [Domain] Cash paid during the period for income taxes, net of refunds Income Taxes Paid, Net Net cash used in
financing activities Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities Deferred Income Taxes, Net Deferred Income Tax Assets, Net Commitments and Contingencies Commitments and
Contingencies Disclosure [Text Block] Change in other assets Payments for (Proceeds from) Other Investing Activities Retained Earnings Retained Earnings [Member] Long-term debt and
finance lease liabilities - current portion Long-Term Debt, Current Maturities Unsecured Credit Facility Unsecured Credit Facility Unsecured Credit Facility Adjustment to Non-PEO NEO
Compensation Footnote Adjustment to Non-PEO NEO Compensation Footnote [Text Block] Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Liabilities and Equity OTHER ASSETS Other Assets, Noncurrent
Peer Group Total Shareholder Return Amount Peer Group Total Shareholder Return Amount Basic Basic EPS, Per Share Amount Earnings Per Share, Basic OPERATING LEASE RIGHT OF USE
ASSETS Operating Lease, Right-of-Use Asset Schedule of Long-term Debt Instruments [Table] Schedule of Long-Term Debt Instruments [Table] Equity Valuation Assumption Difference,
Footnote Equity Valuation Assumption Difference, Footnote [Text Block] Erroneous Compensation Analysis Erroneous Compensation Analysis [Text Block] Diluted EPS, Net Income Net Income
(Loss) Available to Common Stockholders, Diluted Arrangement Duration Trading Arrangement Duration Entity Address, City or Town Entity Address, City or Town Award Timing MNPI
Considered Award Timing MNPI Considered [Flag] Outstanding Debt on Revolving Facility Outstanding Debt on Revolving Facility Outstanding Debt on Revolving Facility Basis of Presentation
[Policy Text Block] Consolidation, Policy [Policy Text Block] Total long-term liabilities Liabilities, Noncurrent Document Transition Report Document Transition Report Award Timing
Predetermined Award Timing Predetermined [Flag] Financial Statement Location [Domain] Financial Statement Location [Domain] Financial Statement Location [Domain] Termination Date
Trading Arrangement Termination Date Furniture and fixtures Furniture and Fixtures, Gross Common Stock, Shares Authorized Common Stock, Shares Authorized Document Information
[Table] Document Information [Table] Net (loss) income Net Income Net Income Gain on Sale of Properties Gain on Sale of Properties Gain on Sale of Properties Use of Estimates [Abstract] Use
of Estimates [Abstract] Use of Estimates [Abstract] Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities [Abstract] All Trading Arrangements All Trading Arrangements [Member] All Adjustments to Compensation All Adjustments to Compensation
[Member] Timing of Transfer of Good or Service [Domain] Timing of Transfer of Good or Service [Domain] Award Timing Disclosures [Line Items] Compensation Amount Outstanding Recovery
Compensation Amount Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Forfeitures, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value
Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Forfeitures, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value Document Information
[Line Items] Document Information [Line Items] Gain on disposal of property and equipment Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Property Plant Equipment, Excluding Oil and Gas Property and Timber
Property Effect of restricted stock Dilutive Securities, Effect on Basic Earnings Per Share, Options and Restrictive Stock Units Finance Lease, Liability Finance Lease, Liability Income Tax,
Policy [Policy Text Block] Income Tax, Policy [Policy Text Block] Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Forfeited in
Period Share-Based Compensation Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Forfeited in Period Debt Instrument, Covenant, Maximum Net
Leverage Ratio Debt Instrument, Covenant, Maximum Net Leverage Ratio Debt Instrument, Covenant, Maximum Net Leverage Ratio PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Property, Plant and
Equipment, Gross [Abstract] Insider Trading Arrangements [Line Items] Schedule of Segment Reporting Information, by Segment [Table] Schedule of Segment Reporting Information, by
Segment [Table] Shop and service equipment Machinery and Equipment, Gross Entity Registrant Name Entity Registrant Name Material Terms of Trading Arrangement Material Terms of
Trading Arrangement [Text Block] Award Timing Method Award Timing Method [Text Block] Effect of restricted stock, Shares Incremental Common Shares Attributable to Dilutive Effect of
Share-Based Payment Arrangements Max Annual Dividend Max Annual Dividend Max Annual Dividend Restricted Stock Shares, Remaining Available Restricted Stock Shares, Remaining
Available Restricted Stock Shares, Remaining Available Adjustment to Compensation, Amount Adjustment to Compensation Amount Proceeds from sale of property and equipment Proceeds
from Sale of Property, Plant, and Equipment Insurance and claims Operating Insurance and Claims Costs, Production Document Period End Date Document Period End Date Compensation
Actually Paid vs. Net Income Compensation Actually Paid vs. Net Income [Text Block] Adoption Date Trading Arrangement Adoption Date Peer Group Issuers, Footnote Peer Group Issuers,
Footnote [Text Block] Less accumulated depreciation Accumulated Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization, Property, Plant, and Equipment Finance Lease, Liability, Noncurrent Finance
Lease, Liability, Noncurrent Finance Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent Finance Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent Treasury Stock Treasury Stock, Common
[Member] Entity Central Index Key Entity Central Index Key Segment Reporting Information [Line Items] Segment Reporting Information [Line Items] Basis of Presentation and Significant
Accounting Policies [Text Block] Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies [Text Block] Uncommitted Accordion Feature Uncommitted Accordion Feature Uncommitted
Accordion Feature Restricted cash included in other current assets Restricted Cash and Investments, Current Stock-based compensation expense Share-Based Payment Arrangement, Expense
Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated Non-Rule 10b5-1 Arrangement Terminated [Flag] Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Gross Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Gross Federal and state income
taxes (benefit) Income Tax Expense (Benefit) CompensationA and benefits Employee-related Liabilities, Current Name Trading Arrangement, Individual Name Cash and Cash Equivalents
[Abstract] Cash and Cash Equivalents [Abstract] Operations and maintenance Operating Costs and Expenses Operating Lease, Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term Operating Lease,
Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term Right of Use Asset associated with the leased terminal facilities Right of Use Asset associated with the leased terminal facilities Right of Use Asset
associated with the leased terminal facilities Compensation Actually Paid vs. Company Selected Measure Compensation Actually Paid vs. Company Selected Measure [Text Block] Amendment
Flag Amendment Flag Deferred income taxes Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income Taxes Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents Cash and Cash Equivalents, at Carrying Value
Operating Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent Operating Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent Cash paid during the period for interest expense Interest Paid,
Excluding Capitalized Interest, Operating Activities Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Shares Issued in Period Share-Based Compensation Arrangement
by Share-Based Payment Award, Shares Issued in Period Treasury Stock, Shares, Acquired Treasury Stock, Shares, Acquired Debt Instrument, Basis Spread on Variable Rate Debt Instrument,
Basis Spread on Variable Rate Compensation Actually Paid vs. Other Measure Compensation Actually Paid vs. Other Measure [Text Block] Long-term debt and finance lease liabilities less
current portion Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Maturities Finance Lease, Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term Finance Lease, Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term Diluted
Diluted EPS, Shares Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Diluted Forgone Recovery, Explanation of Impracticability Forgone Recovery, Explanation of Impracticability [Text
Block] Operating Expenses Operating Expenses [Abstract] Finance Lease, Liability, Undiscounted Excess Amount Finance Lease, Liability, Undiscounted Excess Amount Revenue from Contract
with Customer [Text Block] Revenue from Contract with Customer [Text Block] Contract with Customer, Duration [Domain] Contract with Customer, Duration [Domain] Purchases of property
and equipment Payments to Acquire Property, Plant, and Equipment Company Selected Measure Amount Company Selected Measure Amount Additional paid-in capital Additional Paid in
Capital, Common Stock Additional Paid-in Capital Additional Paid-in Capital [Member] Assets Assets Name Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures, Individual Name Thereafter Finance
Lease, Liability, to be Paid, after Year Five Basis of Presentation [Abstract] Basis of Presentation [Abstract] Basis of Presentation [Abstract] Debt-related amortization Amortization of Debt
Issuance Costs Prepaid tires Other Prepaid Expense, Current Salaries, wages, and benefits Labor and Related Expense Insurance accruals Self Insurance Reserve, Noncurrent Share-based
Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Vested in Period, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value Share-Based Compensation
Arrangement by Share-Based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Vested in Period, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value Non-NEOs Non-NEOs [Member] Lessee,
Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid Common stock dividends declared in accounts payable Common stock dividends declared in accounts payable
Common stock dividends declared in accounts payable Federal Funds Rate [Member] Prime Rate [Member] Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and Cash Equivalents Disclosure [Text Block]
Segment Information Segment Reporting Disclosure [Text Block] Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits Summary Of Positions For Which Significant Change In Unrecognized Tax Benefits
Is Reasonably Possible Text Block [Text Block] Summary Of Positions For Which Significant Change In Unrecognized Tax Benefits Is Reasonably Possible Text Block FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities [Abstract] Non-PEO NEO Non-PEO NEO [Member] Equity Component [Domain] Equity Component [Domain] Finance Lease, Liability,
Current Finance Lease, Liability, Current Adjustment to Compensation: Adjustment to Compensation [Axis] Non-GAAP Measure Description Non-GAAP Measure Description [Text Block] Debt
Instrument [Line Items] Debt Instrument [Line Items] ABR Loan ABR Loan [Member] ABR Loan Contract with Customer, Asset, after Allowance for Credit Loss Contract with Customer, Asset,
after Allowance for Credit Loss Scenario [Axis] Scenario [Axis] Basic Basic EPS, Shares Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Basic Entity Current Reporting Status Entity Current
Reporting Status Unamortized Debt Issuance Expense Unamortized Debt Issuance Expense Operating (loss) income Operating Income (Loss) Treasury stock, shares Treasury stock, sharesl
Treasury stock, shares Revenue equipment REVENUE EQUIPMENT Carrying amount at the balance sheet date for long lived physical assets used in the normal conduct of business and not
intended for resale. Revenue equipment includes tractors and trailers used for purposes of providing transportation services. Pay vs Performance Disclosure Pay vs Performance Disclosure
[Table] Accordion Feature [Domain] Accordion Feature [Domain] Accordion Feature [Domain] Segments [Axis] Segments [Axis] Statement [Line Items] Statement [Line Items] Land and land
improvements Land and Land Improvements Property, Plant and Depreciation [Abstract] Property, Plant and Depreciation [Abstract] Property, Plant and Depreciation [Abstract] Property, Plant
and Equipment, Policy [Policy Text Block] Property, Plant and Equipment, Policy [Policy Text Block] Scenario [Domain] Scenario [Domain] Forgone Recovery due to Disqualification of Tax
Benefits, Amount Forgone Recovery due to Disqualification of Tax Benefits, Amount Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures Awards Close in Time to MNPI Disclosures [Table] Customer
Relationships [Member] Customer Relationships [Member] Restricted Cash included in other current assets Restricted Cash and Investments, Current, Total Restricted Cash and Investments,
Current, Total Contract with Customer, Sales Channel [Domain] Contract with Customer, Sales Channel [Domain] Number of Shares Authorized to be Repurchased Stock Repurchase Program,
Number of Shares Authorized to be Repurchased EX-101.PRE 10 htld-20240930_pre.xml XBRL TAXONOMY EXTENSION PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT XML 12 R1.htm IDEA: XBRL
DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Cover - shares 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Nov. 06, 2024 Document Information [Line Items] A A Title of 12(b) Security Common Stock, $0.01 par value A Entity
Incorporation, State or Country Code NV A Entity Registrant Name HEARTLAND EXPRESS INC A City Area Code 319 A Local Phone Number 645-7060 A Entity Central Index Key
0000799233 A Document Type 10-Q A Document Period End Date Sep. 30, 2024 A Entity File Number 0-15087 A Document Fiscal Year Focus 2024 A Document Fiscal Period Focus Q3 A
Current Fiscal Year End Date --12-31 A Amendment Flag false A Entity Filer Category Large Accelerated Filer A Entity Emerging Growth Company false A Entity Small Business false A
Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding A 78,496,760 Entity Tax Identification Number 93-0926999 A Entity Address, Address Line One 901 Heartland Way, A Entity Address, City or Town
North Liberty, A Entity Address, State or Province IA A Entity Address, Postal Zip Code 52317 A Trading Symbol HTLD A Security Exchange Name NASDAQ A Entity Shell Company false A
Entity Current Reporting Status Yes A Entity Interactive Data Current Yes A Document Quarterly Report true A Document Transition Report false A X - DefinitionBoolean flag that is true
when the XBRL content amends previously-filed or accepted submission. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei AmendmentFlag Namespace Prefix: dei_Data Type:
xbrli:booleanItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionArea code of city + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei CityAreaCode Namespace Prefix: dei_
Data Type: xbrli:normalizedStringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionEnd date of current fiscal year in the format --MM-DD. + ReferencesNo definition available. +
Details Name: dei CurrentFiscalYearEndDate Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: xbrli:gMonthDayltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionFiscal period values are FY, Q1,
Q2, and Q3. 1st, 2nd and 3rd quarter 10-Q or 10-QT statements have value Q1, Q2, and Q3 respectively, with 10-K, 10-KT or other fiscal year statements having FY. + ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: dei DocumentFiscalPeriodFocus Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: dei:fiscalPeriodItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThis is focus fiscal
year of the document report in YYYY format. For a 2006 annual report, which may also provide financial information from prior periods, fiscal 2006 should be given as the fiscal year focus.
Example: 2006. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei DocumentFiscalYearFocus Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: xbrli:gYearltemType Balance Type: na Period Type:
duration X - DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or
many axes to the table. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei DocumentInformationLineltems Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na
Period Type: duration X - DefinitionFor the EDGAR submission types of Form 8-K: the date of the report, the date of the earliest event reported; for the EDGAR submission types of Form N-1A:
the filing date; for all other submission types: the end of the reporting or transition period. The format of the date is YYYY-MM-DD. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
dei_DocumentPeriodEndDate Namespace Prefix: deiData Type: xbrli:dateltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionBoolean flag that is true only for a form used as an
quarterly report. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Form 10-Q -Number 240 -Section 308 -Subsection a + Details Name:
dei_DocumentQuarterlyReport Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:booleanItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionBoolean flag that is true only for a form used as a
transition report. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Forms 10-K, 10-Q, 20-F -Number 240 -Section 13 -Subsection a-1 + Details
Name: dei_DocumentTransitionReport Namespace Prefix: dei_Data Type: xbrli:booleanltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe type of document being provided
(such as 10-K, 10-Q, 485BPOS, etc). The document type is limited to the same value as the supporting SEC submission type, or the word 'Other'. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details
Name: dei_DocumentType Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei:submissionTypeltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAddress Line 1 such as Attn, Building Name,
Street Name + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei_EntityAddressAddressLinel Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:normalizedStringltemType Balance Type: na Period
Type: duration X - DefinitionName of the City or Town + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei_EntityAddressCityOrTown Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type:
xbrli:normalizedStringItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionCode for the postal or zip code + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
dei_EntityAddressPostalZipCode Namespace Prefix: dei_Data Type: xbrli:normalizedStringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionName of the state or province. +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei EntityAddressStateOrProvince Namespace Prefix: dei_Data Type: dei:stateOrProvinceltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration
X - DefinitionA unique 10-digit SEC-issued value to identify entities that have filed disclosures with the SEC. It is commonly abbreviated as CIK. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Exchange Act -Number 240 -Section 12 -Subsection b-2 + Details Name: dei_EntityCentrallndexKey Namespace Prefix:
dei_ Data Type: dei:centralIndexKeyltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionIndicate number of shares or other units outstanding of each of registrant's classes of capital
or common stock or other ownership interests, if and as stated on cover of related periodic report. Where multiple classes or units exist define each class/interest by adding class of stock items
such as Common Class A [Member], Common Class B [Member] or Partnership Interest [Member] onto the Instrument [Domain] of the Entity Listings, Instrument. + ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: dei EntityCommonStockSharesOutstanding Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: xbrli:sharesltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionIndicate 'Yes
or 'No' whether registrants (1) have filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter
period that registrants were required to file such reports), and (2) have been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. This information should be based on the registrant's
current or most recent filing containing the related disclosure. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei_EntityCurrentReportingStatus Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type:
dei:yesNoltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionIndicate if registrant meets the emerging growth company criteria. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Exchange Act -Number 240 -Section 12 -Subsection b-2 + Details Name: dei_EntityEmergingGrowthCompany Namespace
Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:booleanltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionCommission file number. The field allows up to 17 characters. The prefix may contain 1-3
digits, the sequence number may contain 1-8 digits, the optional suffix may contain 1-4 characters, and the fields are separated with a hyphen. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details
Name: dei_EntityFileNumber Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: dei:fileNumberltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionIndicate whether the registrant is one of the
following: Large Accelerated Filer, Accelerated Filer, Non-accelerated Filer. Definitions of these categories are stated in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. This information should be based on



the registrant's current or most recent filing containing the related disclosure. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Exchange Act -
Number 240 -Section 12 -Subsection b-2 + Details Name: dei_EntityFilerCategory Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei:filerCategoryltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionTwo-character EDGAR code representing the state or country of incorporation. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei_EntityIncorporationStateCountryCode
Namespace Prefix: dei_Data Type: dei:edgarStateCountryltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionBoolean flag that is true when the registrant has submitted
electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to submit such files). + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Regulation S-T -Number 232 -Section 405 + Details Name:
dei_EntityInteractiveDataCurrent Namespace Prefix: deiData Type: dei:yesNoltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe exact name of the entity filing the report as
specified in its charter, which is required by forms filed with the SEC. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Exchange Act -Number
240 -Section 12 -Subsection b-2 + Details Name: dei_EntityRegistrantName Namespace Prefix: deiData Type: xbrli:normalizedStringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionBoolean flag that is true when the registrant is a shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef
-Publisher SEC -Name Exchange Act -Number 240 -Section 12 -Subsection b-2 + Details Name: dei_EntityShellCompany Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:booleanltemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionIndicates that the company is a Smaller Reporting Company (SRC). + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher
SEC -Name Exchange Act -Number 240 -Section 12 -Subsection b-2 + Details Name: dei_EntitySmallBusiness Namespace Prefix: dei_Data Type: xbrli:booleanItemType Balance Type: na Period
Type: duration X - DefinitionThe Tax Identification Number (TIN), also known as an Employer Identification Number (EIN), is a unique 9-digit value assigned by the IRS. + ReferencesReference
1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Exchange Act -Number 240 -Section 12 -Subsection b-2 + Details Name: dei_EntityTaxIdentificationNumber Namespace
Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei:employerlditemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionLocal phone number for entity. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
dei_LocalPhoneNumber Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: xbrli:normalizedStringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionTitle of a 12(b) registered security. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Exchange Act -Number 240 -Section 12 -Subsection b + Details Name: dei_Security12bTitle
Namespace Prefix: dei_ Data Type: dei:securityTitleItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionName of the Exchange on which a security is registered. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Exchange Act -Number 240 -Section 12 -Subsection d1-1 + Details Name:
dei_SecurityExchangeName Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: dei:edgarExchangeCodeltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionTrading symbol of an instrument as listed
on an exchange. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: dei TradingSymbol Namespace Prefix: dei Data Type: dei:tradingSymbolltemType Balance Type: na Period Type:
duration XML 13 R2.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Consolidated Balance Sheets - USD ($) $ in Thousands Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023 CURRENT ASSETS A A Cash and cash
equivalents $ 30,739 $ 28,123 Trade receivables, net of $2.3 and $2.7 million allowance in 2024 and 2023, respectively 100,017 102,740 Prepaid tires 9,372 10,650 Other current assets 15,772
17,602 Income tax receivable 1,228 10,157 Total current assets 157,128 169,272 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT A A Land and land improvements 119,182 118,682 Buildings 151,679 149,780
Furniture and fixtures 6,824 6,835 Shop and service equipment 22,106 20,822 Revenue equipment 995,743 1,021,208 Construction in progress 2,051 2,582 Property and equipment, gross
1,297,585 1,319,909 Less accumulated depreciation 536,948 434,558 Property and equipment, net 760,637 885,351 Goodwill 322,597 322,597 OTHER INTANGIBLES, NET 94,774 98,537
OTHER ASSETS 15,570 14,953 Deferred Income Taxes, Net 1,158 1,494 OPERATING LEASE RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 9,589 17,442 Assets 1,361,453 1,509,646 CURRENT LIABILITIES A A
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 41,618 37,777 CompensationA and benefits 29,294 28,492 Insurance accruals 24,561 21,507 Long-term debt and finance lease liabilities - current
portion 8,734 9,303 Operating lease liabilities - current portion 6,790 9,259 Other accruals 23,728 17,138 Total current liabilities 134,725 123,476 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES A A Income taxes
payable 6,119 6,270 Long-term debt and finance lease liabilities less current portion 198,053 290,696 Operating lease liabilities less current portion 2,799 8,183 Deferred income taxes, net
163,769 189,121 Insurance accruals 30,239 26,640 Total long-term liabilities 400,979 520,910 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 14) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY A A Preferred
stock, par value $.01; authorized 5,000 shares; none issued 0 0 Capital stock, common, $.01 par value; authorized 395,000 shares; issued 90,689 in 2024 and 2023; outstanding 78,495 and
79,039 in 2024 and 2023, respectively 907 907 Additional paid-in capital 3,315 4,527 Retained earnings 1,027,505 1,060,094 Treasury stock, at cost; 12,194 and 11,650 shares in 2024 and
2023, respectively (205,978) (200,268) Stockholders' Equity 825,749 865,260 Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 1,361,453 $ 1,509,646 X - DefinitionCarrying amount at the balance sheet
date for long lived physical assets used in the normal conduct of business and not intended for resale. Revenue equipment includes tractors and trailers used for purposes of providing
transportation services. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld RevenueEquipment Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period
Type: instant X - DefinitionStockholders' Equity + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_StockholdersEquityl Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionSum of the carrying values as of the balance sheet date of obligations incurred through that date and due within one year (or the
operating cycle, if longer), including liabilities incurred (and for which invoices have typically been received) and payable to vendors for goods and services received, taxes, interest, rent and
utilities, accrued salaries and bonuses, payroll taxes and fringe benefits. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic
210 -SubTopic 10 -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02.19,20) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_AccountsPayableAndAccruedLiabilitiesCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount, after
allowance for credit loss, of right to consideration from customer for product sold and service rendered in normal course of business, classified as current. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 310 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481990/310-10-45-2Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 310 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 9 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481990/310-10-45-9 + Details Name: us-gaap_AccountsReceivableNetCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionCarrying amount as of the balance sheet date of the unpaid sum of the known and estimated amounts payable to
satisfy all domestic and foreign income tax obligations due beyond one year or the operating cycle, whichever is longer. Alternate captions include income taxes payable, noncurrent. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-
02(24)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03(15)(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-210-S99-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_AccruedIncomeTaxesNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of accumulated
depreciation, depletion and amortization for physical assets used in the normal conduct of business to produce goods and services. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(8)(b)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(14)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_AccumulatedDepreciationDepletionAndAmortizationPropertyPlantAndEquipment Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionValue received from shareholders in common stock-related transactions that are in excess of par
value or stated value and amounts received from other stock-related transactions. Includes only common stock transactions (excludes preferred stock transactions). May be called contributed
capital, capital in excess of par, capital surplus, or paid-in capital. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(30)(a)(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-

gaap AdditionalPaidInCapitalCommonStock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionSum of the carrying amounts
as of the balance sheet date of all assets that are recognized. Assets are probable future economic benefits obtained or controlled by an entity as a result of past transactions or events. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (bb) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481203/810-10-50-3Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 25 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481231/810-10-45-25Reference 3: http://www .xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-
S99-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 323 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 825 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 830 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 12 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480167/946-830-55-12Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(12)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 10:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-04(8)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-1Reference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(18)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 12:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 13: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 14:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 15: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 16:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 17: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 18:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 19: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 20:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(B)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 21: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 22:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 23: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481404/852-10-50-7Reference 24: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef
-Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 30 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-
30Reference 25: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 26: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03(11)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-210-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_Assets Namespace Prefix:
us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionSum of the carrying amounts as of the balance sheet date of all assets that are expected to be
realized in cash, sold, or consumed within one year (or the normal operating cycle, if longer). Assets are probable future economic benefits obtained or controlled by an entity as a result of past
transactions or events. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -
Subparagraph (bb) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481203/810-10-50-3Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 25 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481231/810-10-45-25Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(ii)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 323 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 825 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 6:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45
-Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483467/210-10-45-1Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(9)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 9:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 11:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards



Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 13:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 15:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 17:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(B)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 18: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 19:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 20: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481404/852-10-50-7 + Details Name: us-gaap AssetsCurrent Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_AssetsCurrentAbstract Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount before accumulated depreciation of building structures held for productive use
including addition, improvement, or renovation to the structure, including, but not limited to, interior masonry, interior flooring, electrical, and plumbing. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_BuildingsAndImprovementsGross Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of currency on hand as well as demand deposits with banks or financial institutions. Includes other kinds of accounts that have the general
characteristics of demand deposits. Also includes short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Excludes cash and cash equivalents within disposal group and discontinued operation. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483467/210-10-45-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 45 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-4 + Details Name: us-
gaap_CashAndCashEquivalentsAtCarryingValue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionRepresents the caption
on the face of the balance sheet to indicate that the entity has entered into (1) purchase or supply arrangements that will require expending a portion of its resources to meet the terms thereof,
and (2) is exposed to potential losses or, less frequently, gains, arising from (a) possible claims against a company's resources due to future performance under contract terms, and (b) possible
losses or likely gains from uncertainties that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events that are deemed likely to occur do occur or fail to occur. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(19)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-04(15)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 942 -SubTopic 210 -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03.17) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-210-S99-1Reference 4: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Section S99
-Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02.25) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_CommitmentsAndContingencies
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAggregate par or stated value of issued nonredeemable common stock
(or common stock redeemable solely at the option of the issuer). This item includes treasury stock repurchased by the entity. Note: elements for number of nonredeemable common shares, par
value and other disclosure concepts are in another section within stockholders' equity. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(22)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(29)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_CommonStockValue Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of structure or a modification to a structure under construction. Includes
recently completed structures or modifications to structures that have not been placed into service. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_ConstructionInProgressGross Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount, after allocation of valuation
allowances and deferred tax liability, of deferred tax asset attributable to deductible differences and carryforwards, with jurisdictional netting. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482525/740-10-45-4Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482525/740-10-45-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_DeferredIncomeTaxAssetsNet Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount, after deferred tax asset, of deferred tax liability attributable to taxable differences, with jurisdictional
netting, and liabilities classified as noncurrent and other. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_DeferredTaxAndOtherLiabilitiesNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionTotal of the carrying values as of the balance sheet date of obligations incurred through that date and
payable for obligations related to services received from employees, such as accrued salaries and bonuses, payroll taxes and fringe benefits. Used to reflect the current portion of the liabilities
(due within one year or within the normal operating cycle if longer). + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 210 -
SubTopic 10 -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02.20) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_EmployeeRelatedLiabilitiesCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount before accumulated
depreciation of equipment commonly used in offices and stores that have no permanent connection to the structure of a building or utilities. Examples include, but are not limited to, desks,
chairs, tables, and bookcases. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_FurnitureAndFixturesGross Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount after accumulated impairment loss of an asset representing future economic benefits arising from other
assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognized. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 24 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482548/350-20-55-24Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(15)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 350 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482598/350-20-45-1Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482573/350-20-50-1Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (h) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482573/350-20-50-1Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 942 -
SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03(10)(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-
210-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_Goodwill Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionCarrying amount due within
one year of the balance sheet date (or one operating cycle, if longer) from tax authorities as of the balance sheet date representing refunds of overpayments or recoveries based on agreed-upon
resolutions of disputes. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph
1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(3)(a)(4)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Topic 942 -SubTopic 210 -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03.10) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-210-S99-1 +
Details Name: us-gaap IncomeTaxesReceivable Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionSum of the carrying
amounts of all intangible assets, excluding goodwill, as of the balance sheet date, net of accumulated amortization and impairment charges. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph ((a)(1),(b)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-2Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Section 45 -
Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482686/350-30-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_IntangibleAssetsNetExcludingGoodwill Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data
Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount before accumulated depreciation and depletion of real estate held for productive use and additions
or improvements to real estate held for productive use, examples include, but are not limited to, walkways, driveways, fences, and parking lots. Excludes land held for sale. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX
210.5-02(13)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap LandAndLandImprovements Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of liabilities and equity items, including the portion of equity attributable to noncontrolling interests, if
any. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(25)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(ii)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 323 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 825 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 6: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99
-Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03(23)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-210-S99-1Reference 7: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210
-SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(32)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-
S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_LiabilitiesAndStockholdersEquity Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionTotal
obligations incurred as part of normal operations that are expected to be paid during the following twelve months or within one business cycle, if longer. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481203/810-10-50-3Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 25 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481231/810-10-45-25Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (bb) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481203/810-10-50-3Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(ii)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 323 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 825 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45
-Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483467/210-10-45-5Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 10:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(ii)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 12:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 13: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 14:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 15: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 16:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(B)) -Publisher



FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 17: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 18:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 19: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481404/852-10-50-7Reference 20:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481404/852-10-50-7Reference 21: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Section S99 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02.21) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_LiabilitiesCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_LiabilitiesCurrentAbstract Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of obligation due after one year or beyond the normal operating cycle, if longer. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(22)) -SubTopic 10 -Topic
210 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481203/810-10-50-3Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 25 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481231/810-10-45-25Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 810 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (bb) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481203/810-10-50-3Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-
1Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 323 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 825 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-
1AReference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-
01(a)(4)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-
1AReference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)
(iv)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 13:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 15:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(B)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 17:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 18: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481404/852-10-50-7Reference 19:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481404/852-10-50-7Reference 20: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(23)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 21: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 201.5-02(24)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-
1Reference 22: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 201.5-02(25)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 23: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 201.5-02(26)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_LiabilitiesNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-
gaap_LiabilitiesNoncurrentAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount, after deduction of unamortized
premium (discount) and debt issuance cost, of long-term debt classified as current. Excludes lease obligation. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(20)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-
1 + Details Name: us-gaap_LongTermDebtCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount, after
deduction of unamortized premium (discount) and debt issuance cost, of long-term debt classified as noncurrent. Excludes lease obligation. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(22)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_LongTermDebtNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type:
credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount before accumulated depreciation of tangible personal property used to produce goods and services, including, but is not limited to, tools, dies
and molds, computer and office equipment. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_MachineryAndEquipmentGross Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPresent value of lessee's discounted obligation for lease payments from operating lease,
classified as current. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingLeaseLiabilityCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data
Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPresent value of lessee's discounted obligation for lease payments from operating lease, classified as
noncurrent. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph
(b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingLeaseLiabilityNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's right to use underlying asset under operating lease. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingLeaseRightOfUseAsset Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of expenses incurred but not yet paid classified as other. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 942 -SubTopic 210 -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03.15(5)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-
210-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_OtherAccruedLiabilitiesCurrentAndNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X
- DefinitionAmount of current assets classified as other. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification
-Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(8)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details
Name: us-gaap_OtherAssetsCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of noncurrent assets
classified as other. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(17)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_OtherAssetsNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of asset related to consideration paid in advance for other costs that provide economic
benefits within a future period of one year or the normal operating cycle, if longer. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(7)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 340 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483032/340-10-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_OtherPrepaidExpenseCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type:
debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAggregate par or stated value of issued nonredeemable preferred stock (or preferred stock redeemable solely at the option of the issuer). This item
includes treasury stock repurchased by the entity. Note: elements for number of nonredeemable preferred shares, par value and other disclosure concepts are in another section within
stockholders' equity. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(21)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(28)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap PreferredStockValue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit
Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount before accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization of physical assets used in the normal conduct of business and not intended for resale.
Examples include, but are not limited to, land, buildings, machinery and equipment, office equipment, and furniture and fixtures. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(8)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(13)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef
-Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-1 +
Details Name: us-gaap PropertyPlantAndEquipmentGross Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: us-gaap_PropertyPlantAndEquipmentGrossAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionAmount after accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization of physical assets used in the normal conduct of business to produce goods and services and not intended for
resale. Examples include, but are not limited to, land, buildings, machinery and equipment, office equipment, and furniture and fixtures. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -SubTopic 10 -Topic 360 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-
1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(8)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 942 -SubTopic 360 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480842/942-360-50-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_PropertyPlantAndEquipmentNet Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of accumulated
undistributed earnings (deficit). + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph
10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 40 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (g)(2)(i) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480016/944-40-65-2Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 40 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (h)(2) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480016/944-40-65-2Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 11 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480990/946-20-50-11Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(23)(a)(4)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-
1Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-04(17)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-1Reference 7: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-1Reference 8: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(30)(a)(3)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_RetainedEarningsAccumulatedDeficit Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionCarrying amount of accrued known and estimated losses incurred as of the balance sheet date for which no insurance coverage exists, and for
which a claim has been made or is probable of being asserted, typically arising from workmen's compensation-type of incidents and personal injury to nonemployees from accidents on the
entity's property that are expected to be paid within one year (or the normal operating cycle, if longer). + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-
gaap_SelflnsuranceReserveCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionCarrying amount of accrued known
and estimated losses incurred as of the balance sheet date for which no insurance coverage exists, and for which a claim has been made or is probable of being asserted, typically arising from
workmen's compensation-type of incidents and personal injury to nonemployees from accidents on the entity's property that are expected to be paid after one year (or the normal operating
cycle, if longer). + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_SelfInsuranceReserveNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type:
credit Period Type: instant X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap StockholdersEquityAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance



Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe amount allocated to treasury stock. Treasury stock is common and preferred shares of an entity that were issued, repurchased by the entity, and
are held in its treasury. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 505 -SubTopic 30 -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481520/505-30-50-4Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 505 -
SubTopic 30 -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481549/505-30-45-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02.29,30) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 +
Details Name: us-gaap TreasuryStockValue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant XML 14 R3.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT
v3.24.3 Consolidated Balance Sheets Consolidated Balance Sheets (Parentheticals) - USD ($) shares in Thousands, $ in Millions Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023 Consolidated Balance Sheets
Parentheticals [Abstract] A A Accounts Receivable, Allowance for Credit Loss, Current $ 2.3 $ 2.7 Preferred Stock, Par or Stated Value Per Share $ 0.01 $ 0.01 Preferred Stock, Shares
Authorized 5,000 5,000 Preferred Stock, Shares Issued 0 0 Common Stock, Par or Stated Value Per Share $ 0.01 $ 0.01 Common Stock, Shares Authorized 395,000 395,000 Common Stock,
Shares, Issued 90,689 90,689 Common Stock, Shares, Outstanding 78,495 79,039 Treasury stock, shares 12,194 11,650 X - DefinitionConsolidated Balance Sheets Parentheticals [Abstract] +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_ConsolidatedBalanceSheetsParentheticalsAbstract Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period
Type: duration X - DefinitionTreasury stock, shares + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld TreasuryStockSharesl Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of allowance for credit loss on accounts receivable, classified as current. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(4)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 326 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45
-Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479344/326-20-45-1Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 310 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481962/310-10-50-4 + Details Name: us-
gaap_AllowanceForDoubtfulAccountsReceivableCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionFace amount or
stated value per share of common stock. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fash.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(29)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_CommonStockParOrStatedValuePerShare
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionThe maximum number of common shares permitted to be issued by an
entity's charter and bylaws. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph
1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-04(16)(a)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(29)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-
1 + Details Name: us-gaap_CommonStockSharesAuthorized Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionTotal number of
common shares of an entity that have been sold or granted to shareholders (includes common shares that were issued, repurchased and remain in the treasury). These shares represent capital
invested by the firm's shareholders and owners, and may be all or only a portion of the number of shares authorized. Shares issued include shares outstanding and shares held in the treasury. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-
02(29)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_CommonStockSharesIssued Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionNumber of shares of common stock outstanding. Common stock represent the ownership interest in a corporation. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -SubTopic 10 -Topic 505 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-2Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-05(4)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-2Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-09(4)(b)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483575/946-220-S99-3Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-04(16)(a)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-1Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-09(7)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483575/946-220-S99-3Reference 6: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(29)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_CommonStockSharesOutstanding Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:sharesltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionFace amount or stated value per share
of preferred stock nonredeemable or redeemable solely at the option of the issuer. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 13 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-13Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(28)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_PreferredStockParOrStatedValuePerShare Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-
types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionThe maximum number of nonredeemable preferred shares (or preferred stock redeemable solely at the option of the
issuer) permitted to be issued by an entity's charter and bylaws. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-04(16)(a)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(28)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_PreferredStockSharesAuthorized Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionTotal number of nonredeemable preferred shares (or preferred stock redeemable solely at the option of the issuer) issued to shareholders (includes related
preferred shares that were issued, repurchased, and remain in the treasury). May be all or portion of the number of preferred shares authorized. Excludes preferred shares that are classified as
debt. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 13 -Subparagraph (a) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-13Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(28)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_PreferredStockSharesIssued Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant XML 15 R4.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) - USD ($) shares in Thousands, $ in Thousands 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30,
2023 Income Statement [Abstract] A A A A Operating Revenue $ 259,861 $ 295,026 $ 804,935 $ 932,111 Operating Expenses A A A A Salaries, wages, and benefits 107,392 118,923
330,205 362,566 Rent and purchased transportation 18,343 26,674 63,893 88,285 Fuel 43,793 55,809 138,125 163,205 Operations and maintenance 19,338 16,596 52,334 47,669 Operating
taxes and licenses 5,010 5,400 15,580 16,400 Insurance and claims 11,341 9,330 38,898 30,766 Communications and utilities 2,765 2,496 7,475 8,051 Depreciation and amortization 44,955
51,113 137,596 147,919 Other operating expenses 14,539 17,190 43,596 51,443 Gain on disposal of property and equipment (476) (1,065) (1,510) (15,873) Total operating expenses 267,000
302,466 826,192 900,431 Operating (loss) income (7,139) (7,440) (21,257) 31,680 Interest income 258 276 911 1,352 Interest Expense (4,243) (6,067) (14,119) (18,254) (Loss) income before
income taxes (11,124) (13,231) (34,465) 14,778 Federal and state income taxes (benefit) (1,841) (2,528) (6,596) 5,098 Net (loss) income (9,283) (10,703) (27,869) 9,680 Other comprehensive
income, net of tax 0 0 0 0 Comprehensive (loss) income $ (9,283) $ (10,703) $ (27,869) $ 9,680 Net (loss) income per share A A A A Basic $ (0.12) $ (0.14) $ (0.35) $ 0.12 Diluted $ (0.12) $
(0.14) $ (0.35) $ 0.12 Weighted average shares outstanding A A A A Basic 78,489 79,021 78,814 79,003 Diluted 78,500 79,103 78,866 79,069 Dividends declared per share $ 0.02 $ 0.02 $
0.06 $ 0.06 X - Definitiondepreciation and amortization excluding depreciation on communication equipment + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
htld_Depreciationandamortizationexcludingdepreciationoncommunicationequipment Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionNet Income + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld NetIncome Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type:
duration X - DefinitionPayment of rentals incurred in the period on property and equipment including payments made to independent contractors for providing and operating revenue equipment
owned and maintained by independent contractors. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld RentAndPurchasedTransportation Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionWeighted average shares outstanding [Abstract] + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:

htld WeightedAverageSharesOutstandingAbstract Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAggregate dividends declared
during the period for each share of common stock outstanding. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_CommonStockDividendsPerShareDeclared Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount after tax of
increase (decrease) in equity from transactions and other events and circumstances from net income and other comprehensive income, attributable to parent entity. Excludes changes in equity
resulting from investments by owners and distributions to owners. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(24)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-04(26)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483589/942-220-S99-1Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-04(22)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482790/220-10-45-1AReference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45
-Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482790/220-10-45-1BReference 6: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Section 45 -Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482790/220-10-45-5 + Details Name: us-

gaap ComprehensivelncomeNetOfTax Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionTotal costs of sales and
operating expenses for the period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -
Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_CostsAndExpenses Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe aggregate costs of direct communications and utilities incurred during the reporting
period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX
210.5-03.2) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_DirectCommunicationsAndUtilitiesCosts Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data
Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of tax incurred and cost of license directly related to good produced or service rendered. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX
210.5-03(b)(2)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_DirectTaxesAndLicensesCosts Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_EarningsPerShareAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data
Type: xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe amount of net income (loss) for the period per each share of common stock or unit outstanding during the
reporting period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-3Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 55 -Paragraph 15 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-15Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic 40 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (e)(4) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic 40 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-7Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-2Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 60B -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-60BReference 10:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-4Reference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-10Reference 13:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(25)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 14: http://www .xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-04(27)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483589/942-220-S99-1Reference 15:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-04(23)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 55 -Paragraph 52 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-52Reference 17: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 7 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-7 + Details Name: us-
gaap_EarningsPerShareBasic Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe amount of net income (loss) for the
period available to each share of common stock or common unit outstanding during the reporting period and to each share or unit that would have been outstanding assuming the issuance of



common shares or units for all dilutive potential common shares or units outstanding during the reporting period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic
250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-3Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 15 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-15Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic 40 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65
-Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (e)(4) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic
40 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-7Reference 8:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-2Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 60B -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-60BReference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-4Reference 11:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(25)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 13: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 942 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-04(27)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483589/942-220-S99-1Reference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-04(23)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 15: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -
Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 52 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-52Reference 16:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 7 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-7 + Details Name: us-gaap_EarningsPerShareDiluted Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionFuel costs incurred that are directly related to goods produced and sold and services rendered during the reporting period. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03.2(a),(d)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_FuelCosts Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period
Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of gain (loss) on sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment assets, excluding oil and gas property and timber property. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482130/360-10-45-5Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-3 + Details Name: us-
gaap_GainLossOnDispositionOfAssets Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of income (loss) from
continuing operations, including income (loss) from equity method investments, before deduction of income tax expense (benefit), and income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-
04(11)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic
280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 30 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-
30Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 31 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-31Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 235 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-05(b)(2)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479557/942-235-S99-1Reference 8: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 25 -Paragraph 1 -
SubTopic 20 -Topic 940 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481913/940-20-25-1Reference 9: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(10)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 10:
http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-04(15)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483589/942-220-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_IncomeLossFromContinuingOperationsBeforeIncomeTaxesExtraordinaryltemsNoncontrollingInterest
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-
gaap_IncomeStatementAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of current income tax expense
(benefit) and deferred income tax expense (benefit) pertaining to continuing operations. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 8 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-8Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 9 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-9Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-10Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SAB TOPIC 6.1.7) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479360/740-10-S99-1Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (h) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-04(9)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (a) -SubTopic 20 -Topic 740 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482659/740-20-45-
2Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(h)) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 235 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap _IncomeTaxExpenseBenefit Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of the cost of borrowed funds accounted for as interest expense. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 830 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480167/946-830-55-10Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (i) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483581/946-220-45-3Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -
SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-07(3)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483575/946-220-
S99-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 5: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 835 -SubTopic 30 -Section
45 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482925/835-30-45-3Reference 6: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-04.9) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483589/942-220-S99-1Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (210.5-03(11)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 835 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483013/835-20-50-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_InterestExpense Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount before accretion (amortization) of purchase discount (premium) of interest income on nonoperating
securities. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph
(c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03.7(b)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_InvestmentIncomelnterest Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of expense for salary, wage,
profit sharing; incentive and equity-based compensation; and other employee benefit. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(b)(4)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details
Name: us-gaap_LaborAndRelatedExpense Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionGenerally recurring costs
associated with normal operations except for the portion of these expenses which can be clearly related to production and included in cost of sales or services. Excludes Selling, General and
Administrative Expense. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap OperatingCostsAndExpenses Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: debit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingExpensesAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe net result for the period of deducting operating expenses from operating revenues. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 30 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-30Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 31 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-31Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32 + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingIncomeLoss Namespace Prefix: us-gaap
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionInsurance and claims costs directly related to goods produced and sold, or services rendered, during
the reporting period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -
Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03.2(a),(d)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingInsuranceAndClaimsCostsProduction
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount, after tax and before adjustment, of unrealized holding gain
(loss) on investment in debt security measured at fair value with change in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income (available-for-sale). Excludes unrealized gain (loss) on
investment in debt security measured at amortized cost (held-to-maturity) from transfer to available-for-sale. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 320 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 9 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481800/320-10-50-9Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 10A -Subparagraph (e) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482790/220-10-45-10AReference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
45 -Paragraph 11 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482790/220-10-45-11 + Details Name: us-
gaap_OtherComprehensiveIncomeUnrealizedHoldingGainLossOnSecuritiesArisingDuringPeriodNetOfTax Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit
Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe total amount of other operating cost and expense items that are associated with the entity's normal revenue producing operation. + ReferencesReference
1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-04(7)(b)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03.3) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_OtherCostAndExpenseOperating Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of revenue recognized
from goods sold, services rendered, insurance premiums, or other activities that constitute an earning process. Includes, but is not limited to, investment and interest income before deduction
of interest expense when recognized as a component of revenue, and sales and trading gain (loss). + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-
1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 323 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 825 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards



Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 9:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 11:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(B)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 13:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 15:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 30 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-30Reference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 42 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-42Reference 17: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 18:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 19: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 40 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-40Reference 20: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 21:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 22: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 41 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-41Reference 23: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 942 -
SubTopic 235 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-05(b)(2)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479557/942-235-
S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_Revenues Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe average number of
shares or units issued and outstanding that are used in calculating diluted EPS or earnings per unit (EPU), determined based on the timing of issuance of shares or units in the period. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 16 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-16 + Details Name: us-gaap_WeightedAverageNumberOfDilutedSharesOutstanding
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:sharesltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionNumber of [basic] shares or units, after adjustment for contingently issuable
shares or units and other shares or units not deemed outstanding, determined by relating the portion of time within a reporting period that common shares or units have been outstanding to the
total time in that period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-10 + Details Name: us-

gaap WeightedAverageNumberOfSharesOutstandingBasic Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 16 R5.htm IDEA: XBRL
DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity - USD ($) $ in Thousands Total Capital Stock, Common Additional Paid-in Capital Retained Earnings Treasury Stock
Balance at Dec. 31, 2022 $ 855,477 $ 907 $ 4,165 $ 1,051,641 $ (201,236) Net income (loss) 12,612 0 0 12,612 0 Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per share (1,581) 0 0 (1,581) 0 Stock-
based compensation, net of tax 111 0 32 0 79 Balance at Mar. 31, 2023 866,619 907 4,197 1,062,672 (201,157) Net income (loss) 7,771 0 0 7,771 0 Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per
share (1,580) 0 0 (1,580) 0 Stock-based compensation, net of tax 127 0 (299) 0 426 Balance at Jun. 30, 2023 872,937 907 3,898 1,068,863 (200,731) Net income (loss) (10,703) 0 0 (10,703) 0
Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per share (1,581) 0 0 (1,581) 0 Stock-based compensation, net of tax 477 0 363 0 114 Balance at Sep. 30, 2023 861,130 907 4,261 1,056,579 (200,617)
Balance at Dec. 31, 2023 865,260 907 4,527 1,060,094 (200,268) Net income (loss) (15,108) 0 0 (15,108) 0 Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per share (1,582) 0 0 (1,582) 0 Stock-based
compensation, net of tax 220 0 (9) 0 229 Balance at Mar. 31, 2024 848,790 907 4,518 1,043,404 (200,039) Net income (loss) (3,478) 0 0 (3,478) 0 Repurchases of common stock (7,281) 00 0
(7,281) Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per share (1,569) 0 0 (1,569) 0 Stock-based compensation, net of tax 304 0 (185) 0 489 Balance at Jun. 30, 2024 836,766 907 4,333 1,038,357
(206,831) Net income (loss) (9,283) 0 0 (9,283) 0 Dividends on common stock,A $0.02 per share (1,569) 0 0 (1,569) 0 Stock-based compensation, net of tax (165) 0 (1,018) 0 853 Balance at Sep.
30, 2024 $ 825,749 $ 907 $ 3,315 $ 1,027,505 $ (205,978) X - DefinitionAmount of paid and unpaid common stock dividends declared with the form of settlement in cash, stock and payment-in-
kind (PIK). + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX
210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 2 -SubTopic 405 -Topic 942 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481071/942-405-45-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_DividendsCommonStock Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe portion of profit or loss for the period, net of income taxes, which is attributable
to the parent. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 323 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 825 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482765/220-10-50-6Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-3Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic
250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b)(2) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-
1Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic 40 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 8 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-8Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 9 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-9Reference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic
250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-
11Reference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-4Reference 13: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 830 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480167/946-830-55-10Reference 14:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 7 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483581/946-220-45-7Reference 15: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-04(18)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 17:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-07(9)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483575/946-220-S99-1Reference 18: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-09(1)(d)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483575/946-220-S99-3Reference 19:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 20: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 21:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 22: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 23:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 24: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 25:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 26: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(B)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 27:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 28: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 29:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 30 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-30Reference 30: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 31: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 60B -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-60BReference
32: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 31 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-31Reference 33: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 34: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 205 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483499/205-20-50-7Reference 35: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-
45-28Reference 36: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482790/220-10-45-1AReference 37: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482790/220-10-45-1BReference 38: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef
-Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(20)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 39: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-04(22)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483589/942-220-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_NetIncomeLoss Namespace Prefix:
us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionValue, after forfeiture, of shares issued under share-based payment arrangement. Excludes
employee stock ownership plan (ESOP). + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(28)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 505 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-
1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(29)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 4: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 718 -
SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (d)(1) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_StockIssuedDuringPeriodValueShareBasedCompensation Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount
of equity (deficit) attributable to parent. Excludes temporary equity and equity attributable to noncontrolling interest. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -
Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 830 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 12 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480167/946-830-55-12Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-04(19)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 946 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-05(4)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479617/946-210-S99-2Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-09(4)(b)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483575/946-220-S99-3Reference 6:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-09(6)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483575/946-220-S99-3Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (SX 210.6-09(7)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483575/946-220-S99-3Reference 8:



http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(i)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 323 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 10:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 825 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 11: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99
-Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(29)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 12: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210
-SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(31)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-
S99-1Reference 13: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(30)) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 14: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 310 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SAB Topic 4.E) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480418/310-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_StockholdersEquity Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionEquity impact of the cost of common and
preferred stock that were repurchased during the period. Recorded using the cost method. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -SubTopic 10 -Topic 505 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-2Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 505 -SubTopic 30 -Section 45 -
Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481549/505-30-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_TreasuryStockValueAcquiredCostMethod Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data
Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration XML 17 R6.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity Parentheticals - $ /
shares 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Dividends declared per share $ 0.02 $ 0.02 $ 0.06 $ 0.06 X - DefinitionAggregate dividends
declared during the period for each share of common stock outstanding. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_CommonStockDividendsPerShareDeclared Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 18 R7.htm IDEA: XBRL
DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - USD ($) $ in Thousands 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 OPERATING ACTIVITIES A A Net (loss) income $ (27,869)
$ 9,680 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: A A Depreciation and amortization 137,596 147,919 Deferred income taxes (25,016) (11,903) Stock-
based compensation expense 742 928 Debt-related amortization 789 806 Gain on disposal of property and equipment (1,510) (15,873) Changes in certain working capital items: A A Trade
receivables 2,723 25,874 Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,297 4,604 Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and accrued expenses 8,030 (25,176) Accrued income taxes 8,778
(12,408) Net cash provided by operating activities 106,560 124,451 INVESTING ACTIVITIES A A Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 27,698 94,660 Purchases of property and
equipment (26,229) (176,861) Change in other assets 30 382 Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,499 (81,819) FINANCING ACTIVITIES A A Payments of cash dividends
(3,151) (3,161) Shares withheld for employee taxes related to stock-based compensation (383) (213) Repayments of finance leases and debt (94,001) (69,887) Repurchases of common stock
(7,281) 0 Net cash used in financing activities (104,816) (73,261) Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 3,243 (30,629) CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH A A Beginning of period 41,188 64,478 End of period 44,431 33,849 SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION A A Cash paid during the period
for interest expense 14,296 16,779 Cash paid during the period for income taxes, net of refunds 10,030 29,138 Noncash investing and financing activities: A A Purchased property and
equipment in accounts payable 12,086 22,270 Sold revenue equipment and property in other current assets 1,253 2,089 Common stock dividends declared in accounts payable 1,569 1,581
RECONCILIATION OF CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH A A Cash and cash equivalents 30,739 20,101 Restricted cash included in other current assets 312 299
Restricted cash included in other assets 13,380 13,449 Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 44,431 $ 33,849 X - DefinitionCommon stock dividends declared in accounts payable +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld CommonStockDividendsDeclaredInAccountsPayable Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit
Period Type: duration X - DefinitionNet income + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld NetIncome2 Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionSold revenue equipment in other current assets + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
htld_Soldrevenueequipmentinothercurrentassets Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. +
Details Name: us-gaap_AdjustmentsToReconcileNetIncomeLossToCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivitiesAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of expense for award under share-based payment arrangement. Excludes amount capitalized. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SAB Topic 14.F) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479830/718-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (h)(1)(i) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_AllocatedShareBasedCompensationExpense
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of amortization expense attributable to debt issuance costs. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1F -Subparagraph (b)(2) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1FReference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 835 -SubTopic 30 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482925/835-30-45-3Reference 4: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -
Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(8)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_AmortizationOfFinancingCosts Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionFuture cash outflow to pay for purchases of fixed assets that have occurred. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482913/230-10-50-4Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -
Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482913/230-10-50-3Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482913/230-10-50-5 + Details Name: us-

gaap CapitalExpendituresIncurredButNotYetPaid Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of currency
on hand as well as demand deposits with banks or financial institutions. Includes other kinds of accounts that have the general characteristics of demand deposits. Also includes short-term,
highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in
interest rates. Excludes cash and cash equivalents within disposal group and discontinued operation. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-
1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483467/210-10-45-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 45 -
Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-4 + Details Name: us-gaap_CashAndCashEquivalentsAtCarryingValue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data
Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of cash and cash equivalents, and cash and cash equivalents restricted to withdrawal or usage.
Excludes amount for disposal group and discontinued operations. Cash includes, but is not limited to, currency on hand, demand deposits with banks or financial institutions, and other accounts
with general characteristics of demand deposits. Cash equivalents include, but are not limited to, short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 8 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482913/230-10-50-8Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 24 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-24Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 45 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-4 + Details Name: us-
gaap_CashCashEquivalentsRestrictedCashAndRestrictedCashEquivalents Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X -
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_CashCashEquivalentsRestrictedCashAndRestrictedCashEquivalentsAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, and cash and cash equivalents restricted to withdrawal or
usage; excluding effect from exchange rate change. Cash includes, but is not limited to, currency on hand, demand deposits with banks or financial institutions, and other accounts with general
characteristics of demand deposits. Cash equivalents include, but are not limited to, short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near
their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 230 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 24 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-24Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -SubTopic 230 -Topic 830 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481877/830-230-
45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_CashCashEquivalentsRestrictedCashAndRestrictedCashEquivalentsPeriodIncreaseDecreaseExcludingExchangeRateEffect Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-
gaap_CashFlowNoncashInvestingAndFinancingActivitiesDisclosureAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionThe aggregate expense recognized in the current period that allocates the cost of tangible assets, intangible assets, or depleting assets to periods that benefit from use of the assets. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (b) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 230 -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (e) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22 + Details Name: us-gaap_DepreciationDepletionAndAmortization
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of cash outflow for principal payment on finance lease. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (g)(1) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-4Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 5 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-5 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeasePrincipalPayments
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of gain (loss) on sale or disposal of property, plant and
equipment assets, excluding oil and gas property and timber property. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482130/360-10-45-5Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 360 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482099/360-10-50-3 + Details Name: us-gaap_GainLossOnDispositionOfAssets Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe amount of cash paid during the current period to foreign, federal, state, and
local authorities as taxes on income, net of any cash received during the current period as refunds for the overpayment of taxes. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482913/230-10-50-
2 + Details Name: us-gaap _IncomeTaxesPaidNet Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe increase
(decrease) during the reporting period in the amounts payable to vendors for goods and services received and the amount of obligations and expenses incurred but not paid. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (a) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 230 -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28 + Details Name: us-gaap_IncreaseDecreaseInAccountsPayableAndAccruedLiabilities Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe increase (decrease) during the period in the amount due for taxes based on the reporting entity's earnings
or attributable to the entity's income earning process (business presence) within a given jurisdiction. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (a) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 230 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28 + Details Name: us-
gaap_IncreaseDecreaselnAccruedIncomeTaxesPayable Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe increase
(decrease) during the reporting period in the account that represents the temporary difference that results from Income or Loss that is recognized for accounting purposes but not for tax
purposes and vice versa. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (a) -SubTopic
10 -Topic 230 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28 + Details Name: us-gaap_IncreaseDecreaseInDeferredIncomeTaxes Namespace Prefix: us-gaap
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_IncreaseDecreaseInOperatingCapitalAbstract
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of increase (decrease) in prepaid expenses, and assets classified as
other. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (a) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 230 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28 + Details Name: us-gaap_IncreaseDecreaselnPrepaidDeferredExpenseAndOtherAssets Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe increase (decrease) during the reporting period in the total amount due within one year
(or one operating cycle) from all parties, associated with underlying transactions that are classified as operating activities. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (a) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 230 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28 +
Details Name: us-gaap IncreaseDecreaselnReceivables Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of cash
paid for interest, excluding capitalized interest, classified as operating activity. Includes, but is not limited to, payment to settle zero-coupon bond for accreted interest of debt discount and debt
instrument with insignificant coupon interest rate in relation to effective interest rate of borrowing attributable to accreted interest of debt discount. + ReferencesReference 1:



http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 17 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-17Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45
-Paragraph 25 -Subparagraph (e) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-25Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482913/230-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_InterestPaidNet
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities, including
discontinued operations. Financing activity cash flows include obtaining resources from owners and providing them with a return on, and a return of, their investment; borrowing money and
repaying amounts borrowed, or settling the obligation; and obtaining and paying for other resources obtained from creditors on long-term credit. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 24 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-24 + Details Name: us-gaap_NetCashProvidedByUsedInFinancingActivities Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_NetCashProvidedByUsedInFinancingActivitiesAbstract
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities, including
discontinued operations. Investing activity cash flows include making and collecting loans and acquiring and disposing of debt or equity instruments and property, plant, and equipment and
other productive assets. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 24 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-24 + Details Name: us-gaap_NetCashProvidedByUsedInInvestingActivities Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_NetCashProvidedByUsedInInvestingActivitiesAbstract
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities, including
discontinued operations. Operating activity cash flows include transactions, adjustments, and changes in value not defined as investing or financing activities. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 24 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-24Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 25 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-25 + Details Name: us-
gaap_NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivities Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: us-gaap NetCashProvidedByUsedInOperatingActivitiesAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration
X - DefinitionAmount of cash (inflow) outflow from investing activities classified as other. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 13 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-13Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 12 -SubTopic 10 -Topic 230 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-12 + Details Name: us-gaap_PaymentsForProceedsFromOtherInvestingActivities Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe cash outflow to reacquire common stock during the period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 45 -Paragraph 15 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-15 + Details Name: us-gaap_PaymentsForRepurchaseOfCommonStock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of cash outflow in the form of ordinary dividends to common shareholders of the parent entity. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 45 -Paragraph 15 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-15 + Details Name: us-gaap _PaymentsOfDividendsCommonStock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of cash outflow to satisfy grantee's tax withholding obligation for award under share-based payment arrangement. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 15 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-15 + Details Name: us-gaap_PaymentsRelatedToTaxWithholdingForShareBasedCompensation Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data
Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe cash outflow associated with the acquisition of long-lived, physical assets that are used in the normal
conduct of business to produce goods and services and not intended for resale; includes cash outflows to pay for construction of self-constructed assets. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 13 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-13 + Details Name: us-gaap_PaymentsToAcquirePropertyPlantAndEquipment Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe cash inflow from the sale of long-lived, physical assets that are used in the normal conduct of business to
produce goods and services and not intended for resale. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 12 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-12 + Details Name: us-
gaap_ProceedsFromSaleOfPropertyPlantAndEquipment Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: us-gaap_RestrictedCashAndCashEquivalentsAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionThe current cash, cash equivalents and investments that are restricted as to withdrawal or usage. Restrictions may include legally restricted deposits held as compensating balances
against short-term borrowing arrangements, contracts entered into with others, or entity statements of intention with regard to particular deposits; however, time deposits and short-term
certificates of deposit are not generally included in legally restricted deposits. Excludes compensating balance arrangements that are not agreements which legally restrict the use of cash
amounts shown on the balance sheet. Includes current cash equivalents and investments that are similarly restricted as to withdrawal, usage or disposal. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(9)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 954 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480632/954-210-45-4Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 954 -
SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480602/954-210-50-2 + Details Name: us-

gaap RestrictedCashAndInvestmentsCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionThe noncurrent cash, cash
equivalents and investments that is restricted as to withdrawal or usage. Restrictions may include legally restricted deposits held as compensating balances against borrowing arrangements,
contracts entered into with others, or entity statements of intention with regard to particular deposits classified as long-term; that is not expected to be released from such existing restrictions
within one year of the balance sheet date or operating cycle, whichever is longer. Excludes compensating balance arrangements that are not agreements which legally restrict the use of cash
amounts shown on the balance sheet. Includes noncurrent cash equivalents and investments that are similarly restricted as to withdrawal, usage or disposal. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 954 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480632/954-210-45-4Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 954 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480602/954-210-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_RestrictedCashAndInvestmentsNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap SupplementalCashFlowInformationAbstract
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 19 R8.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Basis of Presentation 9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024 Basis of Presentation and Accounting Pronouncements [Abstract] A Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies [Text Block] Basis of Presentation and New
Accounting PronouncementsHeartland Express, Inc. is a holding company incorporated in Nevada, which directly or indirectly owns all of the stock of the following active legal entities:
Heartland Express, Inc. of lowa, Heartland Express Services, Inc., Heartland Express Maintenance Services, Inc. ("Heartland Express"), and Midwest Holding Group, LLC and Millis Transfer,
LLC ("Millis Transfer"), and Smith Transport, LLC and Franklin Logistics, LLC ("Smith Transport"), and CFI entities, Transportation Resources, Inc. and Contract Freighters, Inc. (collectively
with certain Mexican entities, "CFI"). Effective December 31, 2023, Smith Trucking, Inc. was merged into Smith Transport, Inc. Further, effective December 31, 2023, Smith Transport, Inc. and
Franklin Logistics, Inc. were converted to Smith Transport, LLC and Franklin Logistics, LLC, respectively. On May 31, 2022, Heartland Express, Inc. of Iowa acquired Smith Transport, a
truckload carrier headquartered in Roaring Spring, Pennsylvania. On August 31, 2022, Heartland Express, Inc. of lowa acquired CFI's non-dedicated U.S. dry van and temperature-controlled
truckload business located in Joplin, Missouri, and certain Mexican entities (collectively "CFI Logistica") with operations located in Mexico. We, together with our subsidiaries, are a short,
medium, and long-haul truckload carrier and transportation services provider. We primarily provide nationwide asset-based dry van truckload service for major shippers across the United
States, along with cross-border freight and other transportation services offered through third party partnerships in Mexico.The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
parent company, Heartland Express, Inc., and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All material intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The
accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes to the financial statements required by U.S. GAAP for
complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal, recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023 included in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on February 28, 2024. Interim results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for the full year or any other interim periods. There were no changes to the Company's significant accounting policies during the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024.
In November 2023, the FASB issued Update 2023-07, "Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures". The amendments in the update improve reportable
segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. The amendments do not change how a public entity identifies its operating
segments, aggregates those operating segments, or applies the quantitative thresholds to determine its reportable segments. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this
new standard although based on initial evaluation we do not believe there will be a material impact from adoption.In December 2023, the FASB issued Update 2023-09, "Income Taxes (Topic
740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures". The amendments in the update improve income tax disclosures primarily related to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information as
well as the effectiveness of certain other income tax disclosures. The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of adopting this new standard although based on initial evaluation we do not believe there will be a material impact from adoption. X - DefinitionBasis of Presentation and Accounting
Pronouncements [Abstract] + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld BasisofPresentationandAccountingPronouncementsAbstract Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type:
xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for the basis of presentation and significant accounting policies concepts. Basis of presentation
describes the underlying basis used to prepare the financial statements (for example, US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, Other Comprehensive Basis of Accounting, IFRS).
Accounting policies describe all significant accounting policies of the reporting entity. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 235 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//235/tableOfContent + Details Name: us-gaap_BasisOfPresentationAndSignificantAccountingPoliciesTextBlock Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 20 R9.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Use of Estimates 9 Months Ended Sep. 30,
2024 Use of Estimates [Abstract] A Use of Estimates Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.A Actual results could differ from those estimates. There were no significant changes in estimates and assumptions used by management
related to our critical accounting policies during the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024. X - DefinitionUse of Estimates [Abstract] + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details
Name: htld UseofEstimatesAbstract Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for all significant
accounting policies of the reporting entity. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483426/235-10-50-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 235 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//235/tableOfContent + Details Name: us-gaap_SignificantAccountingPoliciesTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-
types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 21 R10.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Segment Information 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Segment Reporting
[Abstract] A Segment Information Segment InformationWe provide truckload services across the United States (U.S.), Mexico, and parts of Canada. These truckload services are primarily
asset-based transportation services in the dry van truckload market, and we also offer truckload temperature-controlled transportation services and Mexico logistics services, which are not
significant to our consolidated operations. Our Chief Operating Decision Maker (4€ceCODMA€) oversees and manages all of our transportation services, on a combined basis, including
previously acquired entities. As a result of the foregoing, we have determined that we have one reportable segment, consistent with the authoritative accounting guidance on disclosures about
segments of an enterprise and related information. X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_SegmentReportingAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for reporting segments including data and tables. Reportable segments include those that meet
any of the following quantitative thresholds a) it's reported revenue, including sales to external customers and intersegment sales or transfers is 10 percent or more of the combined revenue,
internal and external, of all operating segments b) the absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10 percent or more of the greater, in absolute amount of 1) the combined reported profit of
all operating segments that did not report a loss or 2) the combined reported loss of all operating segments that did report a loss c) its assets are 10 percent or more of the combined assets of
all operating segments. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 15 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-15Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 31 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-31Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 42 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-42Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 7:



http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 40 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-40Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//280/tableOfContentReference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 26 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-26Reference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 34 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-34Reference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 41 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-41Reference 12:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 21 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-21Reference 13: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 21 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-21Reference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (e) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32 + Details
Name: us-gaap_SegmentReportingDisclosureTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 22 R11.htm IDEA:
XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Revenue Recognition 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Revenue from Contract with Customer [Abstract] A Revenue from Contract with Customer [Text Block] Revenue
RecognitionThe Company recognizes revenue over time as control of the promised services is transferred to our customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to be entitled
to in exchange for those services. The delivery of the shipment and completion of the performance obligation allows for the collection of payment generally within 30 days after the delivery date
of the shipment for the majority of our customers.The Company's operations are consistent with those in the trucking industry where freight is hauled twenty-four hours a day and seven days a
week, subject to hours of service rules. The Companya€™s average length of haul is approximately 400 loaded miles per trip and each individual shipment accepted by the Company is
considered a separate contract with the performance obligation being the delivery of the freight. Our average length of haul for each load of freight generally equals less than two days of
continuous transit time. The Company estimates revenue for multiple-stop loads based on miles run and estimates revenue for single stop loads based on transit time, as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided. The Company hauls freight and earns revenue on a consistent basis throughout the periods presented. A corresponding contract
asset existed for the estimated revenue of these in-process loads for $1.9 million and $1.9 million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively. Recorded contract assets are
included in the accounts receivable line item of the balance sheet. Corresponding liabilities are recorded in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities and compensation and benefits line
items for the estimated expenses on these same in-process loads. The Company had no contract liabilities associated with our operations as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023,
respectively.Total revenues recorded were $259.9 million and $295.0 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Fuel surcharge revenues were $32.8
million and $42.9 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Accessorial, brokerage and other revenues recorded in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (loss) collectively represented $18.4 million and $22.4 million for the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.Total revenues recorded were
$804.9 million and $932.1 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Fuel surcharge revenues were $105.9 million and $134.1 million for the nine months
ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Accessorial, brokerage and other revenues recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) collectively represented
$58.6 million and $71.7 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-

gaap RevenueFromContractWithCustomerAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure of
revenue from contract with customer to transfer good or service and to transfer nonfinancial asset. Includes, but is not limited to, disaggregation of revenue, credit loss recognized from
contract with customer, judgment and change in judgment related to contract with customer, and asset recognized from cost incurred to obtain or fulfill contract with customer. Excludes
insurance and lease contracts. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph
9 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-9Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-10Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 15 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-15Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 12 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-12Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 12 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-12Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 12 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-12Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 12 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-12Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 12 -Subparagraph (e) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-12Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 13 -Subparagraph (b)(2) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-13Reference 10:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 606 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//606/tableOfContent + Details Name: us-
gaap_RevenueFromContractWithCustomerTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 23 R12.htm IDEA: XBRL
DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Cash and Cash Equivalents [Abstract] A Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments with insignificant interest rate risk and original maturities of three months or less at acquisition. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, restricted and designated
cash and investments totaled $13.7 million, of which $0.3 million was included in other current assets and $13.4 million was included in other non-current assets in the consolidated balance
sheet. Restricted and designated cash and investments totaled $13.0 million at DecemberA 31, 2023, of which $0.3 million was included in other current assets and $12.7 million was included in
other non-current assets in the consolidated balance sheet.A The restricted funds represent deposits required by state agencies for self-insurance purposes and designated funds that are
earmarked for a specific purpose and not for general business use. X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_CashAndCashEquivalentsAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for cash and cash equivalent footnotes, which may include the types of deposits
and money market instruments, applicable carrying amounts, restricted amounts and compensating balance arrangements. Cash and equivalents include: (1) currency on hand (2) demand
deposits with banks or financial institutions (3) other kinds of accounts that have the general characteristics of demand deposits (4) short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Generally, only investments
maturing within three months from the date of acquisition qualify. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(2)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_CashAndCashEquivalentsDisclosureTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-
types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 24 R13.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Prepaid Tires, Property, Equipment and Depreciation 9 Months Ended Sep.
30, 2024 Property, Plant and Depreciation [Abstract] A Property, Equipment, and Depreciation Prepaid Tires, Property, Equipment, and DepreciationProperty and equipment are reported at
cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. New tires are capitalized separately from revenue equipment and are reported separately
as a€cePrepaid tiresa€ in the consolidated balance sheets and amortized over two years. Depreciation for financial statement purposes is computed by the straight-line method for all assets
other than new tractors. We recognize depreciation expense on new tractors (excludes assets acquired through an acquisition) using the 125% declining balance method. Revenue equipment
acquired through acquisitions is generally revalued to current market values as of the acquisition date. Assets obtained more than a year prior to the acquisition by the acquired company are
depreciated on a straight-line basis aligned with the remaining period of expected use, whereas those obtained less than a year prior are depreciated consistent with newly purchased assets. As
acquired equipment is replaced, our fleet returns to our base methods of declining balance depreciation for tractors and straight-line depreciation for trailers. New tractors are depreciated to
salvage values of $15,000 while new trailers are depreciated to salvage values of $4,000. For equipment acquired through acquisitions the salvage values on used equipment is determined
based upon factors including the age of the equipment, estimated market value, and expected period of usage. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, there were $1.3 million receivable related to equipment
sales recorded in other current assets compared to $2.5 million at DecemberA 31, 2023. X - DefinitionProperty, Plant and Depreciation [Abstract] + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details
Name: htld_PropertyPlantandDepreciationAbstract Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for long-
lived, physical asset used in normal conduct of business and not intended for resale. Includes, but is not limited to, work of art, historical treasure, and similar asset classified as collections. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 360 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//360/tableOfContentReference
2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -SubTopic 360 -Topic 958 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480321/958-360-50-6Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (d) -SubTopic 360 -Topic 958 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480321/958-360-50-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -SubTopic 360 -Topic 958 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480321/958-360-50-7 + Details Name: us-
gaap_PropertyPlantAndEquipmentDisclosureTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 25 R14.htm IDEA:
XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Other Intangible, Net and Goodwill 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Goodwill and Intangible Assets Disclosure [Abstract] A Intangible Assets and Goodwill Other
Intangibles, Net and GoodwillAll intangible assets determined to have finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives. The useful life of an intangible asset is the period over which
the asset is expected to contribute directly or indirectly to future cash flows. There was no change in the gross amount of identifiable intangible assets during the nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024. The $94.8A million of other intangibles, net recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at SeptemberA 30, 2024 includes $31.6A million of indefinite lived trade name
intangible assets, not subject to amortization, along with $63.2A million finite lived intangible assets, net. Amortization expense of $1.3 million and $1.3 million for the three months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, was included in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss). Amortization expense of $3.8 million
and $3.9 million for the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, was included in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(loss).Intangible assets subject to amortization consisted of the following at SeptemberA 30, 2024: Amortization period (years)Gross AmountAccumulated AmortizationNet finite intangible
assets(in thousands)Customer relationships15-20$75,836A $15,876A $59,960A Trade name0.5-1012,900A 10,540A 2,360A Covenants not to competel-

105,839A 5,009A 830A $94,575A $31,425A $63,150A The carrying amount of goodwill was $322.6A million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023. X - ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: us-gaap GoodwillAndIntangibleAssetsDisclosureAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionThe entire disclosure for goodwill and intangible assets. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 350 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//350/tableOfContent + Details Name: us-gaap_GoodwillAndIntangibleAssetsDisclosureTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-
types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 26 R15.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Earnings Per Share 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Earnings Per Share
[Abstract] A Earnings Per Share Earnings per ShareBasic (loss) earnings per share is based upon the weighted average common shares outstanding during each year.A Diluted (loss) earnings
per share is based on the basic weighted (loss) earnings per share with additional weighted common shares for common stock equivalents. During the three and nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, we had outstanding restricted shares of common stock to certain of our employees and directors, under the Company's restricted stock award
plans. A reconciliation of the numerator (net (loss) income) and denominator (weighted average number of shares outstanding of basic and diluted) for the three and nine months ended
SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023 is as follows (in thousands, except per share data):Three months ended September 30, 2024Net Loss (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per
Share AmountBasic loss per share$(9,283)78,489A $(0.12)Effect of restricted stocka€”A 11A Diluted loss per share$(9,283)78,500A $(0.12)Three months ended September 30, 2023Net Loss
(numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic loss per share$(10,703)79,021A $(0.14)Effect of restricted stocka€”A 82A Diluted loss per share$(10,703)79,103A $(0.14)Nine months
ended September 30, 2024Net Loss (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic loss per share$(27,869)78,814A $(0.35)Effect of restricted stocka€”A 52A Diluted loss per
share$(27,869)78,866A $(0.35)Nine months ended September 30, 2023Net Income (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic earnings per share$9,680A 79,003A $0.12A Effect
of restricted stocka€”A 66A Diluted earnings per share$9,680A 79,069A $0.12A X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_EarningsPerShareAbstract Namespace Prefix:
us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for earnings per share. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//260/tableOfContentReference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-2Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-3 + Details Name: us-gaap_EarningsPerShareTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 27 R16.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Equity 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Share
Repurchases [Abstract] A Stockholders' Equity EquityWe have a stock repurchase program with 6.0 million shares remaining authorized for repurchase as of SeptemberA 30, 2024. During the
three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no shares repurchased in the open market. There were 0.6 million shares repurchased in the open market during the nine
months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and there were no shares repurchased in the open market during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2023. Repurchases are expected to continue from
time to time, as determined by market conditions, cash flow requirements, securities law limitations, long-term debt balances, and other factors, until the number of shares authorized have
been repurchased, or until the authorization is terminated. The share repurchase authorization is discretionary and has no expiration date.During the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024
and 2023, our Board of Directors declaredA dividends totaling $1.6A million and $1.6 million, respectively. During the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023, our Board of Directors
declaredA dividends totaling $4.7 million and $4.7 million, respectively. Future payment of cash dividends and the amount of such dividends will depend upon our financial conditions, our
results of operations, our cash requirements, our tax treatment, and certain corporate law requirements, as well as factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors. X - DefinitionNote

10.A A Share Repurchases [Abstract] + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld ShareRepurchasesAbstract Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance
Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for equity. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 13 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-13Reference 2:



http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 13 -Subparagraph (h) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-13Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 14 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-14Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic
235 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481062/946-235-50-2Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 235 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481062/946-235-50-2Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 505 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481004/946-505-50-6Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic 40 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480237/815-40-50-6Reference 8:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-1Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(e)(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 10: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -
Topic 505 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//505/tableOfContentReference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 13 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-13Reference 12:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 13 -Subparagraph (g) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-13Reference 13: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 13 -Subparagraph (i) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-13Reference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 14 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-14Reference 15:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 14 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-14Reference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 16 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-16Reference 17: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 18 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-18Reference 18:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 18 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-18Reference 19: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
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Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 28 R17.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Stock-Based Compensation 9
Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Share-Based Payment Arrangement [Abstract] A Stock Based Compensation Stock-Based Compensation In July 2011, a Special Meeting of Stockholders of
Heartland Express, Inc. was held, at which meeting the approval of the Heartland Express, Inc. 2011 Restricted Stock Award Plan (the "2011 Plan") was ratified. The 2011 Plan made available
up to 0.9A million shares for the purpose of making restricted stock grants to our eligible officers and employees. The 2011 Plan has no shares that remain available for the purpose of making
restricted stock grants at SeptemberA 30, 2024. In May 2021, at the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Heartland Express, Inc. 2021 Restricted Stock Award Plan (the "2021 Plan") was
approved. The 2021 Plan made available up to 0.6A million shares for the purpose of making restricted stock grants to our eligible employees, directors and consultants. The 2021 Plan has
0.4A million shares that remain available for the purpose of making restricted stock grants at SeptemberA 30, 2024.There were no shares that were granted during the period 2011 to 2021 that
remain unvested at SeptemberA 30, 2024. Shares granted in 2022 through 2024 have various vesting terms that range from immediate to four years from the date of grant. Compensation
expense associated with these awards is based on the market value of our stock on the grant date. Compensation expense associated with restricted stock awards to employees is included in
salaries, wages, and benefits, while expense associated with awards to directors or consultants is included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(loss). There were no significant assumptions made in determining fair value. Compensation expense associated with restricted stock awards was $0.1A million and $0.7A million respectively,
for the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024. Compensation expense associated with restricted stock awards was $0.5A million and $0.9A million respectively, for the three and
nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2023. Unrecognized compensation expense was $0.1 million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 which will be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.8 years.
The following tables summarize our restricted stock award activity for the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023. Three Months Ended September 30, 2024Number of
Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period62.5A $14.85A Granted26.3A 12.97A Vested(63.8)14.05A Forfeited(14.0)14.81A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period11.0A $15.05A Three Months Ended September 30, 2023Number
of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period95.0A $15.23A Granteda€”A 4€”A Vested(15.0)15.17A Forfeiteda€”A 4€”A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period80.0A $15.24A Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024Number of
Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period85.8A $14.84A Granted54.2A 12.39A Vested(115.0)13.67A Forfeited(14.0)14.81A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period11.0A $15.05A Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023Number
of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period40.1A $16.01A Granted93.3A 14.82A Vested(53.4)15.09A Forfeiteda€”A &€”A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period80.0A $15.24A X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for share-based
payment arrangement. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -
Subparagraph (a)(1) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//718/tableOfContentReference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (h)(2) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (h)(2)(i) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (1) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_DisclosureOfCompensationRelatedCostsShareBasedPaymentsTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap DisclosureOfCompensationRelatedCostsSharebasedPaymentsAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 29 R18.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Long-Term Debt 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Long-Term Line of Credit [Abstract] A Long-Term
Debt Long-Term DebtIn conjunction with the acquisition of CFI on August 31, 2022, (the 4€eCFI Closing Datea€), Heartland entered into a $550.0A million unsecured credit facility which
included a $100.0A million revolving line of credit (4€ceRevolving Facilitya€) and $450.0A million in term loans (a4€ceTerm Facilitya€ and, together with the Revolving Facility, the &€ceCredit
Facilitiesa€). The Credit Facilities includes a consortium of lenders, including joint bookrunners JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (4€ceWells Fargoa€).
The Credit Facilities replaced the previous credit arrangements in place for the Company which consisted of a November 2013 Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo, along with an asset-based
credit facility with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania that was assumed as part of the acquisition of Smith Transport on May 31, 2022.The full amount of the Term Facility was made in a single draw
on August 31, 2022 and amounts borrowed under the Term Facility that are repaid or prepaid may not be reborrowed. The Term Facility amortizes in quarterly installments which began in
September 2023, at 5% per annum through June 2025 and 10% per annum from September 2025 through June 2027, with the balance due on the date that is five years from the CFI Closing
Date. Based on debt repayments made through SeptemberA 30, 2024, required minimum payments have been covered until the term loan maturity on August 31, 2027.The Revolving Facility
consists of a five-year revolving credit facility with aggregate commitments in an amount equal to $100.0A million, of which up to $50.0A million is available for the issuance of letters of credit,
and including a swingline facility in an amount equal to $20.0A million. The Revolving Facility will mature and the commitments thereunder will terminate on the date that is five years after the
CFI Closing Date. Amounts repaid under the Revolving Facility may be reborrowed. The Credit Facilities include an uncommitted accordion feature pursuant to which the Company may request
up to $275.0A million in incremental revolving or term loans, subject to lender approvals.The indebtedness, obligations, and liabilities under the Credit Facilities are unconditionally guaranteed,
jointly and severally, on an unsecured basis by the Company, borrower, and certain other subsidiaries of the Company. The borrower may voluntarily prepay outstanding loans under the Credit
Facilities in whole or in part at any time without premium or penalty, subject to payment of customary breakage costs in the case of Secured Overnight Financing Rate (4€0eSOFRA€) rate
loans.The Credit Facilities contain usual and customary events of default and negative covenants for a facility of this nature including, among other things, restrictions on the Companya€™s
ability to incur certain additional indebtedness or issue guarantees, to create liens on the Companya€™s assets, to make distributions on or redeem equity interests (subject to certain
exceptions, including that (a) the Company may pay regularly scheduled dividends on the Companya€™s common stock not to exceed $10.0A million during any fiscal year and (b) the Company
may make any other distributions so long as it maintains a net leverage ratio not greater than 2.50 to 1.00), to make investments and to engage in mergers, consolidations, or acquisitions. The
Credit Facilities contain customary financial covenants, including (i) a maximum net leverage ratio of 2.75 to 1.00, measured quarterly on a trailing twelve-month basis, and (ii) a minimum
interest coverage ratio of 3.00 to 1.00, measured quarterly on a trailing twelve-month basis. We were in compliance with the respective financial covenants at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and have
been in compliance since the inception of the Credit Facilities.Outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facilities will accrue interest, at the option of the borrower, at a per annum rate of (i) for
an &€eABR Loana€, the alternate base rate (defined as the interest rate per annum equal to the highest of (a) the variable rate of interest announced by the administrative agent as its
a€ceprime ratea€, (b) 0.50% above the Federal Funds Rate, (c) the Term SOFR for an interest period of one-month plus 1.1%, or (d) 1.00%) plus the applicable margin or (ii) for a &4€0eSOFR
Loan&€, the Term SOFR Rate for an interest period of one, three or six-months as selected by Company plus the applicable margin. The applicable margin for ABR Loans ranges from 0.250% to
0.875% and the applicable margin for SOFR Loans ranges from 1.250% to 1.875%, depending on the Companya€™s net leverage ratio.We had $188.0A million outstanding on the Term Facility
and nothing outstanding under the Revolving Facility at SeptemberA 30, 2024. Outstanding letters of credit associated with the Revolving Facility at SeptemberA 30, 2024 were $11.7 million.
As of SeptemberA 30, 2024, the Revolving Facility available for future borrowing was $88.3A million. As of SeptemberA 30, 2024 the weighted average interest rate on outstanding borrowings
under the Credit Facilities was 6.8%. Unamortized loan origination fees of $0.4A million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 are included in long-term debt and finance lease liabilities.The May 31, 2022
acquisition of Smith Transport included the assumption of $46.8A million of debt and financing lease obligations associated with the fleet of revenue equipment of which $19.2 million was
outstanding at SeptemberA 30, 2024, (the "Smith Debt"). The Smith Debt has $6.3A million of outstanding principal and is made up of installment notes with a weighted average interest rate of
4.4% at SeptemberA 30, 2024, due in monthly installments with final maturities at various dates ranging from February 2027 to January 2029, secured by related revenue equipment. The
remaining Smith Debt of $12.9A million are finance lease obligations with a weighted average interest rate of 4.0% at SeptemberA 30, 2024, due in monthly installments with final maturities at
various dates ranging from October 2024 to April 2026 with the weighted average remaining lease term of 1.2 years. X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for long-term debt. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 470 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//470/tableOfContent + Details
Name: us-gaap_LongTermDebtTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. +
Details Name: us-gaap_LongtermLineOfCreditCurrentAndNoncurrentAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 30
R19.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Lease Obligations 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Leases [Abstract] A Operating Leases Lease ObligationsDuring 2023, we sold multiple properties
for a combined $25.6A million gain. In separate transactions related to the respective sales, we entered into operating lease agreements, each with a base term of two years. The right-of-use
assets associated with terminal leases was $5.7A million as of SeptemberA 30, 2024.Smith Transport has revenue equipment operating lease right-of-use assets from leases entered into before
the May 31, 2022 acquisition. These right-of-use equipment operating lease assets have a total balance of $3.9A million as of SeptemberA 30, 2024. The equipment and property operating
leases have a weighted average interest rate of 5.4% at SeptemberA 30, 2024, due in monthly installments with final maturities at various dates ranging from October 2024 to April 2027 with
the weighted average remaining lease term of 1.5 years. The Company has related party operating leases with the founder of Smith Transport, where the Company is both a lessor and lessee of
certain real estate properties. These leases represent an insignificant portion of the right-of-use lease assets discussed above. See Note 11. Long-Term Debt for additional details on the finance
leases.Our future minimum lease payments as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, are summarized as follows by lease category:(in thousands)OperatingFinance2024

(remaining)$1,846A $1,977A 20256,391A 7,557A 20261,497A 3,840A 2027320A a€”A 20284€”A 4€”A Thereaftera€”A 4€”A Total minimum lease payments$10,054A $13,374A Less: future
payment amount for interest465A 506A Present value of minimum lease payments$9,589A $12,868A Less: current portion6,790A 6,924A Lease obligations, long-term$2,799A $5,944A X -
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap LeasesAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionThe entire disclosure for operating leases of lessee. Includes, but is not limited to, description of operating lease and maturity analysis of operating lease liability. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//842-
20/tableOfContent + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeasesTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML
31 R20.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Income Taxes 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract] A Income Taxes Income TaxesWe use the asset and liability
method of accounting for income taxes.A Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis.A Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Such amounts are adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when
temporary differences reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred taxes is recognized in the period that the change is enacted. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the
Company's deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. We had no recorded valuation allowance at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023. Our
effective tax rate was 16.5% and 19.1% for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate is the result of an increase in unfavorable
permanent differences offsetting the tax benefit generated on the net loss for the respective quarters. Our effective tax rate was 19.1% and 34.5% for the nine months ended September 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate is primarily the result of permanent differences and items not correlated to income reducing the rate for 2024 calculated on a
loss before tax.We recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained.A Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest
amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.A We record interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.At SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, we had a total of $5.2 million and $5.5 million in gross unrecognized tax
benefits, respectively included in long-term income taxes payable in the consolidated balance sheet.A Of this amount, $4.1 million and $4.4 million represents the amount of unrecognized tax



benefits that, if recognized, would impact our effective tax rate as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023.A The net change in unrecognized tax benefits was no change and an
increase of $0.1 million during the three months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, respectively. The net change in unrecognized tax benefits was a decrease of $0.3 million
and $0.1 million during the nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, respectively. The total net amount of accrued interest and penalties for such unrecognized tax
benefits was $0.9 million and $0.7A million at SeptemberA 30, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively and is included in long-term income taxes payable in the consolidated balance
sheets.A These unrecognized tax benefits relate to state income tax filing positions. Income tax expense is increased each period for the accrual of interest on outstanding positions and
penalties when the uncertain tax position is initially recorded. Income tax expense is reduced in periods by the amount of accrued interest and penalties associated with reversed uncertain tax
positions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations, when applicable or when a position is settled. Net interest and penalties included in income tax expense was nominal for both the three
and nine month period ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and SeptemberA 30, 2023, respectively. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as
follows:2024A (in thousands)Balance at December 31, 2023$5,522A Additions based on tax positions related to current year37A Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of
limitations(362)Balance at September 30, 2024$5,197A A number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position is audited and ultimately settled. It is difficult to predict the ultimate
outcome or the timing of resolution for uncertain tax positions. It is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could significantly increase or decrease within the next
twelve months. These changes could result from the expiration of the statute of limitations, examinations, or other unforeseen circumstances. We do not have any outstanding litigation related
to income tax matters.A At this time, managementa€™s best estimate of the reasonably possible change in the amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits is approximately no change to an
increase of $1.0 million during the next twelve months, due to the combination of expiration of certain statute of limitations and estimated additions.A The federal statute of limitations remains
open for the years 2021 and forward. Tax years 2014 and forward are subject to audit by state tax authorities depending on the tax code and administrative practice of each state. X -
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_IncomeTaxDisclosureAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration
X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for income taxes. Disclosures may include net deferred tax liability or asset recognized in an enterprise's statement of financial position, net change during
the year in the total valuation allowance, approximate tax effect of each type of temporary difference and carryforward that gives rise to a significant portion of deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets, utilization of a tax carryback, and tax uncertainties information. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 946 -SubTopic 20 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 13 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480990/946-20-50-13Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(h)(2)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//740/tableOfContentReference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph
14 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-14Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 21 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-21Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -
SubTopic 270 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482526/740-270-50-1Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 17 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-17Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SAB TOPIC 6.1.5.Q1) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479360/740-10-S99-1Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SAB Topic 11.C) -Publisher FASB -URI
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gaap Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 32 R21.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Commitments and Contingencies 9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024 Commitments and Contingencies Disclosure [Abstract] A Commitments and Contingencies Commitments and ContingenciesWe are a party to ordinary, routine litigation and
administrative proceedings incidental to our business. In the opinion of management, our potential exposure under pending legal proceedings is adequately provided for in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.A A The total estimated purchase commitments for tractors (net of tractor sale commitments) and trailer equipment as of SeptemberA 30, 2024 was $58.6
million. These commitments extend into 2025. X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_CommitmentsAndContingenciesDisclosureAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe entire disclosure for commitments and contingencies. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 440 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482648/440-10-50-4Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 450 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//450/tableOfContentReference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 954 -SubTopic 440 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
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-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482648/440-10-50-4Reference 5:
http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 440 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//440/tableOfContent + Details Name: us-
gaap_CommitmentsAndContingenciesDisclosureTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 33 R22.htm IDEA:
XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Pay vs Performance Disclosure - USD ($) $ in Thousands 3 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Jun. 30, 2024 Mar. 31, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Jun. 30, 2023 Mar. 31, 2023 Pay
vs Performance Disclosure A A A A A A Net income (loss) $ (9,283) $ (3,478) $ (15,108) $ (10,703) $ 7,771 $ 12,612 X - ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Regulation S-K -Number 229 -Section 402 -Subsection v -Paragraph 1 + Details Name: ecd PvpTable Namespace Prefix:
ecd_ Data Type: xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe portion of profit or loss for the period, net of income taxes, which is attributable to the parent. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-
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Type: na Period Type: duration X - ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/presentationRef -Publisher SEC -Name Regulation S-K -Number 229 -Section 408 -Subsection a -
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Presentation Basis of Presentation (Policies) 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Basis of Presentation [Abstract] A Basis of Presentation [Policy Text Block] Basis of Presentation and New
Accounting PronouncementsHeartland Express, Inc. is a holding company incorporated in Nevada, which directly or indirectly owns all of the stock of the following active legal entities:
Heartland Express, Inc. of lowa, Heartland Express Services, Inc., Heartland Express Maintenance Services, Inc. ("Heartland Express"), and Midwest Holding Group, LLC and Millis Transfer,
LLC ("Millis Transfer"), and Smith Transport, LLC and Franklin Logistics, LLC ("Smith Transport"), and CFI entities, Transportation Resources, Inc. and Contract Freighters, Inc. (collectively
with certain Mexican entities, "CFI"). Effective December 31, 2023, Smith Trucking, Inc. was merged into Smith Transport, Inc. Further, effective December 31, 2023, Smith Transport, Inc. and
Franklin Logistics, Inc. were converted to Smith Transport, LLC and Franklin Logistics, LLC, respectively. On May 31, 2022, Heartland Express, Inc. of Iowa acquired Smith Transport, a



truckload carrier headquartered in Roaring Spring, Pennsylvania. On August 31, 2022, Heartland Express, Inc. of Iowa acquired CFI's non-dedicated U.S. dry van and temperature-controlled
truckload business located in Joplin, Missouri, and certain Mexican entities (collectively "CFI Logistica") with operations located in Mexico. We, together with our subsidiaries, are a short,
medium, and long-haul truckload carrier and transportation services provider. We primarily provide nationwide asset-based dry van truckload service for major shippers across the United
States, along with cross-border freight and other transportation services offered through third party partnerships in Mexico.The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
parent company, Heartland Express, Inc., and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned. All material intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The
accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes to the financial statements required by U.S. GAAP for
complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal, recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023 included in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on February 28, 2024. Interim results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for the full year or any other interim periods. New Accounting Pronouncements, Policy [Policy Text Block] In November 2023, the FASB issued Update 2023-07, "Segment Reporting
(Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures". The amendments in the update improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures
about significant segment expenses. The amendments do not change how a public entity identifies its operating segments, aggregates those operating segments, or applies the quantitative
thresholds to determine its reportable segments. The new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this new standard although based on initial evaluation we do not believe there will
be a material impact from adoption.In December 2023, the FASB issued Update 2023-09, "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures". The amendments in the update
improve income tax disclosures primarily related to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information as well as the effectiveness of certain other income tax disclosures. The new
standard is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this new standard although based on initial evaluation
we do not believe there will be a material impact from adoption. Use of Estimates, Policy [Policy Text Block] Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.A Actual results could differ from those estimates. Segment Reporting, Policy
[Policy Text Block] Segment InformationWe provide truckload services across the United States (U.S.), Mexico, and parts of Canada. These truckload services are primarily asset-based
transportation services in the dry van truckload market, and we also offer truckload temperature-controlled transportation services and Mexico logistics services, which are not significant to
our consolidated operations. Our Chief Operating Decision Maker (4€ceCODMa€) oversees and manages all of our transportation services, on a combined basis, including previously acquired
entities. As a result of the foregoing, we have determined that we have one reportable segment, consistent with the authoritative accounting guidance on disclosures about segments of an
enterprise and related information. Revenue [Policy Text Block] The Company recognizes revenue over time as control of the promised services is transferred to our customers, in an amount
that reflects the consideration we expect to be entitled to in exchange for those services. The delivery of the shipment and completion of the performance obligation allows for the collection of
payment generally within 30 days after the delivery date of the shipment for the majority of our customers.The Company's operations are consistent with those in the trucking industry where
freight is hauled twenty-four hours a day and seven days a week, subject to hours of service rules. The Companya€™s average length of haul is approximately 400 loaded miles per trip and each
individual shipment accepted by the Company is considered a separate contract with the performance obligation being the delivery of the freight. Our average length of haul for each load of
freight generally equals less than two days of continuous transit time. The Company estimates revenue for multiple-stop loads based on miles run and estimates revenue for single stop loads
based on transit time, as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided. The Company hauls freight and earns revenue on a consistent basis throughout the periods
presented. Cash and Cash Equivalents, Policy [Policy Text Block] Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with insignificant interest rate risk and
original maturities of three months or less at acquisition. Property, Plant and Equipment, Policy [Policy Text Block] Prepaid Tires, Property, Equipment, and DepreciationProperty and equipment
are reported at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. New tires are capitalized separately from revenue equipment and are
reported separately as a€cePrepaid tiresa€ in the consolidated balance sheets and amortized over two years. Depreciation for financial statement purposes is computed by the straight-line
method for all assets other than new tractors. We recognize depreciation expense on new tractors (excludes assets acquired through an acquisition) using the 125% declining balance method.
Revenue equipment acquired through acquisitions is generally revalued to current market values as of the acquisition date. Assets obtained more than a year prior to the acquisition by the
acquired company are depreciated on a straight-line basis aligned with the remaining period of expected use, whereas those obtained less than a year prior are depreciated consistent with
newly purchased assets. As acquired equipment is replaced, our fleet returns to our base methods of declining balance depreciation for tractors and straight-line depreciation for trailers. New
tractors are depreciated to salvage values of $15,000 while new trailers are depreciated to salvage values of $4,000. For equipment acquired through acquisitions the salvage values on used
equipment is determined based upon factors including the age of the equipment, estimated market value, and expected period of usage. At SeptemberA 30, 2024, there were $1.3 million
receivable related to equipment sales recorded in other current assets compared to $2.5 million at DecemberA 31, 2023. Earnings Per Share, Policy [Policy Text Block] Earnings per ShareBasic
(loss) earnings per share is based upon the weighted average common shares outstanding during each year.A Diluted (loss) earnings per share is based on the basic weighted (loss) earnings per
share with additional weighted common shares for common stock equivalents. Income Tax, Policy [Policy Text Block] We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income

taxes.A Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amount of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis.A Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Such amounts are adjusted, as appropriate, to reflect changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when temporary differences
reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred taxes is recognized in the period that the change is enacted. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the Company's deferred tax
assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. Income Tax Uncertainties, Policy [Policy Text Block] We recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are
more likely than not of being sustained.A Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or
measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.A We record interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. X -
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Section 50 -Paragraph 29 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-29Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 41 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-41Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 29 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-29Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 29 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-29Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 29 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-29Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 29 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-29Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 29 -Subparagraph (e) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-29 + Details Name: us-gaap_SegmentReportingPolicyPolicyTextBlock Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionDisclosure of accounting policy for the use of estimates in the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification
-Topic 275 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 9 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482861/275-10-50-9Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 275 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482861/275-10-50-4Reference 3:



http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 275 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482861/275-10-50-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (c) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 275 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482861/275-10-50-1Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 11 -SubTopic 10 -Topic 275 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482861/275-10-50-11Reference 6:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 12 -SubTopic 10 -Topic 275 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482861/275-10-50-12Reference 7: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 275 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -
Paragraph 8 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482861/275-10-50-8 + Details Name: us-gaap_UseOfEstimates Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: dtr-
types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 36 R25.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Other Intangible, Net and Goodwill (Tables) 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024
Goodwill and Intangible Assets Disclosure [Abstract] A Schedule of Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Table Text Block] Amortization period (years)Gross AmountAccumulated AmortizationNet
finite intangible assets(in thousands)Customer relationships15-20$75,836A $15,876A $59,960A Trade name0.5-1012,900A 10,540A 2,360A Covenants not to competel-

105,839A 5,009A 830A $94,575A $31,425A $63,150A X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap GoodwillAndIntangibleAssetsDisclosureAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionTabular disclosure of assets, excluding financial assets and goodwill, lacking physical substance with
a finite life, by either major class or business segment. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -
Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-2 + Details
Name: us-gaap_ScheduleOfFiniteLivedIntangibleAssetsTableTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 37
R26.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Earnings Per Share (Tables) 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Earnings Per Share [Abstract] A Schedule of Earnings Per Share, Basic and Diluted
[Table Text Block] Three months ended September 30, 2024Net Loss (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic loss per share$(9,283)78,489A $(0.12)Effect of restricted
stocka€”A 11A Diluted loss per share$(9,283)78,500A $(0.12)Three months ended September 30, 2023Net Loss (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic loss per
share$(10,703)79,021A $(0.14)Effect of restricted stocka€”A 82A Diluted loss per share$(10,703)79,103A $(0.14)Nine months ended September 30, 2024Net Loss (numerator)Shares
(denominator)Per Share AmountBasic loss per share$(27,869)78,814A $(0.35)Effect of restricted stocka€”A 52A Diluted loss per share$(27,869)78,866A $(0.35)Nine months ended September
30, 2023Net Income (numerator)Shares (denominator)Per Share AmountBasic earnings per share$9,680A 79,003A $0.12A Effect of restricted stocka€”A 66A Diluted earnings per
share$9,680A 79,069A $0.12A X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap EarningsPerShareAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance
Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionTabular disclosure of an entity's basic and diluted earnings per share calculations, including a reconciliation of numerators and denominators of the
basic and diluted per-share computations for income from continuing operations. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1 + Details Name: us-

gaap ScheduleOfEarningsPerShareBasicAndDilutedTableTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 38
R27.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Stock-Based Compensation (Tables) 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Share-Based Payment Arrangement [Abstract] A Disclosure of restricted stock
award activity The following tables summarize our restricted stock award activity for the three and nine months ended SeptemberA 30, 2024 and 2023. Three Months Ended September 30,
2024Number of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period62.5A $14.85A Granted26.3A 12.97A Vested(63.8)14.05A Forfeited(14.0)14.81A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period11.0A $15.05A Three Months Ended September 30, 2023Number
of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period95.0A $15.23A Granteda€”A 4€”A Vested(15.0)15.17A Forfeiteda€”A 4€”A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period80.0A $15.24A Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024Number of
Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period85.8A $14.84A Granted54.2A 12.39A Vested(115.0)13.67A Forfeited(14.0)14.81A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period11.0A $15.05A Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023Number
of Shares of Restricted Stock Awards (in thousands)Weighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueUnvested at beginning of

period40.1A $16.01A Granted93.3A 14.82A Vested(53.4)15.09A Forfeiteda€”A 4€”A Outstanding (unvested) at end of period80.0A $15.24A X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details
Name: us-gaap_DisclosureOfCompensationRelatedCostsSharebasedPaymentsAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionTabular disclosure of share-based payment arrangement. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 1 -SubTopic 10 -Topic 718 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_DisclosureOfShareBasedCompensationArrangementsByShareBasedPaymentAwardTextBlock Namespace Prefix: us-gaap _Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockltemType Balance Type: na Period
Type: duration XML 39 R28.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Lease Obligations (Tables) 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Leases [Abstract] A Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Maturity
Our future minimum lease payments as of SeptemberA 30, 2024, are summarized as follows by lease category:(in thousands)OperatingFinance2024

(remaining)$1,846A $1,977A 20256,391A 7,557A 20261,497A 3,840A 2027320A a€”A 20284€”A 4€”A Thereaftera€”A a€”A Total minimum lease payments$10,054A $13,374A Less: future
payment amount for interest465A 506A Present value of minimum lease payments$9,589A $12,868A Less: current portion6,790A 6,924A Lease obligations, long-term$2,799A $5,944A X -
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap LeasesAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionTabular disclosure of undiscounted cash flows of lessee's operating lease liability. Includes, but is not limited to, reconciliation of undiscounted cash flows to operating lease liability
recognized in statement of financial position. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityMaturityTableTextBlock
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 40 R29.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Income Taxes (Tables) 9 Months
Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract] A Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as
follows:2024A (in thousands)Balance at December 31, 2023$5,522A Additions based on tax positions related to current year37A Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of
limitations(362)Balance at September 30, 2024$5,197A X - DefinitionSummary Of Positions For Which Significant Change In Unrecognized Tax Benefits Is Reasonably Possible Text Block +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld SummaryOfPositionsForWhichSignificantChangeInUnrecognizedTaxBenefitsIsReasonablyPossibleTextBlockTextBlock Namespace
Prefix: htld Data Type: dtr-types:textBlockItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap IncomeTaxDisclosureAbstract
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 41 R30.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Segment Information (Details) 9 Months
Ended Sep. 30, 2024 segments Segment Reporting Information [Line Items] A Number of Segments 1 X - DefinitionNumber of segments reported by the entity. A reportable segment is a
component of an entity for which there is an accounting requirement to report separate financial information on that component in the entity's financial statements. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 18 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-18 + Details Name: us-gaap_NumberOfReportableSegments Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:integerltemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members
defined in one or many axes to the table. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_SegmentReportingInformationLineltems Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 42 R31.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Revenue Recognition (Details) - USD ($) $ in Thousands 3 Months Ended 9
Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Dec. 31, 2023 Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Items] A A A A A Contract with Customer, Asset, after Allowance for
Credit Loss $ 1,900 A $ 1,900 A $ 1,900 Operating Revenue 259,861 $ 295,026 804,935 $ 932,111 A Accessorial and other revenues 18,400 22,400 58,600 71,700 A fuel surcharge [Member]
A A A A A Disaggregation of Revenue [Line Iltems] A A A A A Fuel surcharge revenue $ 32,800 $ 42,900 $ 105,900 $ 134,100 A X - DefinitionFuel surcharge revenue + ReferencesNo
definition available. + Details Name: htld FuelSurchargeRevenue Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount,
after allowance for credit loss, of right to consideration in exchange for good or service transferred to customer when right is conditioned on something other than passage of time. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479837/606-10-45-3Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479837/606-10-45-1Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 8 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-8 + Details Name: us-
gaap_ContractWithCustomerAssetNet Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionLine items represent financial
concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the table. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-5Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -
Paragraph 91 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479777/606-10-55-91Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 91 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479777/606-10-55-91Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 91 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479777/606-10-55-91Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -
Paragraph 91 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479777/606-10-55-91Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 91 -Subparagraph (e) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479777/606-10-55-91Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 91 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479777/606-10-55-91Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -
Paragraph 91 -Subparagraph (g) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479777/606-10-55-91 + Details Name: us-gaap_DisaggregationOfRevenueLineltems Namespace Prefix:
us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount, including tax collected from customer, of revenue from satisfaction of performance
obligation by transferring promised good or service to customer. Tax collected from customer is tax assessed by governmental authority that is both imposed on and concurrent with specific
revenue-producing transaction, including, but not limited to, sales, use, value-added and excise. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 924 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SAB Topic 11.L) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479941/924-10-S99-1Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-5Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 30 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-30Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 42 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-42Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 40 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-40Reference 8:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 41 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-41Reference 11:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 606 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479806/606-10-50-4 + Details Name: us-gaap_RevenueFromContractWithCustomerIncludingAssessedTax Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of revenue recognized from goods sold, services rendered, insurance premiums, or other activities that
constitute an earning process. Includes, but is not limited to, investment and interest income before deduction of interest expense when recognized as a component of revenue, and sales and
trading gain (loss). + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(g)(1)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 323 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481687/323-10-50-3Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 825 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482907/825-10-50-28Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic
470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(ii)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 9:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1A -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-01(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB
-URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1AReference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -



Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(i)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 11:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(A)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iii)(B)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 13:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(4)(iv)) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (SX 210.13-02(a)(5)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480097/470-10-S99-1BReference 15:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 30 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-30Reference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 42 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-42Reference 17: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 18:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 19: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 40 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-40Reference 20: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 22 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-22Reference 21:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 32 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-32Reference 22: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 280 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 41 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482810/280-10-50-41Reference 23: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 942 -
SubTopic 235 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-05(b)(2)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479557/942-235-
S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_Revenues Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - Details Name:
srt_ProductOrServiceAxis=htld FuelsurchargeMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: XML 43 R32.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Cash and Cash
Equivalents (Details) - USD ($) $ in Millions Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023 Sep. 30, 2023 Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items] A A A Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 13.7 $ 13.0
A Restricted Cash included in other current assets 0.3 0.3 $ 0.3 Restricted Cash included in other assets $ 13.4 $ 12.7 $ 13.4 X - DefinitionRestricted Cash and Investments, Current, Total +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld RestrictedCashAndInvestmentsCurrentTotal Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period
Type: instant X - DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in
one or many axes to the table. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_PropertyPlantAndEquipmentLineltems Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:stringItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of cash and cash equivalents restricted as to withdrawal or usage. Cash includes, but is not limited to,
currency on hand, demand deposits with banks or financial institutions, and other accounts with general characteristics of demand deposits. Cash equivalents include, but are not limited to,
short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of
changes in interest rates. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -
Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic
210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-03(a)(2)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479440/944-210-S99-
1Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 8 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482913/230-10-50-8Reference 4: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03(1)(a)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-210-S99-1Reference 5: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 45 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-4 + Details Name: us-
gaap_RestrictedCashAndCashEquivalents Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of cash and cash
equivalents restricted as to withdrawal or usage, classified as noncurrent. Cash includes, but is not limited to, currency on hand, demand deposits with banks or financial institutions, and other
accounts with general characteristics of demand deposits. Cash equivalents include, but are not limited to, short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 8 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482913/230-10-50-8Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 230 -SubTopic 10 -Section 45 -
Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-4Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 5 -SubTopic 210 -Topic 954 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480632/954-210-45-5 + Details Name: us-
gaap_RestrictedCashAndCashEquivalentsNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant XML 44 R33.htm IDEA: XBRL
DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Prepald Tires, Property, Equipment and Depreciation (Details) - USD ($) $ in Thousands 9 Months Ended 12 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023 Property, Plant and
Equipment [Line Items] A A Amortization Period of Tires two years A Sold revenue equipment in other current assets $ 1,300 $ 2,500 Tractors [Member] A A Property, Plant and Equipment
[Line Items] A A Property, Plant, and Equipment, Salvage Value 15 A Trailers [Member] A A Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items] A A Property, Plant, and Equipment, Salvage Value
$ 4 A X - DefinitionAmortization Period of Tires + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld AmortizationPeriodOfTires Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionIncrease (Decrease) of Restricted Cash and Investments + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
htld_IncreaseDecreaseOfRestrictedCashAndInvestments Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionLine items
represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the table. +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_PropertyPlantAndEquipmentLineltems Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type:
duration X - DefinitionThe estimated or actual value of the asset at the end of its useful life or when it is no longer serviceable (cannot be used for its original purpose). + ReferencesNo
definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_PropertyPlantAndEquipmentSalvageValue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type:
instant X - Details Name: us-gaap PropertyPlantAndEquipmentByTypeAxis=sic Z3537 Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details Name: us-
gaap_PropertyPlantAndEquipmentByTypeAxis=sic Z3715 Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: XML 45 R34.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Intangible Assets and
Goodwill (Details) - USD ($) $ in Thousands 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Dec. 31, 2023 Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
A A A A A Intangible Assets Acquired $ 0 A $ 0 A A Goodwill 322,597 A 322,597 A $ 322,597 Other Intangible Assets, Net 94,800 A 94,800 A A Indefinite-Lived Trade Names 31,600 A
31,600 A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Amortization Expense 1,300 $ 1,300 3,800 $ 3,900 A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Gross 94,575 A 94,575 A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets,
Accumulated Amortization 31,425 A 31,425 A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Net 63,150 A 63,150 A A Customer Relationships [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line
Items]A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Gross 75,836 A 75,836 A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Accumulated Amortization 15,876 A 15,876 A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets,
Net 59,960 A 59,960 A A Trade Names [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Gross 12,900 A 12,900 A A Finite-
Lived Intangible Assets, Accumulated Amortization 10,540 A 10,540 A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Net 2,360 A 2,360 A A Noncompete Agreements [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived
Intangible Assets [Line Items] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Gross 5,839 A 5,839 A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets, Accumulated Amortization 5,009 A 5,009 A A Finite-Lived
Intangible Assets, Net $ 830 A $ 830 A A Maximum [Member] | Customer Relationships [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items] A A A A A Amortization period
(years) 20 years A 20 years A A Maximum [Member] | Trade Names [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Llne Items] A A A A A Amortization period (years) 10 years A 10
years A A Maximum [Member] | Noncompete Agreements [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items] A A A A A Amortization period (years) 10 years A 10years A A
Minimum [Member] | Customer Relatlonshlps [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Llne Items] A A A A A Amortization perlod (years) 15 years A 15 years A A Minimum
[Member] | Trade Names [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items] A A A A A Amortization period (years) 6 months A 6 months A A Minimum [Member] |
Noncompete Agreements [Member] A A A A A Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]A A A A A Amortization period (years) 1 year A 1 year A A X - DefinitionThe aggregate expense
charged against earnings to allocate the cost of intangible assets (nonphysical assets not used in production) in a systematic and rational manner to the periods expected to benefit from such
assets. As a noncash expense, this element is added back to net income when calculating cash provided by or used in operations using the indirect method. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (b) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 230 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Section 45 -
Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482686/350-30-45-2Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (a)(2) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_AmortizationOfIntangibleAssets Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionUseful life of finite-lived intangible
assets, in 'PnYnMnDTnHnMnS' format, for example, 'P1Y5M13D' represents the reported fact of one year, five months, and thirteen days. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
us-gaap_FiniteLivedIntangibleAssetUsefulLife Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:durationIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAccumulated amount of
amortization of assets, excluding financial assets and goodwill, lacking physical substance with a finite life. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(16)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-
1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (a)(1) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_FiniteLivedIntangibleAssetsAccumulatedAmortization Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount before amortization of assets, excluding financial assets and goodwill, lacking physical substance with a
finite life. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 928 -SubTopic 340 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483147/928-340-50-1Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (a)(1) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_FiniteLivedIntangibleAssetsGross Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used
to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the table. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 926 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483154/926-20-50-5 + Details Name: us-
gaap_FiniteLivedIntangibleAssetsLineltems Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount after amortization of
assets, excluding financial assets and goodwill, lacking physical substance with a finite life. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 926 -SubTopic 20 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 5 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483154/926-20-50-5Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (a)(1) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_FiniteLivedIntangibleAssetsNet Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type:
debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of increase in assets, excluding financial assets, lacking physical substance with a definite life, from an acquisition. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a)(1) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinitelivedIntangibleAssetsAcquired1 Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount after accumulated impairment loss of an asset representing future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business
combination that are not individually identified and separately recognized. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 852 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481372/852-10-55-10Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic
350 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 24 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482548/350-20-55-24Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(15)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482598/350-20-45-1Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 20 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482573/350-20-50-1Reference 6:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (h) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482573/350-20-50-1Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 210 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-03(10)(1)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479853/942-210-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap Goodwill Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionCarrying amount (original costs adjusted for previously recognized amortization and
impairment) as of the balance sheet date for the rights acquired through registration of a trade name to gain or protect exclusive use thereof for a projected indefinite period of benefit. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 350 -SubTopic 30 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482665/350-30-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_IndefiniteLivedTradeNames Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount after accumulated amortization of finite-lived and indefinite-lived intangible assets classified as other. + ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: us-gaap OtherIntangibleAssetsNet Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - Details Name: us-
gaap_FiniteLivedIntangibleAssetsByMajorClassAxis=us-gaap_CustomerRelationshipsMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details Name: us-

gaap FiniteLivedIntangibleAssetsByMajorClassAxis=us-gaap TradeNamesMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details Name: us-
gaap_FiniteLivedIntangibleAssetsByMajorClassAxis=us-gaap_NoncompeteAgreementsMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details Name:

srt RangeAxis=srt MaximumMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details Name: srt RangeAxis=srt MinimumMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na



Balance Type: Period Type: XML 46 R35.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Earnings Per Share (Details) - USD ($) $ / shares in Units, shares in Thousands, $ in Thousands 3 Months Ended
9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Earnings Per Share, Basic, by Common Class, Including Two Class Method [Line Items] A A A A Net Income (Loss) $
(9,283) $ (10,703) $ (27,869) $ 9,680 Basic EPS, Shares 78,489 79,021 78,814 79,003 Basic EPS, Per Share Amount $ (0.12) $ (0.14) $ (0.35) $ 0.12 Effect of restricted stock $0$0$0$ 0
Effect of restricted stock, Shares 11 82 52 66 Diluted EPS, Net Income $ (9,283) $ (10,703) $ (27,869) $ 9,680 Diluted EPS, Shares 78,500 79,103 78,866 79,069 Diluted EPS, Per Share Amount
$(0.12) $ (0.14) $ (0.35) $ 0.12 X - DefinitionNet Income Loss EPS + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld NetIncomeLossEPS Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of increase (decrease) to net income used for calculating diluted earnings per share (EPS), resulting
from the assumed exercise of stock options or restrictive stock units (RSUs). + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1 + Details Name: us-
gaap_AmountOfDilutiveSecuritiesStockOptionsAndRestrictiveStockUnits Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionThe amount of net income (loss) for the period per each share of common stock or unit outstanding during the reporting period. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-3Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -
Paragraph 15 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-15Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic 40 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (e)(4) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic 40 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 7:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-7Reference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-2Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 60B -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-60BReference 10:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-4Reference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10
-Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-10Reference 13:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(25)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 14: http://www .xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 942 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-04(27)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483589/942-220-S99-1Reference 15:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-04(23)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 55 -Paragraph 52 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-52Reference 17: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -
Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 7 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-7 + Details Name: us-
gaap_EarningsPerShareBasic Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts
included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the table. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-2Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-3Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 60B -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-60B + Details Name: us-
gaap_EarningsPerShareBasicLineltems Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe amount of net income (loss) for
the period available to each share of common stock or common unit outstanding during the reporting period and to each share or unit that would have been outstanding assuming the issuance
of common shares or units for all dilutive potential common shares or units outstanding during the reporting period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 3 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-3Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 15 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-15Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic 40 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65
-Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (e)(4) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 815 -SubTopic
40 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 65 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480175/815-40-65-1Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 11 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-11Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -SubTopic
10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 7 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-7Reference 8:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-2Reference 9: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 60B -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-60BReference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 250 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483443/250-10-50-4Reference 11:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-03(25)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-2Reference 13: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 942 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.9-04(27)) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483589/942-220-S99-1Reference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 944 -SubTopic 220 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.7-04(23)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483586/944-220-S99-1Reference 15: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -
Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 52 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482635/260-10-55-52Reference 16:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 7 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-7 + Details Name: us-gaap_EarningsPerShareDiluted Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAdditional shares included in the calculation of diluted EPS as a result of the potentially dilutive effect of share based payment arrangements using the
treasury stock method. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480454/718-10-45-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -
Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 22 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-22Reference 4:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 23 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-23Reference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45
-Paragraph 28A -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-28A + Details Name: us-
gaap_IncrementalCommonSharesAttributableToShareBasedPaymentArrangements Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:sharesltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionAmount, after deduction of tax, noncontrolling interests, dividends on preferred stock and participating securities, and addition from assumption of issuance of common shares for
dilutive potential common shares; of income (loss) available to common shareholders. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 220 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 5 -Subparagraph (SAB Topic 6.B) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147483621/220-10-S99-5Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 3: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 16 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-16Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 40 -Subparagraph (b)(1) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-40Reference 5:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 60B -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-60BReference 6: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
45 -Paragraph 40 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-40Reference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 40 -Subparagraph (b)(2) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-40Reference
8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 40 -Subparagraph (b)(3) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-40 + Details Name: us-gaap_NetIncomeLossAvailableToCommonStockholdersDiluted Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe average number of shares or units issued and outstanding that are used in calculating diluted EPS or
earnings per unit (EPU), determined based on the timing of issuance of shares or units in the period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 16 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-16 + Details Name: us-gaap WeightedAverageNumberOfDilutedSharesOutstanding Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionNumber of [basic] shares or units, after adjustment for contingently issuable shares or units and other shares or units
not deemed outstanding, determined by relating the portion of time within a reporting period that common shares or units have been outstanding to the total time in that period. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482662/260-10-50-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 260 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 45 -Paragraph 10 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482689/260-10-45-10 + Details Name: us-gaap_WeightedAverageNumberOfSharesOutstandingBasic
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:sharesltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 47 R36.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Equity (Details) - USD ($) shares in
Thousands, $ in Millions 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Share Repurchases [Abstract] A A A A Number of Shares Authorized to be
Repurchased 6,000 A 6,000 A Treasury Stock, Shares, Acquired 0 0 600 0 Dividends, Common Stock, Cash $ 1.6 $ 1.6 $ 4.7 $ 4.7 X - DefinitionNote 10.A A Share Repurchases [Abstract] +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_ShareRepurchasesAbstract Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionAmount of paid and unpaid common stock dividends declared with the form of settlement in cash. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 505 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-1 +
Details Name: us-gaap_DividendsCommonStockCash Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe number of
shares authorized to be repurchased by an entity's Board of Directors under a stock repurchase plan. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-
gaap_StockRepurchaseProgramNumberOfSharesAuthorizedToBeRepurchased Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X -
DefinitionNumber of shares that have been repurchased during the period and are being held in treasury. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -SubTopic 10 -Topic 505 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481112/505-10-50-2Reference 2: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 505 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.3-04) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480008/505-10-S99-1Reference 3: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-02(29)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap TreasuryStockSharesAcquired
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:sharesltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 48 R37.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Stock-Based Compensation (Details) -
USD ($) $ / shares in Units, $ in Thousands 3 Months Ended 9 Months Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 May 13, 2021 Jul. 11, 2011 Share-Based Payment
Arrangement [Abstract] A A A A A A Share-based Payment Arrangement, Nonvested Award, Cost Not yet Recognized, Period for Recognition A A 9 months 18 days A A A Restricted Stock
Shares Authorized A A A A 600,000 900,000 Stock-based Compensation $ 100 $ 500 $ 700 $ 900 A A Employee Service Share-based Compensation, Nonvested Awards, Total Compensation
Cost Not yet Recognized $ 100 A $ 100 A A A Restricted Stock Shares, Remalmng Available 406,731 A 406,731 A A A Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Nonvested [Roll Forward] A A A A A A Unvested at beginning of year, Number of Restricted Stock Awards (in shares) 62,500 95,000.0 85,800
40,100 A A Unvested at beginning of year, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value (in dollars) $ 14.85 $ 15.23 $ 14.84 $ 16.01 A A Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based
Payment Award, Shares Issued in Period 26,300 0 54,200 93,300 A A Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options, Grants
in Period, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value $ 12.97 $ 0 $ 12.39 $ 14.82 A A Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than
Options, Vested in Period (63,800) (15,000.0) (115,000.0) (53,400) A A Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options,



Vested in Period, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value $ 14.05 $ 15.17 $ 13.67 $ 15.09 A A Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments
Other than Options, Forfeited in Period (14,000.0) 0 (14,000.0) 0 A A Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity Instruments Other than Options,
Forfeitures, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value $ 14.81 $ 0 $ 14.81 $ 0 A A Outstanding (unvested) at end of year, Number of Restricted Stock Awards (in shares) 11,000.0 80,000.0
11,000.0 80,000.0 A A Outstanding (unvested) at end of year, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value (in dollars) $ 15.05 $ 15.24 $ 15.05 $ 15.24 A A X - DefinitionRestricted Stock Shares
Authorized + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld RestrictedStockSharesAuthorized Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type:
instant X - DefinitionRestricted Stock Shares, Remaining Available + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld RestrictedStockSharesRemainingAvailable Namespace Prefix:
htld_ Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-

gaap DisclosureOfCompensationRelatedCostsSharebasedPaymentsAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionAmount of cost not yet recognized for nonvested award under share-based payment arrangement. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -
SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (i) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name:
us-gaap_EmployeeServiceShareBasedCompensationNonvestedAwardsTotalCompensationCostNotYetRecognized Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type:
debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionWeighted-average period over which cost not yet recognized is expected to be recognized for award under share-based payment arrangement, in
'"PnYnMnDTnHnMnS' format, for example, 'P1Y5M13D' represents reported fact of one year, five months, and thirteen days. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (i) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_EmployeeServiceShareBasedCompensationNonvestedAwardsTotalCompensationCostNotYetRecognizedPeriodForRecognitionl Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:durationIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of noncash expense for share-based payment arrangement. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 28 -Subparagraph (a) -SubTopic 10 -Topic 230 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482740/230-10-45-28 + Details Name: us-gaap_ShareBasedCompensation Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type:
debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe number of equity-based payment instruments, excluding stock (or unit) options, that were forfeited during the reporting period. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (c)(2)(iii)(03) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquityInstrumentsOtherThanOptionsForfeitedInPeriod Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionWeighted average fair value as of the grant date of equity-based award plans other than stock (unit) option plans that were not exercised or
put into effect as a result of the occurrence of a terminating event. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (c)(2)(iii)(03) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-

gaap ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsForfeituresWeightedAverageGrantDateFairValue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap
Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe weighted average fair value at grant date for nonvested equity-based awards issued during the
period on other than stock (or unit) option plans (for example, phantom stock or unit plan, stock or unit appreciation rights plan, performance target plan). + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (c)(2)(iii)(01) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquityInstrumentsOtherThanOptionsGrantsInPeriodWeightedAverageGrantDateFairValue Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe number of non-vested equity-based payment instruments, excluding stock (or unit)
options, that validly exist and are outstanding as of the balance sheet date. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting
Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (c)(2)(i) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (c)(2)(ii) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquityInstrumentsOtherThanOptionsNonvestedNumber Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionA roll forward is a reconciliation of a concept from the beginning of a period to the end of a period. + ReferencesNo definition available. +
Details Name: us-gaap_ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquityInstrumentsOtherThanOptionsNonvestedRollForward Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionPer share or unit weighted-average fair value of nonvested award under share-based payment arrangement. Excludes
share and unit options. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -
Subparagraph (c)(2)(i) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Subparagraph (c)(2)(ii) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquityInstrumentsOtherThanOptionsNonvestedWeightedAverageGrantDateFairValue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionThe number of equity-based payment instruments, excluding stock (or unit) options, that vested
during the reporting period. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 2
-Subparagraph (c)(2)(iii)(02) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-
gaap_ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquityInstrumentsOtherThanOptionsVestedInPeriod Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType
Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe weighted average fair value as of grant date pertaining to an equity-based award plan other than a stock (or unit) option plan for which
the grantee gained the right during the reporting period, by satisfying service and performance requirements, to receive or retain shares or units, other instruments, or cash in accordance with
the terms of the arrangement. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph
2 -Subparagraph (c)(2)(iii)(02) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-

gaap ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardEquitylnstrumentsOtherThanOptionsVestedInPeriodWeightedAverageGrantDateFairValue Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_Data Type: dtr-types:perShareltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionNumber of shares issued under share-based payment arrangement. + ReferencesReference
1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 718 -SubTopic 10 -Section 50 -Paragraph 2 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480429/718-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap _ShareBasedCompensationArrangementByShareBasedPaymentAwardSharesIssuedInPeriod Namespace Prefix:
us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:sharesItemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration XML 49 R38.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Long-Term Debt (Details) $ in Thousands 9 Months Ended
Sep. 30, 2024 USD ($) Rate Aug. 31, 2022 USD ($) May 31, 2022 USD ($) Debt Instrument [Line Items] A A A Letters of Credit Outstanding, Amount $ 11,700 A A Business combination,
assumptlon of debt and financing leases $ 19,200 A $ 46,800 Debt Acquired, Weighted Average Interest Rate | Rate 4.40% A A Finance Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent | Rate
4.00% A A Finance Lease, Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term 1 year 2 months 12 days A A Finance Lease Obligations $ 12,900 A A Debt Acquired 6,300 A A Unsecured Credit
Facility A $ 550,000 A Revolving Line of Credit A 100,000 A Term Facility A 450,000 A Swingline Facility A 20,000 A Available amount for issuance of letters of credit A 50,000 A
Uncommitted Accordion Feature A $ 275,000 A Outstanding Debt on Term Facility 188,000 A A Outstanding Debt on Revolving Facility 0 A A Line of Credit Facility, Current Borrowing
Capacity $ 88,300 A A Weighted Average Interest Rate, Credit Facility | Rate 6.80% A A Debt Instrument, Covenant, Distributions Max Leverage Ratio 2.5 A A Debt Instrument, Covenant,
Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio 3 A A Debt Instrument, Covenant, Maximum Net Leverage Ratio 2.75 A A Max Annual Dividend $ 10,000 A A Applicable Margin Base | Rate 1.00% A A
Term SOFR one-month spread | Rate 1.10% A A Unamortized Debt Issuance Expense $ 400 A A Federal Funds Rate [Member] A A A Debt Instrument [Line Items] A A A Debt Instrument,
Basis Spread on Variable Rate 0.50% A A Minimum [Member] | ABR Loan A A A Debt Instrument [Line Items] A A A Debt Instrument, Basis Spread on Variable Rate | Rate 0.25% A A
Mlnlmum [Member] | Secured Overnight Flnancmg Rate (SOFR) Overnight Fmancmg Rate A A A Debt Instrument [Line Items] A A A Debt Instrument, Basis Spread on Variable Rate | Rate
1.25% A A Maximum [Member] | ABR Loan A A A Debt Instrument [Line Items] A A A Debt Instrument, Basis Spread on Variable Rate | Rate 0.875% A A Maximum [Member] | Secured
Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) Overnight Financing Rate A A A Debt Instrument [Line Items] A A A Debt Instrument, Basis Spread on Variable Rate | Rate 1.875% A A X -
DefinitionApplicable Margin Base + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_ApplicableMarginBase Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:pureltemType Balance Type: na
Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAvailable Issuance of Line of Credit + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_AvailableIssuanceOfLineOfCredit Namespace Prefix: htld_
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionBusiness Combination Long-term Debt + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:

htld BusinessCombinationLongTermDebt Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionDebt + ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: htld Debt Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionDebt Instrument, Covenant,
Distributions Max Leverage Ratio + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld DebtInstrumentCovenantDistributionsMaxLeverageRatio Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type:
xbrli:pureltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionDebt Instrument, Covenant, Maximum Net Leverage Ratio + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
htld_DebtInstrumentCovenantMaximumNetLeverageRatio Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:pureltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionDebt Instrument,
Covenant, Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_DebtInstrumentCovenantMinimumInterestCoverageRatio Namespace Prefix: htld_Data
Type: xbrli:pureltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionFinance Lease Obligations + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_FinanceLeaseObligations
Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionMax Annual Dividend + ReferencesNo definition available. 4+ Details Name:
htld MaxAnnualDividend Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionOutstanding Debt on Revolving Facility +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld OutstandingDebtOnRevolvingFacility Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type:
instant X - DefinitionOutstanding Debt on Term Facility + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_OutstandingDebtOnTermFacility Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionRevolving Facility + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld RevolvingFacility Namespace
Prefix: htld_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionSwingline Facility + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name:
htld_SwinglineFacility Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionTerm Facility + ReferencesNo definition available. +
Details Name: htld TermFacility Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionTerm SOFR one-month spread +
ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld TermSOFROneMonthSpread Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:pureltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionUncommitted Accordion Feature + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld UncommittedAccordionFeature Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionUnsecured Credit Facility + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld UnsecuredCreditFacility
Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionWeighted Average Interest Rate, Credit Facility + ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: htld WeightedAveragelnterestRateCreditFacility Namespace Prefix: htld_Data Type: dtr-typesl:percentltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X -
DefinitionPercentage points added to the reference rate to compute the variable rate on the debt instrument. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-
gaap_DebtInstrumentBasisSpreadOnVariableRatel Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: dtr-types:percentltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionLine items represent
financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the table. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 835 -SubTopic 30 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482900/835-30-50-1Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.4-08(f)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-1Reference 3:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 235 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section S99 -Paragraph 3 -Subparagraph (SX 210.12-04(a)) -Publisher FASB -
URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480678/235-10-S99-3Reference 4: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1BReference 5: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 470 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 69B -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481568/470-20-55-69BReference 6:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 69C -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481568/470-20-55-69CReference 7: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55
-Paragraph 69E -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481568/470-20-55-69EReference 8: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name
Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 69F -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481568/470-20-55-69FReference 9:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1BReference 10: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1BReference 11: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 470 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1BReference
12: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (e) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1BReference 13: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (f) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1BReference 14: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1B -Subparagraph (h) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1BReference
15: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1D -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1DReference 16: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 1D -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1DReference 17: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1D -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1DReference
18: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1E -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI



https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1EReference 19: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 1E -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1EReference 20: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1E -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1EReference
21: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1F -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1FReference 22: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 1F -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1FReference 23: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1F -Subparagraph (b)(1) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1FReference
24: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 1F -Subparagraph (b)(2) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-1FReference 25: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 470 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section
50 -Paragraph 1I -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147481139/470-20-50-11 + Details Name: us-gaap_DebtInstrumentLineltems Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionWeighted average interest rate of debt outstanding. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details
Name: us-gaap_DebtWeightedAveragelnterestRate Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: dtr-types:percentltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionWeighted average
discount rate for finance lease calculated at point in time. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 53 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479589/842-20-55-53Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -
SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (g)(4) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-4 + Details
Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseWeightedAverageDiscountRatePercent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:percentltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X -
DefinitionWeighted average remaining lease term for finance lease, in 'PnYnMnDTnHnMnS' format, for example, 'P1Y5M13D' represents reported fact of one year, five months, and thirteen
days. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 53 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479589/842-20-55-53Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (g)(3) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-4 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseWeightedAverageRemainingLeaseTerm1
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:durationltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionThe total amount of the contingent obligation under letters of credit
outstanding as of the reporting date. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_LettersOfCreditOutstandingAmount Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of current borrowing capacity under the credit facility considering any current restrictions on the
amount that could be borrowed (for example, borrowings may be limited by the amount of current assets), but without considering any amounts currently outstanding under the facility. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Topic 210 -SubTopic 10 -Section S99 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (SX 210.5-
02.19(b),22(b)) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147480566/210-10-S99-1 + Details Name: us-gaap LineOfCreditFacilityCurrentBorrowingCapacity Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionThe remaining balance of debt issuance expenses that were capitalized and are being
amortized against income over the lives of the respective bond issues. This does not include the amounts capitalized as part of the cost of the utility plant or asset. + ReferencesNo definition
available. + Details Name: us-gaap UnamortizedDebtIssuanceExpense Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - Details
Name: us-gaap_VariableRateAxis=us-gaap_PrimeRateMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details Name: srt RangeAxis=srt MinimumMember Namespace
Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details Name: us-gaap VariableRateAxis=htld ABRLoanMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details
Name: us-gaap_VariableRateAxis=us-gaap_SecuredOvernightFinancingRateSofrOvernightIndexSwapRateMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X - Details
Name: srt RangeAxis=srt MaximumMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: XML 50 R39.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Lease Obligations (Details) - USD
($) $ in Thousands Sep. 30, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023 Operating Leases [Abstract] A A 2024 (remaining) $ 1,846 A 2025 6,391 A 2026 1,497 A 2027 320 A 2028 0 A Thereafter 0 A Lessee,
Operating Lease, Liability, to be Paid 10,054 A Lessee, Operating Lease, Liability, Undiscounted Excess Amount 465 A Operating Lease, Liability 9,589 A Operating lease liabilities - current
portion 6,790 $ 9,259 Operating lease liabilities less current portion 2,799 8,183 Right of Use Asset associated with the leased terminal facilities $ 5,700 A Operating Lease, Weighted Average
Remaining Lease Term 1 year 6 months A Operating Lease, Weighted Average Discount Rate, Percent 5.40% A Right of Use Operating Lease Assets Acquired $ 3,900 A Finance Leases
[Abstract] A A 2024 (remaining) 1,977 A 2025 7,557 A 2026 3,840 A 2027 0 A 2028 0 A Thereafter 0 A Finance Lease, Liability, Payment, Due 13,374 A Finance Lease, Liability,
Undiscounted Excess Amount 506 A Finance Lease, Liability 12,868 A Finance Lease, Liability, Current 6,924 A Finance Lease, Liability, Noncurrent $ 5,944 A Gain on Sale of Properties As
25,600 X - DefinitionFinance Leases + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld FinanceLeasesAbstract Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type:
na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionGain on Sale of Properties + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld GaannSaleOfPropertles Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionOperating Leases + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld_OperatingLeasesAbstract
Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:stringIltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionRight of Use Asset associated with the leased terminal facilities + ReferencesNo
definition available. + Details Name: htld RightOfUseAssetAssociatedWithTheLeasedTerminalFacilities Namespace Prefix: htld Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period
Type: instant X - DefinitionRight of Use Operating Lease Assets + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: htld RightOfUseOperatingLeaseAssets Namespace Prefix: htld_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPresent value of lessee's discounted obligation for lease payments from finance lease. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -
Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseLiability Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data
Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPresent value of lessee's discounted obligation for lease payments from finance lease, classified as current.
+ ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPresent value of lessee's discounted obligation for lease payments from finance lease, classified as noncurrent. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap FinanceLeaseLiabilityNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payments for finance lease. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for finance lease to be paid after fifth fiscal year following current fiscal year.
Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueAfterYearFive Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for finance lease to be paid in next fiscal year
following current fiscal year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueNextTwelveMonths Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for finance lease to be paid in fifth fiscal year
following current fiscal year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap FinanceLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueYearFive Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for finance lease to be paid in fourth fiscal year following current fiscal
year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueYearFour Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for finance lease to be paid in third fiscal year following current fiscal year.
Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueYearThree Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for finance lease to be paid in second fiscal year following current fiscal
year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap FinanceLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueYearTwo Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payments in excess of discounted obligation for lease payments for finance lease. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_FinanceLeaseLiabilityUndiscountedExcessAmount Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for operating lease. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDue Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType
Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for operating lease due after fifth fiscal year following current fiscal year.
Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueAfterYearFive Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for operating lease to be paid in next fiscal year
following current fiscal year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueNextTwelveMonths Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for operating lease to be paid in fifth fiscal year
following current fiscal year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueYearFive Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for operating lease to be paid in fourth fiscal year
following current fiscal year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueYearFour Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for operating lease to be paid in third fiscal year
following current fiscal year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueYearThree Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payment for operating lease to be paid in second fiscal year
following current fiscal year. Excludes interim and annual periods when interim periods are reported from current statement of financial position date (rolling approach). +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 6 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityPaymentsDueYearTwo Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount of lessee's undiscounted obligation for lease payments in excess of discounted obligation for lease
payments for operating lease. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph
6 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-6 + Details Name: us-gaap_LesseeOperatingLeaseLiabilityUndiscountedExcessAmount Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPresent value of lessee's discounted obligation for lease payments from operating lease. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingLeaseLiability Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPresent value of lessee's discounted obligation for lease payments from operating lease, classified as current. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI



https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap OperatingLeaseLiabilityCurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type:
credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPresent value of lessee's discounted obligation for lease payments from operating lease, classified as noncurrent. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 1 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479041/842-20-45-1 + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingLeaseLiabilityNoncurrent Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance
Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionWeighted average discount rate for operating lease calculated at point in time. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 53 -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479589/842-20-55-53Reference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50
-Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (g)(4) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-4 + Details Name: us-gaap OperatingLeaseWeightedAverageDiscountRatePercent
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: dtr-types:percentltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant X - DefinitionWeighted average remaining lease term for operating lease, in
'PnYnMnDTnHnMnS' format, for example, 'P1Y5M13D' represents reported fact of one year, five months, and thirteen days. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/exampleRef
-Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 55 -Paragraph 53 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147479589/842-20-55-53Reference 2:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 842 -SubTopic 20 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (g)(3) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147478964/842-20-50-4 + Details Name: us-gaap_OperatingLeaseWeightedAverageRemainingLeaseTerm1 Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:durationltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: instant XML 51 R40.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Income Taxes (Details) - USD ($) $ in Thousands 3 Months Ended 9 Months
Ended Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Sep. 30, 2024 Sep. 30, 2023 Dec. 31, 2023 Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible [Line Items] A A A A A Effective
Income Tax Rate, Percent 16.50% 19.10% 19.10% 34.50% A Valuation Allowance [Abstract] A A A A A Valuation Allowance, Amount $ 0 A $ 0 A $ 0 Income Tax Uncertainties [Abstract] A
AAAA Unrecognized Tax Benefits that Would Impact Effective Tax Rate 4,100 A 4,100 A 4,400 Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Period Increase (Decrease) 0 $ 100 (300) $ (100) A
Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Income Tax Penalties and Interest Accrued 900 A 900 A $ 700 Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Income Tax Penalties and Interest Expense 100 $ 100 200 $ 0 A
Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Excluding Amounts Pertaining to Examined Tax Returns [Roll Forward]A A A A A Balance beginning of period A A 5,522 A A Additions based
on tax positions related to current year A A 37 A A Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations A A (362) A A Balance end of period 5,197 A 5,197 A A Minimum [Member]
A A A A A Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible [Line Items] A A A A A Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible, Amount
of Unrecorded Benefit 0 A 0 A A Maximum [Member] A A A A A Significant Change in Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible [Line Items] A A A A A Significant Change in
Unrecognized Tax Benefits is Reasonably Possible, Amount of Unrecorded Benefit $ 1,000 A $ 1,000 A A X - DefinitionAmount of deferred tax assets for which it is more likely than not that a
tax benefit will not be realized. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph
2 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-2 + Details Name: us-gaap_DeferredTaxAssetsValuationAllowance Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionPercentage of current income tax expense (benefit) and deferred income tax expense (benefit)
pertaining to continuing operations. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 12 -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-12 + Details Name: us-gaap EffectiveIncomeTaxRateContinuingOperations Namespace Prefix: us-
gaap Data Type: dtr-types:percentltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_IncomeTaxUncertaintiesAbstract
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionA roll forward is a reconciliation of a concept from the beginning of a period to
the end of a period. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap ReconciliationOfUnrecognizedTaxBenefitsExcludingAmountsPertainingToExaminedTaxReturnsRollForward
Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionThe amount of the unrecognized tax benefit of a position taken for which it is
reasonably possible that the total amount thereof will significantly increase or decrease within twelve months of the balance sheet date. + ReferencesReference 1: http://fasb.org/us-
gaap/role/ref/legacyRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 15 -Subparagraph (d) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-15 + Details Name: us-gaap_SignificantChangeInUnrecognizedTaxBenefitsIsReasonablyPossibleAmountOfUnrecordedBenefit Namespace
Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionLine items represent financial concepts included in a table. These concepts are used
to disclose reportable information associated with domain members defined in one or many axes to the table. + ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-
gaap_SignificantChangeInUnrecognizedTaxBenefitsIsReasonablyPossibleLineltems Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X -
DefinitionAmount of unrecognized tax benefits. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -
Section 50 -Paragraph 15A -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-15AReference 2: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic
740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 45 -Paragraph 10B -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482525/740-10-45-10B + Details Name: us-
gaap_UnrecognizedTaxBenefits Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - DefinitionAmount accrued for interest on an
underpayment of income taxes and penalties related to a tax position claimed or expected to be claimed in the tax return. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef
-Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 15 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-15 +
Details Name: us-gaap_UnrecognizedTaxBenefitsincomeTaxPenaltiesAndInterestAccrued Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type:
instant X - DefinitionAmount of expense for interest on an underpayment of income taxes and penalties related to a tax position claimed or expected to be claimed in the tax return. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 15 -Subparagraph (c) -Publisher
FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-15 + Details Name: us-gaap_UnrecognizedTaxBenefitsIncomeTaxPenaltiesAndInterestExpense Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_
Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of increase in unrecognized tax benefits resulting from tax positions that have been or will
be taken in current period tax return. + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -
Paragraph 15A -Subparagraph (a)(2) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-15A + Details Name: us-
gaap_UnrecognizedTaxBenefitsIncreasesResultingFromCurrentPeriodTaxPositions Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: duration X
- DefinitionAmount of increase (decrease) in unrecognized tax benefits attributable to uncertain tax positions taken in tax returns. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2009/role/commonPracticeRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 15A -Subparagraph (a) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-15A + Details Name: us-gaap_UnrecognizedTaxBenefitsPeriodIncreaseDecrease Namespace Prefix: us-gaap Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - DefinitionAmount of decrease in unrecognized tax benefits resulting from lapses of applicable statutes of limitations. +
ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 15A -Subparagraph (a)(4) -
Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-15A + Details Name: us-
gaap_UnrecognizedTaxBenefitsReductionsResultingFromLapseOfApplicableStatuteOfLimitations Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: debit Period
Type: duration X - DefinitionThe total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate. + ReferencesReference 1:
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 740 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 15A -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI
https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482685/740-10-50-15A + Details Name: us-gaap_UnrecognizedTaxBenefitsThatWouldImpactEffectiveTaxRate Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type:
xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant X - ReferencesNo definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_ValuationAllowanceAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data
Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type: duration X - Details Name: srt RangeAxis=srt MinimumMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: X -
Details Name: srt_RangeAxis=srt MaximumMember Namespace Prefix: Data Type: na Balance Type: Period Type: XML 52 R41.htm IDEA: XBRL DOCUMENT v3.24.3 Commitments and
Contingencies (Details) $ in Millions Sep. 30, 2024 USD ($) Commitments and Contingencies Disclosure [Abstract] A Unrecorded Unconditional Purchase Obligation $ 58.6 X - ReferencesNo
definition available. + Details Name: us-gaap_CommitmentsAndContingenciesDisclosureAbstract Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_ Data Type: xbrli:stringltemType Balance Type: na Period Type:
duration X - DefinitionAmount of the unrecorded obligation to transfer funds in the future for fixed or minimum amounts or quantities of goods or services at fixed or minimum prices (for
example, as in take-or-pay contracts or throughput contracts). + ReferencesReference 1: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/disclosureRef -Topic 440 -SubTopic 10 -Name Accounting Standards
Codification -Section 50 -Paragraph 4 -Subparagraph (b) -Publisher FASB -URI https://asc.fasb.org//1943274/2147482648/440-10-50-4 + Details Name: us-
gaap_UnrecordedUnconditionalPurchaseObligationBalanceSheetAmount Namespace Prefix: us-gaap_Data Type: xbrli:monetaryltemType Balance Type: credit Period Type: instant EXCEL 53
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